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To Our SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS, AND EMPLOYEES,

We have just completed the most successful year in
the Company’s history. Sales were a record 826,401, a
120% increase over our fiscal 2005 revenue of $12.3 M.
This is a tremendous achievement. In addition to our
dramatic sales growth, we continued to reduce our 5,
G & A expenses to a level more appropriate for a small
S, G & A rate declined as a
percentage of revenue from 45% in fiscal 2005 to 34%
in fiscal 2006, Our goal for fiscal 2007 15 to focus on
p[oﬁtzll)ilit}'.

public company. Our

In fiscal 2006, the performance of our two California
divisions contributed significantly to the $14M increasce
in revenue we experienced.  Through investments
in marketing and sales, we were able to grow our
semiconductor business segment by 127%. However,
the most specracular growth, by far, occurred in the
securtty diviston. This product area grew by 360%,

from §1.5M in fiscal 2005 to $6.9M in fiscal 2006.

SccuriTy Division  The impressive performance of
the security division was mainly due to the delivery of
123 units of our H-100 handheld explosives detector
to the China railway and several police agencies. This
order represented the first muor commercial sale
of our handheld product.  Revenue growth in the
securities product division was further augmented by
U.8, Government contracts, the largest of which was
for $2.2M awarded by the Transportation Securiry
Administration {TSA) to develop the next generation
passenger portal. The prototype developed through
this contract is about to undergo massive testing fto

evaluate its operational performance.

During  fiscal 2006,
commercial products, the H-150 handheld. the BTS

we developed three (3) new

benchtop and the backpack explosives detector all of
which are ready to confribute to sales in fiscal 2007, in
addition. and as further evidence of the acceptance of
our research and development cfforts, subsequent fo
vear end, we received a $3.6M conrract from the U.S.
Army to fabricate and deliver three (3) robot-mounted
explosives detectors to seck our improvised explosive
devices (1EDs) using the Company’s non-contact
technology.  The bulk of this cffort and associared

revenue will occur in fiscal 2007,

SEMICONDUCTOR In fiscal 2005, we ceonsohdated
the administrative and accounting functions of our
California subsidiaries with corporate headquarters. In
fiscal 2006 at Core Systems, all three products, namely,
ion implant services, disk refurbishment, and Krytek
cquipment have benefited from our investments in
sales and marketing worldwide. At Accurel, where we
provide chip diagnostic and faslure analysis services, we
have upgraded our cquipment to keep in step with the
dynamucs of this industry, which 1s constantly shrinking
chup features. Both of these acquisitions have made
a significant contribution to our revenue growth and

profits.

Mepicar Devices  Qur YL-169 source wire for high
dose radiation (FIDR) therapy 1s now in the final stages
of commercialization. We should stact to see income
during our 3o 4t quarter of fiscal 2007. Our prostate
sced business has been experiencing good growth from
our South African customer and we are looking forward
to continued growth from this customer during fiscal

2007

As we enter fiscal 2007, our primary emphasis wall be
on selling our existing products rather than on new R &
D msnatives. Qur new smaller, lighter F-150 handheld
explosive detector holds the best promise for a large
quantity of purchases from customers all over the world,

with our BTS product following close beliind.

I would lLike to thank our loval shareholders and

emplovees for their support during the past vear,

Respectfully submitted,

Anthony | Armiag, Ph.D

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Exccutive Officer
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PART 1
SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “project,” “estimate,” “forecast,” and similar expressions, among others, identify
forward looking statements. The forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in such forward-looking statements. Factors
that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the sections entitled
“Business, " “Risk Faciors,” and “Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations." Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these Jorward-looking statements, which
reflect management's opinions only as of the date thereof. We underiake no obligation 1o revise or publicly
release the results of any revision of these forward-looking statements. Readers should carefully review the risk
Jactors described in the Annual Report and in other documents that we file from time to time with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. OUR BUSINESS

Over the past twenty two years, Implant Sciences Corporation (the "Company"), incorporated in
August 1984, has both developed and acquired technologies using ion implantation and thin film coatings for
medical device applications and scmiconductor wafer processing. The Company uses its proprictary processes
and equipment when manufacturing its medical devices for radistion therapy and when modifying orihopedic
joint implant surfaces to reduce polyethylene wear gencration. This technology has further evolved to include
new applications in the area of trace explosives detection products.

Since May 1999, we have been performing rescarch to develop and improve a trace cxplosives
detector, which could be used to detect hidden bombs in airports and other public places. This is the latest
application of our fon source technology. At present, we have developed both portable and bench-top systems
for usc in airports and Decpartment of Defense facilities and have marketed and sold these products both
domestically and internationally, primarily in Asia. In fiscal 2006, as part of a plan to reduce manufacturing
costs, we transitioned the production of our portable system to a contract manufacturer. As we continue to sell
and deliver our security products, we work both independently and in conjunction with various government
agencies, to develop the next generation of trace explosives detectors and to identify ncw applications for our
proprictary technology. We currently have five issued United States patents and four United States patents
pending covering our explosives detection technologics and processcs.

Other applications of our ion beam technology have been in the area of temporary brachytherapy
products. In May 1999, we reccived Food and Drug Administration 510(k) clearance to market our 1-Plant™
lodine-125 radioactive seed for the treatment of prostate cancer and in 2001 recognized our first sale. This
marked a major milestone for the Company by commercializing a product derived from a research and
development program as well as representing a critical stage in our growth from a provider of ion implantation
services for semiconductor and orthopedic applications to a manufacturer and seller of product in the form of
radioactive prostate secds.

Most recently, our semiconductor business has experienced substantial growth. This growth came
through the acquisition of two California semiconductor companics, Core Systems and Accurel Systems in
fiscal 2005. Through these acquisitions, we have more than doubled our semiconductor capacity and are now
able to offer diagnostic services, semiconductor equipment and refurbishment services to scmiconductor
manufacturers, research laboratories and universities.

We currently have twelve issucd United States patents and five United States patents pending covering
our semiconductor and medical technologies and processes.




Technologies

General. We use two core technologies, ion implantation and thin film coatings. With respect to each
core technology, we have developed proprietary processes and equipment for the purpose of improving or
altering the surfaces of medical implants and semiconducter wafers.

JIon implantation and thin film coatings are techniques first developed in the 1970°s to improve the
functional surface properties of metals, ceramics and polymers, such as friction, wear, wetability and hardness.
Ion implantation was initially developed as a means to dope semiconductors in the fabrication of integrated
circuits. The accuracy, cleanliness and controllability of this process have made it the standard for
semiconductor manufacturing, lon implantation is generally preferred over other surface modification methods
because it does not delaminate, does not require high temperatures and does not deform or alter the dimensions
of the treated surface.

Thin film coatings were initially developed to interconnect transistors on semiconductor chips. Thin
films modify surfaces by layering a desired metal or ceramic coating on the substrate material. Common thin
film coating techniques include chemical vapor deposition and physical vapor deposition.

fon Implantation. lon implantation is a process by which ions (electrically charged atoms) are
accelerated to high velocity in a vacuum and directed toward a substrate or target material. The atoms become
embedded just below the surface of the material producing an alloy composed of the atoms and the substrate
material in the near-surface region of the target material. This surface alloy may have new mechanical,
electrical, chemical, optical and other propertics. We believe our proprietary technology, including high current
ion sources and specialized component holding fixtures, provides higher ion implant doses and higher beam
power and yields superior surface characteristics at lower cost than commercially available equipment.

Ion implantation can be used to embed single isotopes of radicactive or non-radioactive elements into
components. We are using our proprietary equipment to manufacture radioactive seed implants for the treatment
of prostate cancer and other carcinomas which can be manufactured without expensive cyclotrons or linear
accelerators and without hazardous radioactive wet chemistry, the methods currently employed by existing
suppliers.

Thin Film Coatings. A thin film coating is grown upon a substrate in a vacuum by the gradual
deposition of atoms on the substrate. Qur proprietary unbalanced magnetron sputtering process results in
coatings that are extremely dense and free of voids, yielding good contrast and sharp edges under x-ray or
fluoroscopic examination. These coatings usually consist of gold or platinum for radiopaque applications. Qur
proprietary manufacturing process allows for efficient utilization of precious metals and for cost effective
recovery and recycling of these precious metals. We are also developing processes to coat stents, guidewires and
catheters used in interventional cardiology procedures with substances, usually gold or platinum, that allow
those stents, guidewires and catheters to be visible under x-ray observation during a procedure. We believe other
techniques for applying thin film coatings are less desirable for medical device applications because of their
inability to apply a dense coating, while continuing to be flexible and adhering to the substrate.

Trace Explosives Detection. We have developed an instrument, which can detect the vapor from trace
amounts of explosive compounds including plastic explosives such as RDX, the compound commonly found in
C4 explosives. The system works by ionizing explosive molecules in an air sample and then detecting the
ionized molecules of the explosive using ion mobility spectrometry. The instrument has successfully detected
molecules of five different types of explosives in the air at the parts per trillion concentrations. We believe this
technology will provide commercial systems with improved sensitivity and capabilities than equipment
presently available.

Medical Products
Permanent Implants for the Treatment of Prostate Cancer

General. The alternatives generally presented to patients diagnosed with early stage prostate cancer are
surgical removal of the prostate (radical prostatectomy) or external beam radiation. Both techniques frequently
have significant side effects including impotence and incontinence. Brachytherapy has been an increasingly




popular treatment technique whereby radicactive seeds (each of which is approximately half the size of a grain
of rice) are permanently implanted into the prostate. This technique allows the delivery of highly concentrated
yet confined doses of radiation directly to the prostate. Surrounding healthy tissues and organs are spared
significant radiation exposure. Advances in transrectal ultrasound and computed tomography imaging
cquipment provide detailed and precise measurements of prostate size and shape, for seed distribution and
placement.

Prostate Seeds. We have developed, and been granted six United States patents covering radioactive
seeds, implants and methods of manufacturing radioactive seed implants by a proprietary process and other
brachytherapy applications. We have received Food and Drug Administration 510(k) clearance to market our -
Plant™ lodine-125 radioactive seed for the treatment of prostate cancer. Our 510(k) clearance permits treatment
of any localized tumors treatable by temporary or permanent brachytherapy. A twelve-year study conducted by
the Northwest Hospital, Seattle, Washington shows that this treatment has a twelve-year disease-free survival
rate equal to surgical removal of the prostate and may be superior to other early stage treatments, with a
substantial reduction in the negative side effects of impotence and incontinence, frequently associated with
surgery and external beam radiation treatment. The National Cancer Institute and American Cancer Society have
reported that sexual impotency after implantation of radioactive seeds has been 10 - 30%, which compares with
rates of 65 - 90% for radical prostatectomy and 40 - 60% for external beam radiation therapy. Our production
method, involving a proprietary dry fabrication process, does not use radioactive wet chemistry. On July 28,
1999 we received our Radioactive Sealed Source Registration Certificate, a Nuclear Regulatory Commission
requirement administered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Agreement State. These seeds have been on sale in the U.S. for six ycars.

Manufacruring. Management believes that the Company's manufacturing process results in lower
capital equipment and manufacturing assembly costs and is less hazardous than the manufacturing processes
used by our competitors. Other radioactive prostate seed manufacturers use radioactive wet chemistry during
seed assembly for lodine-125 products. Our dry process, for which we have two patents issued, uses a dry
fabrication process, and we believe it requires fewer personnel and yields faster throughput. Following seed core
ion implantation, we send the cores to a nuclear reactor for activation. Using this dry fabrication process, seed
cores can be fabricated and inventoried in large quantities and activated only when ordered. Due to the short
half-life of Iodine-125 (approximatcly 60 days), the competition must assemble and ship seeds on a tight
schedule so they can be implanted into the patient at the appropriate radioactive strength. We maintain multiple
source vendors for our raw materials supplics in the construction of our radioactive prostate seeds, including
Trace Sciences International, Wheaton USA Products, Alfa Aesar, Mick Radio Nuclear, Quartz Plus and
Braxton Manufacturing.

Sales. Since August 2003, the Company has used its own direct sales force and several independent
sales representatives to sell prostate seeds to many different customers.

Treatment Planning Sofiware

General, In May 2005, Implant Sciences acquired proprictary treatment planning technology from
Rosses Medical Systems, Inc. The Company is investing resources to enhance the capabilities of this preduct to
include a new module which aids the physician in making 2 and 3 dimensional maps of the stage, grade and
location of cancer within the prostate gland. This “Pathology Mapping Module™ is in addition to the standard
treatment planning function used for prostate brachytherapy and will provide for image guided, focal treatment
for the disease. The product is being marketed as 1-Plant™ TPS.

Sales. This product is presently being sold by our direct sales force.
Breast Cancer Radiation Treatment

General. Early stage breast cancer is commonly treated by lumpectomy followed by a course of 35
sessions of external beam radiation to the whole breast over a seven weck term. Over the past several years,
Accelerated Partial Breast Irradiation (APBI) has been increasing in popularity with patients because it can be
completed in four to five days on an outpatient basis and has shown equal efficacy with good cosmetic
outcomes. Approximately 600 to 1,000 patients have already been treated using this new temporary
brachytherapy technique. Currently this treatment is performed using a conventional HDR (High Dose
Radiation) system using an iridium -192 tadioactive source. A significant drawback of the cwrently used




iridium -192 source is that the treatments must be performed in a heavily concrete shielded room to prevent the
very penetrating iridium -192 gamma rays irradiating people in hallways and adjacent rooms. A very small
percentage of U.S. hospitals currently have such dedicated HDR concrete shielded rooms for brachytherapy.
The Company has developed a new lower energy source, ytterbium -169 which can deliver the same therapeutic
dose to the lumpectomy cavity and does not require a concrete shiclded treatment room. The procedure can be
done in an ordinary treatment room with some portable shielding around the patient using a conventional
afterloader system. This source assembly has received a 510(k) pre-market clearance from the FDA and does
not require clinical trials prior to commercial sales.

Manufacturing. The Company will manufacture the ytterbium -169 source material in-house using
several nuclear reactors as subcontractors. Versions of the Yb-169 source assembly will be designed to fit all
afterloader systems presently on the market.

Sales. We expect that the source wires wiil be sold by the manufacturers of the afterloaders or through
direct selling efforts, This new product will be purchased by the Radiation Oncology Department of hospitals
which is the same customer our existing prostate seed salesmen call on.

Orthopedic Total Joint Replacements

General. We provide surface engineering technology to manufacturers of orthopedic hip and knee total
joint replacements. The majority of existing hip and knee joint replacetnents are made of a cobalt chromium
femoral component that articulates against a polyethylene component. While offering excelient
biocompatibility and superior wear resistance over prior alloys and designs and potentially lenger average life
than prior alloys, cobalt chromium devices still suffer from particle generation where the metal and polyethylene
components articulate against each other. This particle generation has been identified as the primary cause of
implant loosening due to osteolysis requiring repeat surgery,

Orthopedics. We implant cobalt chromium components of total joint replacements manufactured by
our customers with nitrogen ions, Nitrogen ion implantation of these components reduces polyethylene wear by
modifying the native oxide present in cobalt chromium alloys. Laboratory tests and clinical studies have shown
that nitrogen jon implanted cobalt chromium components offer superior performance over untreated
components, significantly reducing wear and slowing the incidence of osteolysis which ultimately leads to
revision surgery.

Manufacturing. We believe we now operate one of the highest beam-current ion implanters vused in the
medical field. This equipment has higher throughput and lower cost than equipment with a lower beam-current.
For our new second-generation orthopedic coating, this equipment can provide a ceramic coating with superior
characteristics due to its patented “blended interface” process. We maintain multiple source vendors for our gas
supplies, the primary raw material used in the ion implantation process in providing this service, including
Praxair and Matheson.

Sales. We currently implant cobalt chromium components of total joint replacements made by our
customers with nitrogen ions and are developing ceramic ion beam synthesis techniques for total joint
replacements. We reccive untreated cobalt chromium total joint replacements from our customers and implant
them at our facility, We then invoice and ship the implanted total joint replacements to our customers. We
maintain one major customer which accounted for 6% and 13% of total revenues in the year ended June 30,
2006 and 20035, respectively.

Markets. Osteoarthritis is a natural result of the aging process and is the predominant cause of the need
for joint replacement. We believe that longer life expectancy as well as the growth in the number of people over
age 50 will cause the demand for total joint replacement to increase. According to the American Academy of
Orthopedic Surgeons, the hip and knee total joint replacement market was estimated to be 650,000 procedures in
the United States. We treat approximately 60,000 units each year using our ion implantation process for the
Stryker-Orthepaedics Division of Stryker Corporation. Qur next generation surface treatment using ion beam
synthesized ceramic has been shown to decrease wear debris generation by two-thirds, which we believe will
reduce osteolysis and thereby reduce the need for revision surgery.



Radiopaque and other Coatings. We have developed proprietary methods for applying radiopague
coatings onto a varicty of medical devices manufactured by our customers in order to increase the visibility of
such devices during interventional cardiology and other catheter-based procedures. These biocompatible
coatings are deposited using a proprietary unbalanced magnetron sputtcred coating process. The resulting
coating is extremely dense and free of voids yielding good contrast and sharp edges under x-ray or fluoroscopic
examination. We use this process to coat stents and other vascular access devices. Additionally, we have
developed a well adhered conductive coating used as electrodes in neural stimulation applications.

Security Products
Trace Explosives Detection Equipment

General. We are developing several explosive detection systems that could be used in airports, public
and government buildings, and sporting event facilities. The systems use our proprietary technology, which
includes the use of laser beams in combination with ion mobility spectrometry, to electronically detect minute
quantities of explosive vapor molecules in the air.

This research has been ongoing since May 1999. This project was undertaken in responsc to the interest
in ion beam phenomena by our research personnel who are constantly researching new applications for this
technology. The development of new applications is typically funded through government grants or internal
funding.

The Department of Transportation has stated that the U.S. could spend between $1.9 billion and $2.5
billion on equipment for the detection of bulk and trace amounts of explosives. However, we do not know how
much will be allocated to each of trace and bulk equipment or how much allocated to equipment for the
detection of trace amounts of explosives will be allocated to devices like ours.

In June 2000, we developed our first experimental device, which demonstrated sensitivity to the
explosive TNT. In June 2001, we developed a second-generation prototype with increased sensitivity and
selectivity, This device was able to detect and specify an increasing number of compounds within various
explosive materials. The explosives that have been tested to date arc TNT, RDX, PETN, EGDN, and DNT.
RDX is the primary component of C3 and C4 explosives, such as Detasheet and Semtex, as well as certain types
of black powder explosives. We believe these explosives represent the majority of the explosives presently used
in terrorist activities. During fiscal 2003, the Company began taking orders for, and shipping, product previously
undcr development,

The electronic detection system delects microscopic quantities of explosive molecules in the air. The
device does not use any radioactive materials and does not produce a danger to personnel operating the device
or scanned by the device. The device is a sensor that receives signals that are already in the environment. Our
electronic detection system uses a sensor that does not require physical contact to screen the article to detect
trace residues. Since our device does not use a radioactive source, management belicves it is safer than trace
explosives residue detection systems currently in use.

Consistent with our policy to protect our proprietary technologies, we have been awarded five patents
and submitted four additional patent applications to the United States Patent and Trademark Office. These
patent applications will cover specific design configurations that are responsible for our improved vapor
detection sensitivity. The Company has outsourced the manufacturing of our current trace explosives detector
products to a contract manufacturer.

Semiconductor Products
Semiconductor fon Implantation

General. We supply ion implantation and analytical services to numerous semiconductor
manufacturers, rescarch laboratoties, and research universities. lon implantation of electronic dopants into
silicon, the process by which silicon is turned into a semiconductor, is an integral part of the integrated circuit
fabrication process. While many of our customers have their own ion implantation equipment, they often use




our services and specialized expertise for research and new product development because they do not want to
interfere with production or because they are unable to perform the services themselves.

In October 2004, we acquired Core Systems and doubled our scmiconductor ion implantation
equipment and capacity. This acquisition enabled us to expand our revenue base by affording us the opportunity
to service a new pool of customers not available to us in the past as our existing ion implantation equipment
limited our processing capabilities. [n addition, through this acquisition, new revenuc opportunitics were gained
the areas of semiconductor equipment refurbishing services and the sale of source conditioning equipment.

We further expanded our semiconductor business through the acquisition of Accurel Systems in March
2005. Through this acquisition, we are able to offer analytical and failure analysis diagnostic services to the
manufacturers of semiconductor products. The Company believes that through the consolidation of our
processing efforts and complimentary services these acquisitions provide, we will be able to expand our
semiconductor implantation services to include high volume production customers while continuing to service
our existing R & D and pilet production customers, both domestically and internationally,

Marketing and Sales

Our markcting and sales methods vary according to the characteristics of each of our main business
arcas. Sales and marketing to the medical device markets are through our own direct sales force and several
independent sales representatives. Qur semiconductor segment includes implant services and implant diagnostic
services. Our Vice President, General Manager of Core Systems, along with an inside salcs staff and several
independent sales representatives, are responsible for semiconductor ion implantation services, including disk
refurbishment and source conditioner sales, The President of Accurel Systems is responsible for sales of our
semiconductor analytical services. Our Vice President of Security Products Sales and Marketing is responsible
for sales and marketing of our trace explosives technology, assisted by an inside sales staff and international
sales reps. Sales of our brachytherapy products are the responsibility of our Director of Brachytherapy Products,
The Company uses both inside direct sales personnel and independent sales representatives to sell our products.
The solicitation and proposal process for research and development contracts and grants are conducted by our
President, our Chief Scientist, and our scientific staff.

Medical Sales and Marketing

To promote sales of our radicactive prostate sceds and treatment planning systems, we exhibit at
various medical trade shows, including the American Association of Physicists in Medicine (AAPM) show and
the Amertcan Society for Therapeutics Radiology and Oncology (ASTRO) show, which are attended by the vast
majority of our potential customers, Sales are then concluded by our Director of Brachytherapy Products and
several independent sales representatives,

In the business of ion implantation for total joint replacements, we concentrate on identifying and
serving leading manufacturers, Where possible, we attempt to become the sole provider of devices or surface
engineering services to each such manufacturer. Qur marketing and sales efforts require considerable direct
contact and typically involve a process of customer education in the merits of our technology. We accomplish
this by first researching customer needs, delivering scientific papers at orthopedic and biomaterial conferences,
and through presentations at customer sites. Our research and development programs, both independent and in
conjunction with a customer specific need, as well as our patent portfolio, are integral components of the
marketing process.

To promote sales of our radiopaque coatings, we attend trade shows, use press releascs and call
customers who we believe have an application for our technology. Once a customer's interest is established, the
sales process proceeds with an initial demonstration project funded by the customer. A sct of developmental
runs are then performed to determine project feasibility and to roughly optimize a parameter sct for deposition.
After testing the samples generated, and considering cost estimates for production guantities, the customer may
authorize us to proceed to pilot production.

In pilot production, typicall)'(, several hundred units are produced in a manner cquivalent to the
envisioned full production method. Pilot production may be done on an existing picce of equipment with




customer/device specific fixturing, or on a prototype machine, depending on the complexity of the process and
device. Samples made in pilot production arc fabricated into complete devices and used by the customer for
further testing, clinical studics, FDA submissions, and marketing and sales efforts.

Semiconductor Sales and Marketing

Since semiconductor ion implantation is a standard process in all integrated circuit fabrication,
customers usually know what they want and little education is necessary. Our services are promoted and sold
through trade shows, advertising in trade magazines, direct mailings and press releases. Most of our specialty
implant sales are between $600 and $2,500 per order and take less than one day to complete. The entire sales
effort is ofien conducted by telephone. Our sales range from production customers to outsourced customer-
specified ion implantation scrvices, which the customer's own ion implantation department is unable or
unwilling to perform, to small research projects. Production implant sales are usually through long-term blanket
purchase orders where our services are integrated seamlessly into our customer’s production line.

Semiconductor analytical services arc promoted through Accurel Systems. These sales are promoted
through trade shows, and a dircct sales force dedicated to this product line.

Government Contracts

Research and development contracts from the U.S. government must be won through a competitive
proposal process which undergoes peet review. We are in frequent contact with the National Institutes of
Health, the Department of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security and other agencies at technical
conferences 1o stay informed of the government's needs. We believe our management and senior scientific staff
have eamed a strong reputation with these and other agencies. To date we have been awarded research and
development contracts by the National Institute of Health, the Department of Defense, the National Science
Foundation, the National Aeronautics and Space Administration, the Environmental Protection Agency and the
Department of Homeland Security.

Research and Development

Our technical staff consists of 50 scientists and engineers, including three with Ph.D. degrees, and the
remaining with Masters Degrees, Bachelor Degrees or with expertise in physical sciences and engineering. All
of our existing and planned products rely on proprietary technologies developed in our rescarch and
development laboratories. Our research and development efforts may be self-funded, funded by corporate
partners or by awards under the Small Business Innovative Research and other programs of the U.S.
government, Under the Small Business Innovative Research program, we retain the right to patent anything
developed pursuant to the program, however, the U.S. govenment retains a royalty free license to use the
technology. We have obtained over $12 million in U.S. government grants and contracts over the past 18 years.
Fach research and development agreement with our corporate partners defines the rights to these agreements.

We spent approximately $4,088,000, $3,633,000 and $3,841,000 on research and development in the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Approximately $2,775,000, $1,691,000 and
$2,210,000 of these rescarch and development activitics represents research and development costs that were
directly sponsored by customers primarily in the form of government contracts and grants during 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Patents and Proprietary Technology

It is our policy to protect our proprictary position by, among other methods, filing United States and
foreign patent applications. We currently have scventeen issued United States patents and nine United States
patent applications pending. Of the seventeen patents issucd, five are of material importance to us and are in the
explosives detection. These five material patents expire in the years 2021 through 2023.

We intend to seck further patents on our technologies, if appropriate. However, there can be no
assurance that patents will be issued for any of our pending or future applications or that any claim altowed from
such applications will be of sufficient scope or strength, or be issued in all countries where we sell our products
and services, to provide meaningful protection or any commetcial advantage 1o us.




We also rely on unpatented proprietary technology, trade secrets and know-how and we do not know if
others will independently develop substantially equivalent proprictary information, techniques or processes, that
such technology or know-how will not be disclosed or that we can meaningfully protect our rights to such
unpatented proprietary technology, trade secrets or know-how. Although we have entered into non-disclosure
agreements with our employees and consultants, we cannot be sure such non-disclosure agreements will provide
adequate protection for our trade secrets or other proprietary know-how.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

Medical devices incorporating our technologies, such as radioactive prostate seeds and intcrventional
cardiology devices are subject to FDA regulation. The burden of securing FDA clearance or approval for these
core business medical devices rests with our medical device manufacturers or licensees. We have received Food
and Drug Administration 510(k) clearance to market our I-Plant™ lodine-125 radioactive seed for the treatment
of prostate cancer.

In the 510(k} clearance procedure, a company must show that its new product is “substantially
equivalent” to a medical device that is currently approved for use. This process requires an application to the
FDA. If the FDA determines that a product is in fact substantially equivalent to a product that has already been
approved for use, the FDA grants 510(k) clearance for the sale of the new product. This process is quicker and
less expensive than obtaining approval for an entirely new product. We abtained 510(k) clearance for our I-
Plant™ prostate seed product in May 1999. All of our presently contemplated new medical products require a
510(k) clearance only.

Our medical device manufacturing facility operates under the FIDA Quality Contro! Regulations. Our
facility, located in Wakefield, Massachusetts, was registered with the FDA in July 2000 prior to the introduction
and commercial sales of our radicactive prostate seed product. Our facility is subject to the FDAs inspection at
any time. The FDA has inspected Implant Sciences’ medical manufacturing facilities and found its Quality
System to meet their requirements. The FDA regulates the medical device industry and has the authority to
demand corrective action(s) for any deficiencies in adherence to Quality System Regulations, order product
recalls, and can require that a factory cease operations until it is brought into compliance with these regulations,
Implant Sciences’ Quality Systems Manager ensures adherence to the FDA’s Quality System Regulations as
well as to the ISO 9001 standard. ’

In addition to FDA regulation, certain of ocur activities are regulated by, and require approvals from,
other federal and state agencies such as the Massachusetts Department of Public Health, the Department of
Transportation and the Federal Aeronautics Administration.

In order to ship our radioactive prostate seed product from our facility, we are requircd to obtain a
radioactive sealed source registration from the Massachusetts Department of Public Health. We obtained this
certificate prior to the commencement of the commercial sales of our radioactive prostate seed product in the
first half of fiscal 2001. This certificate requires no maintenance or renewal as long as the design of the
radioactive prostate seed is not changed. The Massachusetts Department of Public Health can, however,
terminate this certification in the event of an accident that would require a redesign of the product. On July 28,
1999, we received our Radicactive Sealed Source Registration Certificate, a Nuclear Regulatory Commission
requirement, administered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Agreement State.

The State Radiation Control Program issued to us a license to manufacture and distribute our
radioactive prostate seed product. The State Radiation Control Program performs periodic inspections of our
facility. Since the commencement of commercial sales of our radioactive prostate seed product in the first half
of fiscal 2001, the State Radiation Control Program has performed two inspections of the facility and identified
no violations or deficiencies.

Furthermore, our use, management, transportation, and disposal of certain chemicals and wastes are
subject to regulation by several federal and state agencies depending on the nature of the chemical or waste
material. Certain toxic chemicals and products containing toxic chemicals require special reporting 1o the United
States Environmental Protection Agency and/or its state counterparts. We are not aware of any specific




environmental liabilities that we could incur. Our future operations may require additional approvals from
federal and/or state environmental agencies, the cost and effects of which cannot be determined at this time.

Competition

In radioactive products, such as prostate seed implants, radioactive brachytherapy devices and coronary
stents, we expect to compete with Oncura Corp., Theragenics Corp., and North American Scientific, Inc., all of
which serve substantially the entire radioactive prostate seed market. The number and types of procedures being
performed on the prostate are increasingly drawing new entrants into the market. We believe that competition,
and, in turn, pricing pressures may increase. Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial,
technical and marketing resources than we do.

Many medical device manufacturers have developed or are engaged in efforts to develop internal
sutface modification technologies for use on their own products. Most companies that market surface
modification to the outside marketplace are divisions of organizations with businesses in addition to surface
modification. Many of our existing and potential competitors (including medical device manufacturers pursuing
coating solutions through their own research and development efforts) have substantially greater financial,
technical and marketing resources than we do.

With respect to ion implantation of orthopedic implants, we primarily compete with Spire Corporation.
Competition within the orthopedic implant industry is primarily conducted on the basis of service and product
design. Price competition has abated somewhat in the case of first time and more youthful patients where
higher-cost and more durable reconstructive devices are preferred. We attempt to differentiate ourselves from
our competition by providing what we believe are high value-added solutions to surface modification. We
believe that the primary factors customers consider in choosing a particular surface modification technology are
performance, case of manufacturing, ability to produce multiple properties from a single process, compliance
with manufacturing regulations, customer service pricing, turnaround time, and the ability to work with a variety
of materials. We believe that our process competes favorably with respect to these factors. We believe that the
cost and time required to acquire equipment and technical engineering talent, as well as to obtain the necessary
regulatory approvals, significantly reduces the likelihood of a manufacturer changing the coating process it uses
after a device has been approved for marketing.

Our competition in the semiconductor. industry consists primarily of one company: Innovion
Corporation. This company is located in San Jose, California and primarily serves the silicon wafer production
needs of semiconductor factories in their local area. We serve both cast and west coast factories with silicon
production and research and development laboratories worldwide.

In the trace explosives detection industry, lon Track Division of General Electric and the Barringer
Division of Smiths Plc. are our two primary competitors. These two companies also use ion mobility
spectrometry; however, they use a radioactive Nickel-63 source to ionize the explosive molecules. This
technology differs from our technology in that we do not use a radioactive source to ionize the explosive
molecules in the air. We believe our technology provides our device with greater capabilitics and less regulatory
restrictions.

Many of our competitors and potential competitors have substantially greater capital resources than we
do and also have greater resources and expertise in the areas of research and development, obtaining regulatory
approvals, manufacturing and marketing. There can be no assurance that our competitors and potential
competitors will not succeed in developing, marketing and distributing technologies and products that are more
effective than those developed and marketed by us or that would render our technology and products obsolete or
noncompetitive. Additionally, there is no assurance that we will be able to compete effectively against such
competitors and potential competitors in terms of manufacturing, marketing and sales.

Product Liability and Insurance

Our business entails the risk of product liability claims. Although we have not experienced any product
liability claims to date, there can be no assurance that such claims will not be asserted or that we will have
sufficient resources to satisfy any liability resulting from such claims. We curmrently have product liability
insurance coverage on our medical device products. There can be no assurance that product liability claims will




not exceed such insurance coverage limits, that such insurance will continue to be available on commercially
reasonable terms or at all, or that a product liability claim would not materially adversely affect the business,
financial condition or our results of operations,

Employees

As of June 30, 2006, we had 150 full time employees. We believe we maintain good relations with our
employees. None of our employees are represented by a union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Geographic Areas

The majority of the Company’s revenues are derived from domestic sales. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, foreign sales represented 17% of total revenue, with the majority of these sales coming from
Asia. In fiscal 2006, the Company had one customer from China representing 10% of the Company’s annual
revenue. For each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, foreign sales represented less than 5% of
total revenue.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

This Report on Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that are based on current
expectations. In light of the important factors that can materially affect results, including those set forth in this
paragraph and below, the inclusion of forward-looking information herein should not be regarded as a
representation by the Company or any other person that the objectives or plans of the Company will be
achieved. The Company has received a qualified opinion that it is a going concern. The Company may
encounter competitive, technological, financial and business challenges making it more difficult than expected
to continue to develop and market its products; the market may not accept the Company's existing and future
products; the Company may be unable to retain existing key management personnel; the Company has pending
litigation; the Company has net losses; the Company may not be able to raise additional capital; and there may
be other material adverse changes in the Company's operations or business. Assumptions relating to budgeting,
marketing, and other management decisions are subjective in many respects and thus susceptible to
interpretations and periodic revisions based on actual experience and business developments, the impact of
which may cause the Cormpany to alter its marketing, or other budgets, which may in turn affect the Company's
financial position and results of operations. The reader is therefore cautioned not to place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements contained herein, which speak solely as of the date of this Form 10-K. The
Company assumes no responsibility to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.

The following factors should be considered carefullj/ in evaluating the Company and its business:
The Company has received a modified audit opinion on its ability te continue as a going concern.

The audit report our independent registered public accounting firm issued on our audited financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 contains a modification regarding our ability to continue as a
going concern. This modification indicates that there is substantial doubt on the part of our independent
registered public accounting firm that we can continue as a going concern in that we did not have sufficient cash
and liquid assets at June 30, 2006, to cover our operating capital requirements for the next twelve-month period
and if sufficient cash cannot be obtained we would have to substantially alter our operations, or we may be
foreed to discontinue operations. Such an opinion from our independent registered public accounting firm may
limit our ability to access certain types of financing, or may prevent us from obtaining financing on acceptable
terms.

We do not operate at a profit and do not expect to be profitable for some time.

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2006, we had a net loss of approximately $7,084,000 and a
net loss applicable to common shareholders of approximately $8,173,000. We plan to further increase our
expenditures to complete the development and commercialization of our new products, to ensure compliance
with the Food and Drug Administration’s Quality System Regulations and to broaden our sales and marketing




capabilities. Asa result, we believe that we will likely incur losses over the next several quarters. Our
accumulated deficit as of June 30, 2006 is approximately $36,290,000.

Intense competition and rapid technological change could harm our financial performance.

The medical device industry is characterized by rapidly evolving technology and intense competition.
In our radioactive products, such as prostate seed implants and radioactive brachytherapy devices, we compete
with many other companies selling similar products with certain of such companies serving substantially the
entire radioactive prostate seed market. In our semiconductor market we compete with many companies,
including companies that have in-house capabilities to implant, diagnose and repair their own wafers. In our
explosives detection equipment market, we compete with many companies, including companies that have
substantially greater capital resources, greater research and development, manufacturing and marketing
resources and experience and greater name recognition than we do. In addition, we expect new entrants into our
markets. There can be no assurance that our competitors will not succeed in developing or marketing
technologies and products that are more effective than our products or that would render our products obsolete
or noncompetitive. Moreover, there can be no assurance that we will be able to price our products and services
at ot below the prices of competing products and technologies in order to facilitate market acceptance. In
addition, new procedures and medications could be developed that replace or reduce the importance of
procedures that use our products. Accordingly, our success will depend, in part, on our ability to respond
quickly to medical and technological changes through the development and introduction of new products and
enhancements. Product development involves a high degree of risk, and there can be no assurance that our new
product development cfforts will result in any commercially successful products. Our failure to compete or
respond to technological change in an effective manner would have a material adverse affect on our business
and results of operations.

QOur medical products and technologies may not be accepted by the medical community which could
harm our financial performance.

There can be no assurance that our radioactive prostate seeds, brachytherapy sources, orthopedic
implant coatings, or radiopaque coatings will achieve acceptance, or continue to receive acceptance, by the
medical community and market acceptance gencrally. The degree of market acceptance for our products and
services will also depend upon a number of factors, including the receipt and timing of regulatory approvals and
the establishment and demonstration in the medical community and among health care payers of the clinical
safety, efficacy and cost effectiveness of our products. Certain of the medical indications that can be treated by
our devices or devices treated using our coatings can also be treated by other medical procedures. Decisions to
purchase our products will primarily be influenced by members of the medical community, who will have the
choice of recommending medical treatments, such as radiotherapeutic seeds, or the more traditional alternatives,
such as surgery and external beam radiation therapy. Many altcrnative treatments ‘currently are widely accepted
in the medical community and have a long history of use. There can be no assurance that our devices or
technologies will be able to replace such cstablished treatments or that physicians, health care payers, patients or
the medical community in general will accept and utilize our devices or any other medical products that may be
developed or treated by us even if regulatory and reimbursement approvals are obtained. Long-term market
acceptance of our products and services will depend, in part, on the capabilities, operating features and price of
our products and technologies as compared to those of other available products and services. Failure of our
products and technologies to gain market acceptance would have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

Our explosives detection products and technologies may not be accepted by government agencies,
airports or airlines which could harm cur future financial performance.

There can be no assurance that our explosives detection systems will achieve acceptance by the
domestic and international airports, government agencies and airlines, and market acceptance generally. The
degree of market acceptance for our explosives detection products and services will also depend upon a number
of factors, including the receipt and timing of regulatory approvals and the establishment and demonstration of
the ability of our proposed device to detect trace explosives residues on personnel, baggage and other cargo
prior to embarking on aircraft.
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Our future profitability depends on whether our products can successfully compete in the commercial
marketplace.

We currently market radioactive prostate seeds. We also provide ion implantation services for ion
implantation of semiconductors and medical devices. We also provide diagnostic services on semiconductor
wafers. We plan to market radiopaque coatings, and explosive detection systems that may require substantial
further investment in rescarch, product development, preclinical and clinical testing and governmental
regulatory approvals prior to being marketed and sold. Our ability to increase revenues and achieve profitability
and positive cash flow will depend, in part. on our ability to complete such product development efforts, obtain
such regulatory approvals, and establish manufacturing and marketing programs and gain market acceptance for
such proposed products,

The market for explosive detection systems is intensely competitive and is characterized by
continuously developing technology and frequent introductions of new products and features. We expect
competition to increase as other companies introduce additional and more competitive products in the explosive
detection systems market as we develop the capabilities and enhancements of our trace detection systems. Each
of our competitors may have substantially greater financial resources than us.

We believe that our ability to compete in the explosive detection systems market is based upon such
factors as: product performance, functionality, quality and features; quality of customer support services,
documentation and training; and the capability of the technology to appeal to broader applications beyond the
inspection of passengers, baggage, and cargo carried on airlines. Although we believe that our currently
developed product has all of the capabilitics to meet the United States government’s decree that all passengers,
baggage, and cargo carried on airlines must be screened thoroughly, certain of our competitors may have an
advantage over our existing technology with respect to these factors. There can be no assurance that we will be
successful in convincing potential customers that our products will be superior to other systems given all of the
necessary performance criteria, that new systems with comparable or greater performance, lower price and
faster or equivalent throughput will not be introduced, or that, if such products are introduced, customers will
not delay or cancel potential orders for us yet to be commercialized system. Further, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to bring to commercialization and further enhance our product to better compete on the
basis of cost, throughput, accommodation of detection of passengers, baggage or other cargo carried onto
airlines, or that we will otherwise be able to compete successfully with existing or new competitors.

Our product development efforts are subject to the risks inherent in the development of such products.
These risks include the possibility that development costs will be much greater than currently anticipated, that
our products will be found to be ineffective or unsafe, or will otherwise fail to receive necessary regulatory
approvals; that the products will be difficult to manufacture on a large scale or be uneconomical to market; that
the proprictary rights of third partics will interfere with our product development; or that third parties will
market superior or equivalent products which achieve greater market acceptance. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to conduet our product development efforts within the time frames currently
anticipated or that such efforts will be completed successfully,

There are risks relating to our Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement with Rapiscan
Systems, Inc.

In March of 2005, we entered into a Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Rapiscan Systems, Inc. (“Rapiscan™). Under the terms of this agreement, we gave Rapiscan
the exclusive worldwide rights to market our Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace detection devices
under their private label. We also agreed to give Rapiscan the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute certain
other new security products which we may develop in the future with their funding, as well as rights, in some
circumstances, 1o manufacture certain components of the Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace
detection devices.

In March 2006, the Company brought suit against Rapiscan and its parcnt, OS] Systems, Inc. The
Company is requesting rescission of the Agreement, for lack of performance and other grounds or in the
alternative, termination of the Agrcement due to material breaches of contract and implied covenant of good
faith and fair dealing and for damages. Should the Company be unsuccessful in prosecuting its lawsuit, it could
have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.




In March 2006, the Company rcceived notice that Rapiscan filed a complaint against the Company
regarding the Agreement. Rapiscan’s complaint is based upon claims of breach of contract, breach of warranty
and tortuous interference with contractual relations and is requesting a decree for specific performance,
declaratory relief and injunctive relicf. Should the Company be unsuccessful in defending itself in the lawsuit, it
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Limitations on our ability to protect our intellectual property or continue 10 use our intellectual property
could harm our financial performance.

Our ability to compete cffectively will depend, to a significant extent, on our ability to operate without
infringing the intellectual property rights of others. Many participants in the medical device area aggressively
seck patent protection and have increasing numbers of patents, and have frequently demonstrated a readiness to
commence litigation based on patent infringement. Third parties may assert exclusive patent rights to
technologies that arc important to us.

Although we have seventecn United States patents issued and nine United States patent applications
pending for our technology and processes, our success will depend, in part, on our ability to obtain the patents
applied for and maintain trade sccret protection for our technology and operate without infringing on the
proprictary rights of third partics. The validity and breadth of claims in medical technology patents involve
complex legal and factual questions and, therefore, may be highly uncertain. No assurance can be given that any
pending patent applications or any future patent application will issue as patents, that the scope of any patent
protection obtained will be sufficient to exclude competitors or provide competitive advantages to us, that any of
our patents will be held valid if subsequently challenged or that others will not claim rights in or ownership of
the patents and other proprietary rights held by us.

Our medical device products and services are subject to extensive government regulation. If we fail to
obtain or are delayed in obtaining the approval of the necessary federal and state government agencies,
our business could be materially affected.

The manufacture and sale of our medical device products and services are subject to extensive
regulation principally by the Food and Drug Administration in the United States and corresponding foreign
regulatory agencies in cach country in which we sell our products. These regulations affect product approvals,
product standards, packaging requirements, design requirements, manufacturing and quality assurance, labeling,
import restrictions, tariffs and other tax requirements. Securing Food and Drug Administration authorizations
and approvals requires submission of extensive clinical data and supporting information. In most instances, the
manufacturers or licensces of medical devices that are treated by us will be responsible for securing regulatory
approval for medical devices incorporating our technology. However, we plan on preparing and maintaining
Device Master Files which may be accessed by the Food and Drug Administration. There can be no assurance
that our medical device manufacturers or licensees will be able to obtain regulatory clearance or approval for
devices incorporating our technology on a timely basis, or at all. Regulatory clearance or approvals, if granted,
may include significant limitations of the indicated uses for which the product may be marketed. In addition,
product clcarance or approval could be withdrawn for failure to comply with regulatory standards or the
occurrence of unforeseen problems following initial marketing. Changes in existing regulations or adoption of
new governmental regulations or policics could prevent or delay regulatory approval of products incorporating
our technology or subject us 1o additional regulation,

in addition to Foed and Drug Administration regulation, certain of our activities are regulated by, and
require approvals from, other federal and state agencies. The use, management, transportation, and disposal of
certain matcrials and wastes arc subject to regulation by several federal and state agencies depending on the
nature of the materials or waste material. Certain toxic chemicals and products containing toxic chemicals may
require special reporting to the United States Environmental Protection Agency and/or its state counterparts. Our
future operations may require additional approvals from federal and/or state environmental agencies. There can
be no assurance that we will be able to obtain necessary government approvals, or that we will be able to operate
with the conditions that may be attached to future regulatory approvals, Moreover, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to maintain previously-obtained approvals. While it is our policy to comply with applicable
regulations, failure to comply with existing or future regulatory requircments and failure to obtain or maintain
necessary approvals coutd have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.
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Failure or delay of our medical device manufacturers in obtaining Food and Drug Administration and
other necessary regulatory clearance or approval, the loss of previously obtained clearance or approvals, as well
as failure to comply with other existing or future regulatory requirements could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Because certain of our products utilize radiation sources, their manufacture, distribution, transportation,
import/export, use and disposal will also be subject to federal, state and/or local laws and regulations relating to
the use, handling, procurement and storage of radioactive materials. We must also comply with United States
Department of Transportation regulations on the labeling and packaging requirements for shipment of radiation
sources to hospitals or other users of our products. We expect that there will be comparable regulatory
requirements and/or approvals in markets outside the United States. If any of the foregoing approvals are
significantly delayed or not obtained, our business could be materially adversely affected.

We depend on third party reimbursement to our customers for market acceptance of our medical
products. If third party payors fail to provide appropriate levels of reimbursement for our products, our
profitability would be adversely affected.

Medicare, Medicaid and other government insurance programs, as well as private insurance
reimbursement programs greatly affect supplicrs of health care products. Several of the products being
developed, produced or processed by us, including our orthopedic implants, prostate seeds, and interventional
cardiology instruments and devices, are currently being reimbursed by third party payers. Our customers rely on
third-party reimbursements to cover all or part of the costs of most of the procedures in which our products are
used. Third party payers (including health maintenance organizations) may affect the pricing or relative
attractiveness of our products by regulating the maximum amount of reimbursement provided by such payers to
the physicians, hospitals and clinics using our devices, or by taking the position that such reimbursement is not
available at all. The amounts of reimbursement by third party pavers in those states that do provide
reimbursement vary considerably.

Alternatively, a diagnostic-related group may be assigned that does not reflect the costs associated with
the use of our devices or devices treated using our services, resulting in limited reimbursement. If, for any
reason, the cost of using our products or services was not to be reimbursed by third party payers, our ability to
sell our products and services would be materially adversely affected. In the international market,
reimbursement by private third party medical insurance providers and governmental insurers and providers
varies from country to country. In certain countries, our ability to achieve significant market penctration may
depend upon the availability of third party governmental reimbursement.

Product liability claims could damage our reputation and hurt our financial results.

To date no product liability claims have been asserted against us; however, the testing, marketing and
sale of implantable devices and materials entail an inherent risk that product liability claims will be asserted
against us, if the use of our devices is alleged to have adverse effects on a patient, including exacerbation of a
patient’s condition, further injury, or death. A product liability claim or a product recall could have a material
adverse effect on our business. Certain of our devices are designed to be used in treatments of diseases where
there is a high risk of serious medical complications or death.

Although we have obtained product liability insurance coverage on medical products, there can be no
assurance that in the future we will be able to obtain such coverage on acceptable terms or that insurance will
provide adequate coverage against any or all potential claims. Furthermore there can be no assurance that we
will avoid significant product liability claims and the attendant adverse publicity. Any product liability claim or
other claim with respect to underinsured liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

If our contract manufacturer cannot provide the services we require, our ability to manufacture our
products could be harmed.

We rely on a single contract manufacturer to provide manufacturing services for our explosives
detection products. If these services become unavailable, we would be required to identify and enter into an
agreement with a new contract manufacturer or take the manufacturing in house. The loss of our contract




manufacturer could significantly disrupt production as well as increase the cost of production, thereby also
increasing the prices of our products. These changes could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

If we were to lose the services of either our president or our chief scientist, our business would be
adversely affected.

We are substantially dependent, for the foreseeable future, upon our Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Anthony J. Armini and our Vice President and Chief Scientist, Dr. Stephen N.
Burnker, both of whom currently devote their full time and cfforts to management. We have entered into an
employment agreement with each of these officers. If we were to lose the services of Dr. Armini or Dr. Bunker
for any significant period of time, our business would be materially adversely affected.

We will be required to redeem the Series D Preferred for cash if the five day average market price of our
comimon stock, prior to a redemption date, is less than 110% of the fixed conversion price.

We will be required to redeem the Series D Preferred for cash if the following conditions are not met:
(1) the shares must be issued pursuant to an effective registration statement, (2) the average closing market price
of the common stock for the five trading days immediately preceding a payment date must exceed the fixed
conversion price of $4.15 by 110% and no one day’s closing price may be less than the fixed conversion price,
and (3) the conversion dollar value may not exceed the aggregate of the prior 22 trading days’ dollar volume.
We cannot be certain that we will be able to redeem the monthly payment in shares of common stock on a
redemption date given the fixed conversion price of the preferred stock and the associated market price of the
common stock on a redemption date. If we are required to redeem monthly payments in cash, this will reduce
our working capita} necessary for our operations. Failure of our ability to convert prefetred shares into common
shares will have a material adverse affect on our cash resources. We may be required to reduce or curtail certain
operations and research and development projects to improve our cash resources.

If third party credit is unavailable, our working capital could be restricted; restrictions en our ability to
raise additional capital under certain circumstances.

Currently, we rely on cash generated from our opetations, private equity financing and third party
credit for working capital purposes. If such financing is no longer available at acceptabie rates, we would be
required to reduce or curtail our operations and research and development projects. This would have a material
adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further, from Match 4, 2005 and for a period 24 months thereafter, we are prohibited from issuing or
selling any debt or equity securities that are convertible into, exchangeable or exercisable for, or include the
right to receive additional shares of our common stock either:

u At a conversion, exercise or ¢xchange rate or other price that is based upon and/or varies with
the trading prices of or quotations for the shares of our common stock at any time after the initial
issuance of such debt or equity securities, or

. With a conversion, exercise or exchange price that is subject to being reset at some future date
after the initial issuance of such debt or equity security or upon the occurrence of specified or
contingent events directly or indirectly related to our business or the market for our common
stock, ’

To the extent that these prohibitions affect our ability to raise additional capital from potential future
investors, we would be required to reduce or curtail our operations and research and development projects. This
would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

At this time, the Company has an open comment letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission
relating to a registration statement on Form S-3 filed on November 22, 2005 to which we responded orally and
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in writing most recently on February 24, 2006. Subsequent, the Company will be filing an amendment to this S-
3 registration to address their comments. We believe that the remaining comments are not material.

ITEM2. PROPERTIES

We operate out of four separate locations. Qur corporate offices are located in an approximately 51,000
square foot leased facility in Wakefield, Massachusctts. The facility is located approximately 15 miles north of
Boston in a modern and well maintained business park. Qur current lease expires in December 2008. In addition
to our corporate offices, this facility houses all of our research and development, brachytherapy manufacturing,
as well as semiconductor wafer processing.

Our second location is in Sunnyvale, Califomnia, just outside of San Jose. This is where our Core
Systems division is located. We conduct our semiconductor wafer processing and semiconductor equipment
refurbishing services and sales in an approximately 35,000 square foot leased facility. This facility, specifically
designed to perform semiconductor services, is well maintained to ensure the integrity of the product produced.
This lease expires in December 2009,

Our third location, also located in Sunnyvale, CA, is Accurel Systems. This location, leased in a
modern and well maintained business park, consists of a total of approximately 20,000 square feet. This lease
expires in September 2010. We conduct our semiconductor analytical services at this location.

Our fourth location located in Austin, TX, is a satellite office of Accurel Systems. This location, in a
small business park, consists of a total of approximately 1,250 square fect. The leasc expires in September 2006.
The Company is currently negotiating terms on a new leasc.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROQCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various claims, legal proceedings and investigations covering a
wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary course of our business activities. Each of these matters is subject
to various uncertaintics,

On or about March 8, 2006, the Company commenced an arbitration under the Rules of the American
Arbitration Association against Respondents Majid Ghafghaichi (“Majid"} and Vahe Sarkissisian ("Vahe™),
seeking a total of $3,994,000 for indemnification of various “Losses,” as defined in, and expressly allowed
pursuant to, a Stock Purchase Agrecment dated March 9, 2005 (the “Agreement”), between the Company, as the
purchaser, Accurel Systems International Cotporation (“Accurel}, and Majid and Vahe, as the sellers of 100%
of the issued and outstanding shares of Accurel stock.

More specifically, there are four claims asserted by the Company against Respondents: (1) Damages of
$3.4 million resulting from misreprescntations concerning the loss of business from a key Accurel customer; (2)
unauthorized withdrawals in the amount of approximately $276,000 from Accurel by the Respondents prior to
the closing; (3) approximately $49,000 of disallowed transaction expenses that the Respondents improperly
received; and (4) undisclosed net liabilitics totaling approximately $269,000.

Respondents have asserted counterclaims sccking “an aggregate amount in excess of $1,750,000,”
based on the allegedly “late payment™ to Respondents of Company stock and a Secured Promissory Note as part
of the consideration for their sale of Accurel stock. The Company has filed a detailed denial of all
counterclaims.

The arbitration is now in the discovery phase, and the hearings are scheduled for February, 2007,

At this early stage of the proceedings, particularly before the commencement of depositions, it is
difficult to assess the final outcome of this arbitration. However, the Company believes that the counterclaims
have no merit, and will vigorously defend such counterclaims.

On March 23, 2005, we entered into a Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement (the
“Rapiscan Agreement™} with Rapiscan Systems, Inc. (“Rapiscan™). Under the terms of this agreement, we gave




Rapiscan the exclusive worldwide rights to market our Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace detection
devices under their private label. We also agreed to give Rapiscan the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute
certain other new security products which we may develop in the future with their funding, as well as rights, in
some circumstances, to manufacture certain components of the Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace
detection devices.

On March 24, 2006, the Company brought suit in the United States District Court in the District of
Massachusetts against Rapiscan and its parent, OSI Systems, Inc. (“OSI”). The Company is requesting
rescission of the Rapiscan Agreement, for lack of performance and other grounds. In the alternative, the
Company is secking termination of the Rapiscan Agreement due to material breaches of contract and implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing and for damages due to Rapiscan’s breach of contract and the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

On March 27, 2006, the Company received notice that Rapiscan filed a complaint against the Company
and its contract manufacturer, Colurbia Tech, in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California, regarding the Rapiscan Agreement. Rapiscan’s complaint against the Company is based upon claims
of breach of contract and breach of warranty and is requesting a decree for specific performance, declaratory
relief and injunctive relief. Rapiscan’s complaint against Columbia Tech is based upon injunctive relief,
declaratory relief and tortuous interference with contractual relations. On April 12, 2006, Rapiscan dismissed all
claims against Columbia Tech.

As of August 18, 2006, as a result of motions made by both parties, the two lawsuits have been
consolidated in the United States District Court for the Central District of California with the Company as
plaintiff. Presently, discovery is in process. Rapiscan and OSI have filed a motion to dismiss certain of the
Company's claims, The Company has not yet responded to the motion. It is expected that the Court will hear
and rule on the motion in October 2006,

Should the Company be unsuccessful in prosecuting this matter, it may have a matetial adverse effect
on its business and results of operations. No revenue has been recorded related to the Rapiscan Agreement.

We may, from time to time, be involved in other actual or potential proceedings that we consider to be
in the normal course of our business. We do not believe that any of these proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on our business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE TO SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006.
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ITEM S.

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Price

PART 11

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED

As of June 30, 2006, our common stock, $0.10 par value, was traded on the American Stock Exchange
under the symbol IMX. The following sets forth the range of high and low closing sales prices on the American

Stock Exchange:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005:
Quarter ended September 30

Quarter ended December 31
Quarter Ended March 31
Quarter ended June 30

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006:
Quarter ended September 30

Quarter ended December 31
Quarter Ended March 31
Quarter ended June 30

High Low

$11.99 $7.45
11.30 8.85
10.75 5.60
597 2.45
9.70 2.92
6.28 311
4.65 3.38
4.07 3.07

At October 5, 2006, the closing sales price of our common stock was $3.00 and there were
approximately 4,000 shareholders of record.

Equity Compensation Plan Disclosure

The following table sets forth certain information as of June 30, 2006 regarding securities authorized
for issuance under our equity compensation plans.

Plan Category

Number of securities to

be issued upon exercise

of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans

Equity Compensation

Plans Approved by
Shareholders

1,836,551

Equity Compensation

Plans Not Approved
by Shareholders

Total

Dividends

1,836,551

3541

$5.41

649,157

649,157

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently anticipate that
we will retain all future eamnings for the expansion and operation of our business, and do not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Sales of Unregistered Securities

All of the offers and sales referred to above were in private offerings to accredited investors {as such
term is defined in Regulation D) in reliance upon the exemption provided by Section 4(2} of the Securities Act
and Regulation D promulgated under such act by the Commission. Each of the purchasers was furnished with
information about us and had the opportunity to verify such information. Additionally, we obtained a
representation from each purchaser of such purchaser's intent to acquire the securities for the purpose of
investment only, and not with a view toward the subsequent distribution thereof. The securities bear appropriate
legends and we have issued stop transfer instructions to our transfer agent.

On July 6, 2005, the Company cxccuted a $3.0 million secured term note payable to Laurus Master
Fund, Ltd. (“Laurus™). The Company received $3,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management fee of
$135,000 and related transaction costs of approximately $32,000. The term note was collateralized by
substantially all of the Company’s assets, had a 4-month term and bore interest at a rate equal to the prime rate
plus once percent (1%). In connection with the financing, on September 30, 2005, the Company issued Laurus a
warrant to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price equal to $3.75 per share.
The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of 67%,
cxpected life of 5 years and a risk free interest rate of 3.77%. Net proceeds from the financing were used for
increasing the capacity of the Quantum Sniffer™ production line, increasing unit inventories and the repayment
of certain indebtedness due and owed by the Company to the former shareholders of Accurel in connection with
the acquisition of this wholly-owned subsidiary.

On September 30, 2005, the Company issued 500,000 shares of Series D Convertible Redecmable
Preferred Stock (“Series D™) having a stated value of $10 per share, pursuant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement with Laurus. The Company received $5,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management and
placement agent fee of approximately $90,000, and related transaction costs of approximately $27,000. The
Company utilized the proceeds to repay the $3 million term note with Laurus signed on July 7, 2005. The Series
D has a dividend equal to the prime rate plus one percent (1%) (9.25% at June 30, 2006) and provides for
redemption over a thirty-six month period pursuant to an amortization schedule. The monthly redemption
amount of approximately $152,000 may be paid in cash or common shares at the option of the Company,
subject to certain restrictions, commencing on January 1, 2006, at a fixed conversion price of $6.80 per common
share. The Company also issued to Laurus a warrant to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at $10.20 per
share. The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of
80%, an expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.12%. The Securities Purchase Agreement with
L.aurus provides for a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s assets and provides Laurus a right of
first refusal on future financing arrangements during the term of the agreement. in the event Laurus declines to
exercise its right of first refusal, it agreed to enter into such documentation as shall be reasonable requested by
the Company in order to subordinate its rights under the Series D to the subsequent financier. Net cash proceeds
from this financing were $1,883,000 (which inctuded repayments of $3,000,000 of principal related to the July
6, 2005 term note and $117,000 of issuance costs).

On May 31, 2006, the Company amended the Serics D and the Certificate of Vote of Directors
Establishing a Class or Series of Stock. The terms of the amendment permit the Company to defer
approximately $455,000 of cash payments, representing the January 2006, February 2006 and March 2006
amortization payments, and to defer the October 2006 amortization payment, should such payment be required
in cash, to the mandatory redemption date of September 30, 2008. In consideration, the Company has agreed to
the conversion of the April 2006, May 2006, June 2006, July 2006, August 2006 and September 2006
amortization payments into 261,233 shares of Common Stock of the Company at a conversion price of $3.48 per
share, representing a reduction in principal of approximately $909,000, and to reduce the Fixed Conversion
Price of the remaining Scries D stock from $6.80 per share to $4.15 per share. [n addition, Laurus was granted a
warrant to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.26 per share. The
warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of 79%, an
expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.89%.

The amendment of the Series D, as described above, was accounted for as an extinguishment of debt in
accordance with EITF 96-19 "Debtor's Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments.” The
Company determined a substantial difference in the net present value of the cash flows under the terms of the
amendment was more than 10 percent different from the present value of the remaining cash flows under the
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terms of the original Series D agreement. Due to the substantial difference, the Company determined an
extinguishment of debt had occurred with the amendment, and as such, it was necessary to reflect the Series D at
its fair market value. Accordingly, the following table shows the basis for the Series D extinguishment:

Extinguishment of Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006:

Redemption payments due $909,000

Unamonrtized discount of warrants, detivative value of
preferred stock conversion and issue costs 266,000
Berivatives related to the preferred stock features 578,000
Subtotal $1,753,000

Record New Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006:

Fair value of redemption payments made $1,011,000

Issuance of 150,000 warrants 375,000
Unamortized discount of warrants, derivative value of

preferred stock conversion and issue costs 266,000

Derivatives related to the preferred stock features 1,395,000

Subtotal $3,047,000

Loss on extinguishment of Series D debt instrument $1,294,000

The $1,294,000 aggregate loss from these transactions, accounted for as an extinguishment of debt, is
included in Other expenses for the year ended June 30, 2006.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data presented below is derived from our consolidated financial

statements and should be read in connection with those statemenits.

Year ended June 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues $6,621,000 $6,696,000 $8566,000 $12,286,000 $26,391,000
Cost of revenue 5,185,000 5,363,000 6,186,000 12,056,000 22,044,000
Rescarch and development 1,302,000 1,776,000 1,631,000 1,942,000 1,313,000
Selling, general and administrative 2,314,000 2,326,000 4,599,000 5,524,000 8,933,000
Impairment of goodwill - - - - 457,000
Other income (expense) (14,000) - (162,000) (169,000} (728,000)
Net loss (2,194,000)  (2,769,000) (4,012,000  (7,405,000)  (7,084,000)
Preferred distribution (530,000) (891,000) (2,527,000 _ (1,183,000) (1,089,000}
Net loss applicable to common shareholders $(2,724,00)  8$(3,660,00)  $(6,539,00) $(8,588,000) $(8,173,000)
Net loss per share applicable to common shareholders,
basic and diluted £(0.45) $(0.58) $(0.89) ${0.91) $(0.72)
Weighted average common shares outstanding used in
computing basic and diluted loss per share 6,083,370 6,310,748 7,317,677 9,412,548 11,325,842
June 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,014,000 $959,000 $6,906,000 $1,549,000 § 2,204,000
Working capital (deficit) 1,051,000 (272,000) 8,253,000 (764,000) 2,259,000
Goodwill - - - 12,213,000 11,666,000
Total asscts 6,461,000 7,297,000 15,224,000 32,228,000 30,799,000
Total liabilities 1,641,000 2,703,000 2,054,000 8,844,000 8,303,000
Preferred stock - 966,000 670,000 - 2,568,000
Total stockholders' equity $4,820,000  $3.628,000 § 12,500,000 $23,384,000 $19,928,000
Quarterly Financial Data
Fiscal 2006 Quarter Ended
September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenues $ 4,672,000 $ 7,540,000 $6,548,000 $7,631,000
Gross margin (6,000) 1,474,000 1,006,000 1,873,000
Loss from operations (2,245,000) (1,683,000) (1,143,000) {(1,285,000)
Net loss (2,367,000) (933,000) (1,264,000) (2,520,000)
Net loss applicable to common shareholders (2,367,000) (1,320,000) (1,655,000) (2,831,000)
Net loss per common share $(0.22) $(0.12) $(0.15) $0.23)
Weighted average shares outstanding 10,962,703 11,379,275 11,379,275 11,582,115
Fiscal 2005 Quarter Ended
September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30
Revenues $2,274,000 $ 2,541,000 $ 2,862,000 $ 4,609,000
Gross margin 468,000 (439,000) (19,000) 220,000
Loss from operations - (1,178,000) (1,997,000) {2,198,000) (1,869,000)
Net loss (1,191,000) (2,028,000) (2,267,000) (1,915,000)
Net loss applicable to common shareholders (1,475,000) (2,311,000} (2,882,000} (1,920,000}
Net loss per common share (017 $ (0.26) $(0.30) $(0.18)
Weighted average shares outstanding 8,466,559 8,882,786 9,618,367 10,704,928
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ITEM 7, MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Over the past twenty two years, Implant Sciences Corporation has both developed and acquired
technologies using ion implantation and thin film coatings. Initially this technology was used in semiconductor
processing but soon expanded to include various medical device applications including the modification of
orthopedic joint implant surfaces to reduce polyethylene wear gencration and the manufacture of products for
radiation therapy treatments. Our latest application of this technology includes the manufacturing of trace
explosives detection equipment.

We currently provide ion implantation and analytical services to numerous scmiconductor
manufacturers, research laboratories and universities. The application of our jon implantation technologies to
modify the surfaces of orthopedic joint implants is being applied primarily to product manufactured by the
Stryker-Orthopaedics Division of Stryker Corporation.

In October 2004 and March 2005, we acquired two California semiconductor companics. Through
these acquisitions, we have more than doubled our semiconductor capacity and are now able to offer diagnostic
services and semiconductor equipment refurbishment services to semiconductor manufacturers, rcsearch
laboratories and universities.

Other applications of our ion beam technology have been in the area of temporary brachytherapy
products. In May 1999, we received Food and Drug Administration 510(k) clearance to market our I-Plant™
lodine-125 radioactive seed for the treatment of prostate cancer and in 2001 recognized our first sale.

Since May 1999, we have been performing research to develop a trace explosives detector, which could
be used to detect hidden bombs in airports and other public places. This technology is yet another application of
our ion source technology. At present, we have developed both portable and bench-top systems for use in
airports and Department of Defense facilities and have successfully marketed these products both domestically
and internationally. In fiscal 2006, as part of a plan to reduce manufacturing costs, we transitioned the
production of these products to a contract manufacturer. As we continue to sell and deliver these products, we
work both independently and in conjunction with various government agencies, to develop the next generation
of trace explosives detectors and identify new applications for our proprictary technology.

On October 15, 2004, the Company acquired Core Systems Incorporated (“Core™) and on March 9,
2005, the Company acquired Accure! Systems International Corporation (*Accurel™). The results of operations,
of the acquircd companies, are part of the Company’s semiconductor business segment. The results of
operations for the acquircd companies are included in the Company’s results of operations since the date of their
respective acquisition. As such, the results of operations for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 arc not
comparable.

On or about March 8, 2006, the Company commenced an arbitration under the Rules of the American
Arbitration Association against Respondents Majid Ghafghaichi (“Majid”} and Vahe Sarkissisian (“Vahc™),
seeking a total of $3,994,000 for indemnification of various “Losses,” as defined in, and expressly allowed
pursuant to, a Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2005 (the “Agreement™), between the Company, as the
purchaser, Accurel Systems International Corporation (*Accurel), and Majid and Vahe, as the sellers of 100%
of the issued and outstanding shares of Accurel stock.

More specifically, there are four claims asserted by the Company against Respondents: (1} Damages of
$3.4 million resulting from misrepresentations concerning the loss of business from a key Accurel customer; (2)
unauthorized withdrawals in the amount of approximately $276,000 from Accurel by the Respondents prior to
the closing; (3) approximately $49,000 of disallowed transaction expenses that the Respondents improperly
received; and (4) undisclosed net liabilities totaling approximately $269,000.

Respondents have asserted counterclaims secking “an aggregate amount in excess of $1,750,000,”
based on the allegedly “late payment” to Respondents of Company stock and a Secured Promissory Note as part
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of the consideration for their sale of Accurel stock. The Company has filed a detailed denial of all
counterclaims.

The arbitration is now in the discovery phase, and the hearings are scheduled for February, 2007.

At this early stage of the proceedings, particularly before the commencement of depositions, it is
difficult to assess the final outcome of this arbitration. However, the Company believes that the counterclaims
have no merit, and will vigorously defend such counterclaims. On March 23, 2005, the Company entered into a
Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement with Rapiscan Systems (the “Rapiscan Agreement”).
The Rapiscan Agreement provides for; the manufacture and sale of the Company’s existing explosives detecticn
equipment on a private labet basis; the funding by Rapiscan of up to $1,000,000 for the development of a trace
explosives detection subsystem to be integrated with Rapiscan’s X-ray baggage screening device technology;
and up to $2,000,000 for the development of other trace explosives detection subsystems. The Rapiscan
Agreement includes various manufacturing, selling and distribution rights.

On March 24, 2006, the Company brought suit in the United States District Court in the District of
Massachusetts against Rapiscan and its parent, OSI Systems, Inc, (“OSI”). The Company is requesting
rescission of the Rapiscan Agrecment, for lack of performance and other grounds. In the alternative, the
Company is seeking termination of the Rapiscan Agreement due to material breaches of contract and implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing and for damages due to Rapiscan’s breach of contract and the implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

On March 27, 2006, the Company reccived notice that Rapiscan filed a complaint against the Company
and its contract manufacturer, Columbia Tech, in the United States District Count for the Central District of
California, regarding the Rapiscan Agrecment. Rapiscan’s complaint against the Company is based upon claims
of breach of contract and breach of warranty and is requesting a decree for specific performance, declaratory
relief and injunctive relief. Rapiscan’s complaint against Columbia Tech is based upon injunctive relief,
declaratory relief and tortuous interference with contractual relations. On April 12, 2006, Rapiscan dismissed all
claims against Columbia Tech.

As of August 18, 2006, as a result of motions made by both parties, the two lawsuits have been
consolidated in the United States District Court for the Central District of California with the Company as
plaintiff. Presently, discovery is in process. Rapiscan and OSI have filed a motion to dismiss certain of the
Company’s claims. The Company has not yet responded to the motion. It is expected that the Court will hear
and rule on the motion in October 2006.

Should the Company be unsuccessful in prosecuting this matter, it may have a material adverse affect
on its business and results of operations.

The Company manages its business and reports results from operations for threc business segments:
Medical, which includes radioactive seeds, orthopedic coatings, medical related government contracts and other
related activities; Security Products, which includes development contracts and product sales related to the
Company’s trace explosives detection products; and Semiconductor, which includes ion implantation, disk
refurbishment, source conditioning equipment and semiconductor analytical services.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004. It should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

Revenmues. Total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 werc $26,391,000 as compared to
$12,286,000 and $8,566,000 for the prior year periods ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our
revenues by business segment are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, 2006
Medical Semiconductor  Security Total
$4,464,000 $15,056,000 36,871,000  $26,391,000

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Medical Semiconductor  Security Total
$4,146,000 $6,630.,000 . 51,510,000  $12,286,000
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Medical Semiconductor  Security Total
$4,957,000 $1,022,000 $2,587,000  $8,566,000

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 were $26,391,000 as comparcd to $12,286,000 in the year
ended June 30, 2005, an incrcase of $14,105,000 or 115%. The increase came from all three of our business
scgments. Our Semiconductor business segment increased $8,426,000 or 127%, our Security Products
{previously referred to as Explosives Detection) business segment increased $5,361,000 or 355% and our
Medical business segment increased $318,000 or §%. Fiscal 2006 was the first year that revenues from Core and
Accurel were included for the full fiscal ycar. Core was acquired on October 15, 2004 and Accurel was acquired
on March 9, 2005. Fiscal 2005 results included revenues only from the respective dates of acquisition. Core and
Accurel revenues in the year ended June 30, 2006 were $13,432,000 as compared with 35,838,000 for the
comparative prior ycar period, accounting for $7,594,000 of the increase in revenues. The increase in Security
products revenue is primarily attributable to the first significant commercial quantities of our hand held
explosives detection devices being sold in fiscal 2006 and from the performance of a significant government
contract granted by the Transportation Security Administration. In addition, included in the fiscal 2006 results
was $328,000 of security product revenues previously deferred from fiscal 2005, pending final customer
acceptance. The increase in our Medical business segment is primarily from our Sceds business. Revenue from
seeds and treatment planning systems increased $396,000 in the year ended Junc 30, 2006 over the previous
year.

Total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2005 were $12,286,000 as compared to 38,566,000 in the
year ended Junc 30, 2004 an increase of $3,720,000 or 43%. The increase is primarily attributable to revenues
from Core and Accurel since their acquisitions on October 15, 2004 and March 9, 20035 respectively, results
from Core and Accurel were not included in the previous year. Revenues from Core and Accurel totaled
approximately $5,838,000 for the year ended June 30, 2005 and $0 for the year ended June 30, 2004. Core and
Accurel are included in our semiconductor segment.

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2005 from the Company’s security products business declined to
$1,510,000 as compared to $2,587,000 for the comparable prior ycar, a decrcase of $1,077.000 or 42%. This
decrease is attributable to the completion of certain government contracts. Security product contract revenues
were $1,294,000 and §2,463,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company has
been transitioning the sccurity products business from primarily a contracts/development business to a product
sales business. To that extent we have established strategic sales and distribution relationships both domestically
and internationally. For the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company had deferred $328,000 of security product
revenues, pending final customer acceptance.

Revenues for the medical business unit were $4,146,000 for the year ended June 30, 2005 as compared
to $4,957,000 for the year ended June 30, 2004, a decrease of $811,000 or 16%. Seeds revenues were
$1,684,000 as compared to $2,744,000 for the prior year, a decrcase of $1,060,000, or 39%. The decrease in
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revenues from seeds was primarily due from a pattern of decreasing volumes that started last year. Management
believes the seed volumes have stabilized and are taking steps to achieve higher seed volumes in the coming
year, including the benefits of selling our treatment planning software to our customers.

Revenues from medical and industriai coatings were $2,018,000 as compared to $1,707,000 for the
prior year, an increase of $287,000, or 17%. While revenue from orthopedic related coatings remains virtually
unchanged from the prior year period, we recognized a $247,000, or nearly 500% increase, in our non-
orthopedic related medical coatings. This increasc was related to certain new customers transitioning from
research and development projects to the beginning stages of production. We expect to see continued growth in
this area. Medical contract sales decreased $62,000 to $444,000 as compared to $506,000 in the prior year due
to the completion of certain contracts.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $22,044,000 as compared to
$12,056,000 and $6,186,000 for the prior year periods ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The cost of
revenues by business segment is as follows:

Year Ended June 30, 2006
Medical Semiconductor Security Total
$3,869,000 $11,953,000 $6,222.000  $22,044,000

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Medical Semiconductor Security Total
$3,821,000 $6,316,000 $1,919,000  $12,056,000

Year Ended June 30, 2004
Medical  Semiconductor Security Total
$3,822,000 $1,280,000 $1,084000  $6,186,000

Total cost of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 were $22,044,000 as compared to $12,056,000
for the prior year period, an increase of $9,988,000 or 83%. Cost of revenues for cur semiconductor business
segment was $11,953,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to $6,316,000 for the prior year period
an increase of $3,637,000 or 89%. Fiscal year 2006 was the first year that the results of Core and Accurel were
included in our operations for a full fiscal year. Core was acquired on October 15, 2004 and Accurel was
acquired on March 9, 2005. Cost of revenues for Core and Accurel were $10,036,000 for the year ended June
30, 2006 as compared to $4,807,000 for the prior year, an increase of $5,279,000 or 110%. Cost of revenues for
our security products segment was $6,222 000 for the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to $1,91%,000 for
the prior year period. Most of the increase is attributable to materials and manufacturing costs associated with
the sales of our hand held explosives detection devices.

The cost of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $12,056,000 as compared to $6,186,000 for
the prior year period ended June 30, 2004. The overalt increase in cost of revenues is primarily a result of costs
attributable to Core and Accurel since their acquisition on October 15, 2004 and March 9, 2003, respectively.
Cost of revenues at Core and Accurel totaled $4,807,000 as compared to $0 in the prior year period. Core and
Accurel are included in our semiconductor segment, [n addition, our cost of revenues also increased due to our
efforts to ramp up our security product manufacturing capability as we transition from primarily contract
revenues to higher volumes of product sales related to the security product business segment. The cost of our
security product revenues were $1,919,000 compared to $1,084,000 in the prior year, an increase of $835,000 or
77%. During the year ended June 30, 2005, we wrote off $342,000 to cost of revenues, of equipment, that was
determined by management, to have no future value. This equipment was originally purchased or built for very
specific applications or technologies that in management’s judgment no longer justify additional expenditure
and no other use for this equipment exists. Most of the equipment write offs were attributable to the medical
segment.
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Gross Margins

Year ended June 30, 2006
Medieal Semiconductor Security Total
Sales $4,464,000 $15,056,000 $6,871,000 $26,391,000
COs $3,869,000 $11,953,000 $6,222,000 $22,044,000
Margin % 13% 21% 9% 16%
Year ended June 30, 2005
Medical Semiconductor Security Total
Sales $4,146,000 $6,630,000 $1,510,000 $12,286,000
COs $3,821,000 36,316,000 $1,919,000 $12,056,000
Margin % 8% 5% -27% 2%
Year ended June 30, 2004
Medical Semiconductor Security Total
Sales $4,957,000 $1,022,000 32,587,000 $8,566,000
Cos $3,822,000 $1,280,000 $1,084,000 $6,186,000
Margin % 23% -25% 58% 28%

Overall gross margins were 16% of revenues in the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to 2% in the
prior year. The increase in gross margins comes from all of our business segments. Semiconductor gross
margins were 21% for the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to 5% for the prior year period. This
improvement is primarily due to the inclusion of Accurel for the entire year in our fiscal 2006. Accurel is a
service business and is characterized by relatively low variable costs so increased revenues beyond the level
needed to cover fixed costs will have a significant impact on gross margins. Security products gross margins
were 9% for the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to a gross margin loss of 27% in the prior year period.
The improvement in security products margin is due to the manufacturing and sale of handheld trace explosives
detection devices which covered the cost of our manufacturing organization built during the prior year. Once the
initial handheld explosives detector production run was complcted, and the manufacturing process was proven,
manufacturing was transitioned to a contract manufacturer allowing the Company to reduce its manufacturing
overhead. The medical segment gross margins were 13% for the year ended June 30, 2006 compared to 8% for
the prior year period. The improvement in gross margin came from manufacturing efficiencies gained in our
seeds operations primarily from increased volumes and cost reductions.

Overall gross margins were 2% of revenues in the year ended June 30, 2005 as compared to 28% of
revenues in the period ended June 30, 2004. The decrease in-the gross margin percentage is attributable to
relatively high fixed costs in our medical products segment that cannot be easily adjusted for the decrease in
revenues, which the Company experienced. Medical segment gross margins were $325,000, or 8% of revenues,
for the year ended June 30, 2005 as compared to $1,135,000, or 23% of revenues, for the prior year period. In
addition, the transition from contract/development work in the security product segment created a situation in
which the Company had declining revenues due to completion of major contracts, at the same time the
Company was building its product manufacturing capability. The result of this transition was a gross margin
loss of $409,000, or 27%, of sales for the security product segment, for the year ended June 30, 2005 as
compared to gross margins of $1,503,000, or 58%, in the prior year period. Semiconductor margins were 5% of
revenues as compared to a gross margin loss of 25% in the prior year period. This tumnaround is attributable 1o
Accurel since its acquisition by the Company on March 9, 2005.

Research and Development. Research and development expense for the year ended June 30, 2006 was
$1,313,000 as compared to $1,942.,000 for the comparable prior year period, a decrease of $629,000, or 32%.
These expenses include $122,000 and $241,000 of stock-based compensation expense, respectively. The
decrease in research and development expenscs relates to the increase in customer funded programs, primarily
through government grants and contracts, performed in fiscal 2006. The Company charges its research and
development personnel to cost of revenues for work performed on these contracts and grants. A total of
$692,000 of research and development personnel costs were charged to cost of sales in the year ended June 30,

27




2006 as compared to $459,000 in the prior year period. In addition other costs associated with unfunded
rescarch and development projects in the prior fiscal year were expensed to research and development.

Research and development expense for the year ended June 30, 2005 was 51,942,000 as compared to
$1,631,000 for the comparable prior year period ended June 30, 2004, an increase of $311,000, or 19%. These
expenses include $241,000 and $300,000 of stock-based compensation expense, respectively. The Company
continued to expend funds to further the development of new products in the areas of explosives and toxic
substance detection and temporary brachytherapy areas.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense for the year ended
June 30, 2006 was $8,933,000 as compared to $5,524,000 for the comparable prior year period, an increase of
$3,409,000, or 62%. This incrcase is primarily related to $1,547,000 of additional selling, general and
administrative expenses incurred due to the inclusion of Core and Accure! for the full twelve month period in
fiscal 2006. Core and Accurel were acquired on October 135, 2004 and March 9, 2005, respectively, and the prior
year includes their costs from the day of acquisition. Selling, general and administrative also included
$1,264,000 of share based compensation, measured at fair value, due to the adoption of SFAS 123-R
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123R™) in fiscal 2006 as compared to $135,000 of non-
cash stock based compensation in the prior year period measured at fair value. During the year ended June 30,
2006 we also recorded a $457,000 impairment charge to write down goodwill associated with the acquisition of
Core.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $5,524,000 as
compared to $4,599,000 for the comparable prior year period ended June 30, 2004, an increase of $925,000, or
20%. This increase is primarily refated to $1,260,000 of additional sclling, general and administrative expenses
incurred since the acquisition of Core Systems and Accurel Systems on October 15, 2004 and March 9, 2005,
combined with increased spending for legal, accounting and consulting services. This increase was offset by a
$1,144,000 or 89% reduction of non-cash, stock based compensation, to $135,000 in the rwelve month period
ending June 30, 2005, as compared with $1,279,000 during the twelve month period ended June 30, 2004.
Additional increases in selling, general and administrative expenses included an increase of $339,000 related to
salaries and employee related expenses, reflecting new hires during the year; an increase in rent expense of
$171.,000 due to expansion of floor space and; an increase in audit and tax fees of $153,000.

Other Income and Expenses, Net. For the year ended June 30, 2006, we recorded other expense, net, of
$728,000 as compared to $169,000, in the comparable prior year period an increase of $559,000 or 331%. Other
income and expense includes a loss of $359,000 representing the Company’s share of losses attributable to its
investment in CorNova, an unconsolidated subsidiary accounted for under the equity method of accounting.
Other income and expensc also includes a $1,121,000 gain due to the change in the value of the embedded
derivatives associated with the Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, since its issuance on
Scptember 30, 2003, and a loss on the modification of the Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
accounted for as an extinguishment of debt under EITF 96-19 of $1,294,000.

For the year ended June 30, 2005, we recorded other expense, net, of $169,000 as compared to
$162,000, in the period ended June 30, 2004,

Net Loss. Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $7.084,000 as compared with $7,405,000 for
the comparable prior year period, a decrease in net loss of $321,000, or 4%. The decrease in net loss is primarily
duc to reduced loss from operations of $880,000 offset by an increase in other expenses of $559,000. The fiscal
2006 net loss includes $2,493,000 of SFAS 123R share-based compensation and other non-cash compensation
compared to $378,000 of non-cash compensation in the prior year period. The Company adopted FAS123R in
the current fiscal year using the modified prospective method. These additional expenses were offset by
improved results from the semiconductor and security product segments.

Preferred distribution, dividends and accretion on Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
were $1,089,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006 as compared to $1,183,000 in the year ended June 30, 2005.
The Company issued Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock on September 30, 2005. All previous
issucs of preferred stock had been converted to common in the prior year period.

Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2005 was $7,405,000 as compared with $4.012,000 for the prior
year period ended June 30, 2004, an increase in net loss of $3,393,000, or 85%. The increase in net loss is
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primarily due to losses in the security products segment due to the completion of certain government contracts
early in the year and costs telated to increasing our manufacturing capability ahead of expected product orders.
Preferred distribution, dividends and acecretion on Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock were
$1,183,000 in the year ended June 30, 2005 as compared to 32,527,000 in the year ended June 30, 2004. This
decrease is attributable to the conversion of preferred stock to common stock during the periods shown. All
outstanding preferred stock had been converted as of June 30, 2005,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Year Ended June 30,
2006 2005 2004
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,204,000 $ 1,549,000 $ 6,906,000
Cash used by operating activities (2,199,000} (3,329,000) (2,647,000)
Cash used in investing activities (652,000) (8.,217,000) (500,000)
Cash provided by financing activities 3,506,000 6,189,000 9,094,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $655,000 $(5,357,000) $ 5,947,000

As of June 30, 2006, the Company had approximately $2,204,000 in the form of cash and cash
equivalents. During the year ended June 30, 2006, operating activities used cash of approximately $2,199,000.
Net cash used by operating activities primarily reflects the $7,084,000 net loss, increased by a non-cash gain of
$1,121,000 related to the change in fair value of derivatives, and reduced by non-cash charges of offset by
$3,053,000 in depreciation and amortization, $2,493,000 of non-cash compensation expense, $1,294,000 loss on
the extinguishment of Series D, and $859,000 in other non-cash charges to operations. In addition the Company
invested $1,045,000 in inventory, accounts receivable and other current asscts while paying down liabilities by
$648,000. During the year ended June 30, 2006, investing activitics used cash of approximately $652,000,
which was primarily for equipment and other fixed assets. During the year ended June 30, 2006, financing
activities provided approximately $3,506,000 in cash. Net cash provided by financing activities primarily
includes net proceeds from the issuance of Scries D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock of $4,727,000 and
$1,000,000 from a revolving credit facility with a bank. Net cash provided by financing was offsct by payments
on our debt of $2,061,000 which includes the payoff of a $1,650,000 short term note associated with the
acquisition of Accurel.

As of June 30, 2005, the Company had approximatcly $1,549,000 in the form of cash and cash
equivalents. During the year ended June 30, 2006, operating activities used cash of approximately $3,329,000.
Net cash used by operating activities primarily reflects the $7,405,000 net loss offset by $3,010,000 in
depreciation and other non-cash expenses. In addition the Company invested $549,000 in inventory as it begins
its production of the trace explosives detection product and paid down its liability to Mecd-Tec by $258,000. The
Company realized cash of $433,000 by lowering its accounts receivables duc to timely payments from
government contracts and $59,000 from reduced prepaid cxpenses. Accounts payables and accruals increased
$435,000 reflecting the increase in operating activities. Cash flows from deferred revenues increased by
$714,000 primarily due to payments received by the Company, for products and services not recognized by the
Company as revenues, until final acceptance by the customer. During the year ended June 30, 2005, investing
activitics used cash of approximately $8,217,000, which was primarily attributable to $8,829,000 used in the
acquisition of Core and Accurel offset by $1,400,000 realized from the sale of acquired assets. During the year
ended June 30, 2005, financing activities provided approximately $6,189,000 in cash. Net cash provided by
financing activities primarily includes net proceeds from a private placement of $7,289,000 and $1,037,000
from the exercise of options and warrants. Net cash provided by financing was offset by payments on our long
term debt of $2,083,000 including $1,170,000 of debt paid off by the Company associated with the acquired
assets that were sold

On July 6, 2005, the Company executed a $3.0 million sccured term note payable to Laurus Master
Fund, Ltd. (“Laurus”). The Company received $3,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management fee of
$135,000 and related transaction costs of approximately $32,000. The term note was collateralized by
substantially all of the Company’s assets, had a 4-month term and bore interest at a rate cqual to the prime rate
plus once percent (1%). In connection with the financing, on September 30, 2005, the Company issued Laurus a
warrant to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price cqual to $3.75 per share.
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The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of 67%,
expected life of 5 years and a risk free interest rate of 3.77%. Net proceeds from the financing were used for
increasing the capacity of the Quantum Sniffer™ production line, increasing unit inventories and the repayment
of certain indebtedness due and owed by the Company to the former sharcholders of Accurel in connection with
the acquisition of this wholly-owned subsidiary.

On September 30, 2005, the Company issued 500,000 shares of Series D Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock (“Series D™) having a stated value of $10 per share, pursuant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement with Laurus, The Company received $5,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management and
placement agent fec of approximately $90,000, and related transaction costs of approximately $27,000. The
Company utilized the procceds to repay the $3 million term note with Laurus signed on July 7, 2005. The Series
D has a dividend cqual to the prime rate plus one percent (1%) (9.25% at June 30, 2006) and provides for
redemption over a thirty-six month period pursuant to an amortization schedule. The monthly redemption
amount of approximately $152,000 may be paid in cash or common shares at the option of the Company,
subjcct to certain restrictions, commencing on January 1, 2006, at a fixed conversion price of $6.80 per common
share. The Company also issued to Laurus a warrant to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at $10.20 per
share. The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of
80%, an expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.12%. The Securities Purchase Agreement with
Laurus provides for a security intcrest in substantialty all of the Company’s assets and provides Laurus a right of
first refusal on future financing arrangements during the term of the agreement. In the event Laurus declines to
exercise its right of first refusal, it agreed to enter into such documentation as shall be reasonable requested by
the Company in order to subordinate its rights under the Series D to the subsequent financier. Net cash proceeds
from this financing were $1,883,000 (which included repayments of $3,000,000 of principal related to the July
6, 2005 term note and $117,000 of issuance costs).

On May 31, 2006, the Company amended the Series D and the Certificate of Vote of Directors
Establishing a Class or Series of Stock. The terms of the amendment permit the Company to defer
approximately $455,000 of cash payments, representing the January 2006, February 2006 and March 2006
amortization payments, and to defer the October 2006 amortization payment, should such payment be required
in cash, to the mandatory redemption date of September 30, 2008, In consideration, the Company has agreed to
the conversion of the April 2006, May 2006, June 2006, July 2006, August 2006 and September 2006
amortization payments into 261,233 shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $3.48 per
share, representing a reduction in principal of approximately $909,000, and to reduce the Fixed Conversion
Price of the remaining Series D stock from $6.80 per share to $4.15 per share. In addition, Laurus was granted a
warrant to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.26 per share. The
warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the foliowing assumptions: volatility of 79%, an
expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.89%. The amendment of the Series D, as described above,
was accounted for as an extinguishment of debt in accordance with EITF 96-19 "Debtor's Accounting for a
Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments." The Company determined a substantial difference in the net
present value of the cash flows under the terms of the amendment was more than 10 percent different from the
present value of the remaining cash flows under the terms of the original Series D agreement. Due to the
substantial difference, the Company determined an extinguishment of debt had occurred with the amendment,
and as such, it was necessary to reflect the Series ) at its fair market value. Accordingly, the following table
shows the basis for the Scries D extinguishment:
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Extinguishment of Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006

Redemption payments duc $ 909,000

Unamertized discount of warrants, derivative value 266,000
of preferred stock conversion and issuc costs

Derivatives related to the preferred stock features 578,000

Subtotal $1,753,000

Record New Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006:

Fair value of redemption payments made $1,011,000

Issuance of 150,000 warrants 375,000

Unamortized discount of warrants, derivative value 266,000
of preferred stock conversion and issue costs

Derivatives related to the preferred stock features 1,395,000

Subtotai $3,047,000

Loss on extinguishment of Series D debt instrument $1,294,000

The $1,294,000 aggregate loss from these transactions, accounted for as an extinguishment of debt, is
included in Other expenses for the year ended June 30, 2006.

On September 7, 2006, the Company extended the expiration date of its revolving credit facility for
$1,500,000 with Silicon Valley based Bridge Bank, N.A. The revolving credit facility expiring December 31,
2007, provides for advances of up to eighty percent (80%) of the Company’s cligible accounts receivable, bears
interest at the prime rate plus one-half percent (1/2%), and is collateralized by certain assets of the Company.,
The credit facility is also subject to various financial covenants. As of June 30, 2006, $1,000,000 has been
drawn on this credit facility and the Company is in compliance with the covenants.

Since May 1999, we have been developing several explosive detection systems that could be used in
airports, public and government buildings, and sporting event facilitics. The systems use our proprictary Laser
IMS technology, which includes the use of laser beams in cembination with ion mobility spectrometry, to
electronically detect minute quantitics of explosive vapor molecules in the air.

This project is currently being undertaken by both our internal scientists and outside contractors. The
development of new applications is typically funded through government grants or internal funding. Since
March 2000, we have received sevenicen contracts totaling over $12 million for detection of toxic chemicals or
explosives from agencies such as the Departments of the Army, Air Force, Marine Corps, Navy and the
Department of Homeland Security.

In June 2000, we developed our first generation device, which demonstrated sensitivity to the explosive
TNT. In June 2001, we developed a second generation prototype with increased sensitivity and selectivity. This
device can detect and specify an increasing number of compounds within various explosive materials. The
explosives that have been tested to date are TNT, RDX, PETN, EGDN, and DNT. RDX is the primary
component of C3 and C4 explosives, such as Datasheet and Semtex, as well as certain types of black powder
explosives. We believe these cxplosives’ represent the majority of the explosives presently used in terrorist
activities.

We are now manufacturing several versions of our explosives detection systerns, including: (i) a table-
top unit, which can be used to screen passengers and carry-on baggage in airports and (ii) a portable system,
which can be used to clear buildings, aircrafts, or ships where hidden bombs are believed to exist. We are also
developing, in conjunction with a contract from the Transportation Sccurity Administration, a walk-through
passenger portal. We are curtently selling our portable and bench-top version of these products both
domestically and internationally. We plan to market these systems to U.S. government agencies for use in
airports, government buildings and facilities.
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We are currently expending significant resources to develop the next generation of our current product
and to develop new products. Although we continue to fund as much research and development as possible
through government grants and contracts in accordance with the provisions of the respective grant awards we
will require additional funding in order to continue the advancement of the commercial development and
manufacturing of the explosives detection system. We will attempt to obtain such financing by: (i} government
grants, (i) private financing, or (iii) strategic partnerships. However, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in our attempts to raise such additional financing.

Consistent with our policy to protect our proprietary technologies, we have been awarded five patents
and have submitted an additional four patent applications to the United States Patent and Trademark Office.
These patents and applications will cover specific design configurations that are responsible for our improved
vapor detection sensitivity.

We will require substantial funds for further research and development, regulatory approvals and the
marketing of our explosives detection products. Our capital requirements depend on numerous factors, including
but not limited to, the progress of our research and development programs; the cost of filing, prosecuting,
defending and enforcing any intellectual property rights; competing technological and market developments;
changes in our development of commercialization activities and arrangements; and the hiring of additional
personnel and capital equipment.

As of June 30, 2006, we were conducting our operations with approximately $2,204,000 in cash and
cash equivalents. We estimate that our cash flow from operations and funds available on our revolving line of
credit to be sufficient to fund our working capital in the next twelve months. Future expenditures for research
and product development, especially relating to outside testing, are discretionary and, accordingly, can be
adjusted, as can certain selling, general and administrative expenses, based on the availability of cash.

Based on the current sales, expense and cash flow projections, the Company believes that the current
level of cash and cash-cquivalents on hand, the net proceeds from its revolving line of credit and a $3.6M
contract received from the U.S. Army in August 2006, will be sufficient to fund operations until the Company
achieves positive cash flow. However, because there can be no assurances that sales will materialize as
forecasted, management will continue to closely monitor and attempt to control costs at the Company and will
continue to actively seek the needed capital through government grants and awards, strategic alliances, private
financing sources, and through its lending institutions. The financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities
that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern,

The Company’s future minimum payments under contractual obligations related to capital leases,
operating leases and term notes as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Debt and
Capital Lease Operating Lease MED-TEC (2) Total

Year ending June 30:

2007 $ 455,000 $ 1,678,000 $ 275,000 $2,408,000
2008 443,000 1,709,000 - 2,152,000
2009 194,000 1,454,000 - 1,648,000
2010 66,000 838,000 - 904,000
2011 . 44,000 150,000 - 194,000
Total $ 1,202,000 $ 5,829,000 $ 275,000 $7,306,000

(2) Relates to MED-TEC payment obligation and includes $42,000 accrued interest.
(See Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements)
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policics are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of our Form 10-K as of June 30, 2006. Qur discussion and analysis of our financial condition
and results of operations are based upon the consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of
these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenucs and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, product returns,
inventories, investments, intangible assets, embedded derivatives and warranty obligations. We basc our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilitics that are not readily apparent from other sources, However, results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.

The Company has identified the following as critical accounting policies, based on the significant
Judgments and estimates used in determining the amounts reported in its financial statements:

®  Revenue Recognition - Product and Government Contract Revenues

The Company recognizes revenue when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement with the customer
which states a fixed or determinable price and terms, delivery of the product has occurred or the service
performed in accordance with the terms of the arrangement, and collectibility of the sale is reasonably
assured.

Government contract revenue under cost-sharing rescarch and development agreements is recognized as
eligible research and development expenses arc incurred. The Company's obligation with respect to these
agreements is to perform the research on a best-efforts basis. For government contracts with a deliverable,
revenue is recognized based upon the proportional performance method,

Revenues for which the Company has received payment, but has not yet recognized the revenues, pending
fulfilling its obligations under the sales agreement, are reflected on the balance sheet as deferred revenues.

Treatment systems planning revenues consists of sales of software licenses and maintenance agrecments,
product related training, installation, and consulting, and the associated hardware. Revenue from sales of
software licenses and maintenance agreements is recognized ratably over the maintenance contract period,
which is generally onc year, pursuant to the guidance provided by Statement of Position (“S0r™ 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition” (SOP 97-2), issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA). Revenue from training, installation, consulting services and the associated
hardware are recognized as the services are performed or product is delivered, provided there is vendor
specific objective evidence (VSOE) of fair value which is the price charged when the services are sold
separately. Revenucs related to such sales generated during the year ended June 30, 2006 were $121,000.
Revenues related to such sales in 2005 were immaterial and there were no such revenues generated during
the year ended June 30, 2004,

®  Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for cstimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to
make required payments. Judgments are used in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts and arc
based on a combination of factors, Such factors include historical collection experience, credit policy and
specific customer collection issues. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer’s
inability to meet its financial obligations to us (c.g., bankruptcy filings}, we record a specific reserve for
bad debts against amounts due 1o reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount we reasonably
believe will be collected. We perform ongoing credit cvaluations of our customers and continuously
monitor coltections and payments from our customers. While actual bad debts have historically been
within our expectations and the provisions established, we cannot guarantee that we will continue to
experience the same bad debt rates that we have in the past. A significant change in the liquidity or
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financial position of any of our customers could result in the uncollectibility of the related accounts
receivable and could adversely impact our operating cash flows in that period.

Sales Returns and Allowances

The Company records reductions to revenue for estimated customer returns and allowances. We record
estimated allowances against revenues in the same period the revenue is recorded. These estimates are
based upon historical analysis of our credit memo data and other known factors for pricing and disputes
that arise in the normal course of business. To date, allowances have not been material. Actual returns may
differ significantly from our estimates if factors such as economic conditions or competitive conditions
differ from our expectations.

Inventories

We value our inventories at lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method, including material, labor and factory overhead. In assessing the ultimate realization of inventories,
management judgment is required to determine the reserve for obsolete or excess inventory. Inventory on
hand may exceed future demand either because the product is obsolete, or because the amount on hand is
more than can be used to meet future need. We provide for the total value of inventories that we determine
to be obsolete or excess based on criteria such as customer demand and changing technologies.

Warranties

We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. We record an
estimate for warranty related costs at the time of sale based on our actual historical return rates and repair
costs. While our warranty costs have historically been within our expectations and the provisions
established, we cannot guarantee that we will continue to experience the same warranty return rates or
repair costs that we have in the past. A significant increase in warranty retum rates or osts 10 repair our
products could have a material adverse impact on our operating results for the period or pericds in which
such returns or additional costs materialize.

Valuation of Certain Marketable Equity Securities

The Company currently classifies its investment securities as available-for-sale securities. Pursuant to
SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” such securities are
measured at fair market value in the financial statements with unrealized gains or losses recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income until the securities are sold or otherwise disposed of. However,
in accordance with SFAS No. 115, 2 decline in fair market value below cost that is other than temporary is
accounted for as a realized loss. To date, we have not experienced any realized losses.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, our deferred
tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. We have
recorded a fuli valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets of $8,295,000 as of June 30, 2006,
due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize these assets. The valuation allowance is based on our
estimates of taxable income and the period over which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the
event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods we may
need to adjust our vatuation allowance which could materially impact our financial position and results of
operations.

Gooawill and Intangible Assets

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” requires that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives no longer be amortized but instead be measured for impairment at least annually or
whenever events indicate that there may be an impairment. In order to determine if an impairment exists,
management compares the reporting unit's carrying value to the reporting unit's fair value. Determining the
reporting unit's fair value requires management to make estimates based on market conditions and
operational performance. Absent an event that indicates a specific impairment may exist, management has
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selected August 31st as the date of performing the annual goodwill impairment test. Future events could
Cause management to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that goodwill associated with the
Company’s acquired businesses is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

intangible assets with finite lives consist of acquired customer base, technology and trademarks and are
valued according to the future cash flows they are estimated to produce. These assigned values are
amortized on a basis which matches the periods in which those cash flows are estimated to be produced or
straight line over the estimated useful lives, if no other method provides a better result. The Company
continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate that the estimated
remaining useful life of our intangible assets may warrant revision or that the carrying value of these assets
may be impaired. To compute whether intangible assets with finite lives been impaired, the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows for the estimated remaining useful life of the assets are compared to the
carrying value, To the extent that the future cash flows are less than the carrying value, the assets are
written down to the estimated fair value of the asset.

*  Fguity Transactions

The Company evaluates the proper classification of its equity transactions under SFAS No. 150,
“Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristic of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS
No. 150 requires that for instruments that embody an unconditional obligation requiring the issuer to
redeem it by transferring assets at a determinable date or that contain certain conditional obligations,
typically classified as equity, be classified as a liability.

In many of our financing transactions, warrants have been issued. Additionally, we issue opticns and
warrants to non-employees from time to time as payment for services. In all of these cases, we apply the
principles of SFAS No. 123-R “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation™ to value these awards, which
inherently include a number of estimates and assumptions including stock price volatility factors. The
Company records financing and certain offering costs associated with its capital raising efforts in its
statements of operations. These include amortization of debt issue costs such as cash, warrants and other
securities issued to finders and placement agents, and amortization of preferred stock discount created by
in-the-money conversion features on convertible debt accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion
Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios,” and Issue 00-27, “Application of Issue 98-5 to
Certain Convertible Instruments,” by other securities issued in connection with preferred stock as a result
of allocating the proceeds amongst the securities in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB™)
Opinion No. 14, “Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants,” based
on their relative fair values. We based our estimates and assumptions on the best infermation available at
the time of valuation, however, changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect on
the valuation of the underlying instruments.

The Company determined its Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock contained certain
derivative instruments and accounts for such instruments under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Under SFAS No. 133, the Company bifurcated these
derivative instruments from the Series D Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, recorded them as a
liability, and includes the changes in the fair value of the instruments within other income (expense) in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FAS 154, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Staternent No. 3. This
Statement shall be effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in
fiscal years beginning after the date this Statement is issued. This Statement does not change the transition
provisions of any existing accounting pronouncements, including those that are in a transition phase as of the
effective date of this Statement. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material tmpact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operatiotis.
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In February 2006, the FASB issued FAS 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. This Statement shall be effective for all financial
instruments acquired, issued, or subject to a remeasurement (new basis) event occurring after the beginning of
an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The fair value election provided for in
paragraph 4(c} of this Statement may also be applied upon adoption of this Statement for hybrid financial
instruments that had been bifurcated under paragraph 12 of Statement 133 prior to the adoption of this
Statement. Earlier adoption is permitted as of the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year, provided the entity has not
yet issued financial statements, including financial statements for any interim period, for that fiscal year. The
adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
Earlier application is encouraged if the enterprise has not yet issued financial statements, including interim
financial statements, in the period the Interpretation is adopted. This interpretation of FAS 109 is not expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In September 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF"} reached a consensus on Issuc No.
05-07, Accounting for Modifications to Conversion Options Embedded in Debt Instruments and Related Issues
(“EITF 05-077). EITF 05-07 requires that a change in the fair value of a conversion option brought about
by modifying the debt agreement be included in analyzing in accordance with EITF consensus on Issue No.
96-19, Debtor's Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments (“EITF 96—19"), whether a
debt instrument is considered extinguished. Under EITF 96—19’s requirements, an issuer who modifies a debt
instrument must compare the present vatue of the original debt instrument’s cash flows to the present value of
the cash flows of the modified debt. If the present value of those cash flows varies by more than 10 percent, the
modification is considered significant and extinguishments accounting is applied to the original debt. If the
change in the present value of the cash flows is less than 10 percent, the debt is considered to be modified and is
subject to EITF 96-19’s modification accounting. EITF 05-07 requires that in applying the 10 percent test the
change in the fair value of the conversion option be treated in the same manner as a current period cash flow.
EITF 05-07 also requires that, if a modification does not result in an extinguishment, the change in fair value of
the conversion option be accounted for as an adjustment to interest expense over the remaining term of the debt.
The issuer should not recognize a beneficial conversion feature or reassess an existing beneficial conversion
feature upon modification of the conversion option of a debt instrument that does not result in
an extinguishment. EXTF 05-07 is effective for modifications of debt instruments beginning in the first interim
or annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of EITF 05—07 did not have
a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

In September 20035, the EITF reached a consensus on Issuc No. 05-08, Income Tax Consequences of
Issuing Convertible Debt with a Beneficial Conversion Feature (“EITF 05-08”). Under EITF 05-08, the
issuance of convertible debt with a beneficial conversion feature results in a temporary difference for purposes
of applying FAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The deferred taxes recognized for the temporary
difference should be recorded as an adjustment to paid—in capital. EITF 9805, Accounting Jor Convertible
Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratigs, and EITF 00-27,
Applicatian of Issue No. 98—03 to Certain Convertible Instruments, require that the nondetachable conversion
feature of a convertible debt security be accounted for separately if it is a beneficial conversion feature. A
beneficial conversion feature is recognized and measured by allocating to additional paid—-in capital a portion of
the proceeds equal to the conversion feature’s intrinsic value. A discount on the convertible debt is recognized
for the amount that is allocated to additional paid—in capital. The debt discount is accreted from the date of
issuance to the stated redemption date of the convertible instrument or through the earliest conversion date if the
instrument does not have a stated redemption date. The U.S. Federal Income Tax Code includes the entire
amount of proceeds received at issuance as the tax basis of the convertible debt security. EITF 05-08 should be
applied retrospectively to all instruments with a beneficial conversion feature accounted for under EITF 98-05
and EITF 0027 for periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of
EITF 05-08 to have material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, The Meaning of
Other—Than—Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments (“FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS
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124-17). This FSP nullifies certain requirements of EITF Issue No. 03-01 and supersedes EITF Abstracts,
Topic No. D-44, Recognition of Other~Than— Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of a Security
Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value. Based on the clarification provided in FSP FAS 115~1 and FAS 124-1, the
amount of any other—than—temporary impairment that nceds to be recognized will continue to be dependent
on market conditions, the occurrence of certain events or changes in circumstances relative to an investee and an
entity’s intent and ability to hold the impaired investment at the time of the valuation. FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS
1241 are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the
impact of adopting the guidance in FSP FAS 1i15-1 and FAS 124—| to have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement (“FAS 1577). FAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. FAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November
15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is ¢valuating the impact of adopting FAS
157 on the Company’s consclidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash cquivalents
include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with maturities of three months or [ess when
acquired. Cash equivalents represent a deposit in a money market account and a certificate of deposit. The
Company does not utilize derivative financial instruments, derivative commodity instruments or other market
risk sensitive instruments, positions or transactions in any material fashion. The principal objective of the
Company’s asset management activitics is to maximize net investment income, while maintaining acceptable
levels of interest rate risk and facilitating its funding nccds. At June 30, 2006, the carrying values of the
Company’s financial instruments approximated fair valucs based upor current market prices and rates.

ITEM 8§, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements and related report of independent registered public accounting
firm are appended to the end of this Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and contain the
following:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 36, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Implant Sciences Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Implant Sciences Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of June 30, 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders™ equity
and comprehensive loss and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal controls over financial reporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Implant Sciences Corporation and subsidiaries at June 30, 2006, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has
suffered recurring losses from operations which raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going
concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ UHY LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 20, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Implant Sciences Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Implant Sciences Corperation and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of June 30, 2005 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2005.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatemment. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal controls over financial reporting. Qur audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audif aiso
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Implant Sciences Corporation and subsidiaries at June 30, 2005, and the resuits of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2005, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has
suffered recurring losses from operations and has working capital and stockholder deficits as of June 30, 2005.
These matters raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concem. Management's plans in
regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
October 10, 2005
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IMPLANT SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowance of $121,000 and $147,000, respectively
Accounts receivable, unbilled

Inventories

Investments - available for sale securities

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangible assets, net
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiary
Other non-current assets

Goodwill

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt and obligations under capital lease
Line of credit

Payable to Med-Tec

Accrued expenses

Accounts payable

Current portion of long- term lease liability

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt and obligations under capital lease, net of current maturities
Long-term lease liability

Derivatives related to preferred stock features

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Series D Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock; $10 stated value;
500,000 shares authorized 409,091 outstanding as of June 30, 2006

Stockholders' equity

Comman stock, $0.10 par value; 50,000,000 and 20,000,000 shares authorized at
June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively; 11,733,804 and 10,756,842 shares issued and
outstanding, at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Deferred compensation

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Treasury stock, 26,994 and 22,449 common shares, respectively, at cost

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

June 30,

2006 2005
$2,204,000 $1,549,000
3,695,000 3,003,000
43,000 298,000
1,532,000 1,204,000
222,000 204,000
505,000 224,600
8,201,000 6,482,000
8,909,000 10,434,000
1,620,000 2,340,600
174,000 531,000
229,000 228,000
11,666,000 12,213,000
$ 30,799,000 § 32,228,000
$ 420,000 % 2,052,000
1,000,000 -
233,000 348,000
1,985,000 2,445,000
1,699,000 1,526,000
126,000 102,000
479,000 773,000
5,942,000 7,246,000
692,000 897,000
575,000 701,000
1,094,000 -
8,303,000 8,244,000
2,568,000 -
1,173,000 1,075,000
55,284,000 50,995,000
(36,290,000) (28,115,000}
(17,000) (349,000)
14,000 (5,000)
(236,000) (217,000)
19,928,000 23,384,000
$ 30,799,000 § 32,228,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




IMPLANT SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Medical
Semiconductor
Security products
Total revenues

Cost of revenues:

Cost of medical revenues

Cost of semiconductor revenues
Cost of security product revenues
Total cost of revenues

Gross margin

Operating expenses:

Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Impairment of goodwill

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other income (expenses):

Interest income

Interest expense

Loss on extinguishment of debt instrument

Change in fair value of embedded derivatives related to preferred
stock features
Equity losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries

Total other expense, net

Net loss
Preferred distribution, dividends and accretion

Net loss applicable to common shareholders

Net per share applicable to common shareholders, basic and diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding used in computing
basic and diluted loss per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. -
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Years Ended June 30,

2006 2005 2004

$ 4,464,000 $ 4,146,000 $ 4,957,000
15,056,000 6,630,000 1,022,000
6,871,000 1,510,000 2,587,000
26,391,000 12,286,000 8,566,000
3,869,000 3,821,000 3,822,000
11,953,000 6,316,000 1,280,000
6,222,000 1,919,000 1,084,000
22,044,000 12,056,000 6,186,000
4,347,000 230,000 2,380,000
1,313,000 1,942,000 1,631,000
8,933,000 5,524,000 4,599,000
457,000 - -
10,703,000 7,466,000 6,230,000
(6,356,000) (7,236,000 (3,850,000)
50,000 48,000 23,000
(246,000) (142,000) (135,000)
(1,294,000) - -
1,121,000 - -
(359,000) (75,000) (50,000)
(728,000 (169,000) (162,000)
(7,084,000) (7,405,000) (4,012,000)
(1,089,000 (1,183,000) (2,527,000)
$(8,173,000) $(8,588,000)  $(6,539,000)
$ (0.72) $(0.91) $ (0.89)
11,325,842 9,412,548 7.317,677
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IMPLANT SCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30,

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of intangible assets

Share-based compensation expense

Equity loss in unconsclidated subsidiaries

Loss on equipment write down

Change in fair value of embedded derivatives

Loss on extinguishment of debt instrument

Impairment charge

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Long-term lease hability

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of equipment

Investment in- available for sale securities

Acquisition of Core Systems, net of cash received

Acquisition of Accurel Systems International, net of cash received
Increase in other non-current assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock including the
exercise of options and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Proceeds from warrant exercise

Proceeds from issuance of 5% Series B Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs

Proceeds from issuance of 5% Series C Cumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs

Proceeds from term note, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from issuance of Series D Cumulative Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs

Dividends on Series D Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
Principal payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Borrowing from line of credit

Acquisition of treasury shares

Principal payments of notes receivable from employees
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in connection with
private placement, net of issuance costs

Net cash flows provided by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2006 2005 2004
$(7,084,000)  $(7,405,000)  $(4,012,000)
2,332,000 1,611,000 881,000
721,000 589,000 382,000
2,493,000 378,000 1,668,000
359,000 75,000 50,000
43,000 357,000 .
(1,121,000) - .
1,294,000 - -
457,000 - -
(437,000) 433,000  (1,365,000)
(328,000) (549,000) (8,000)
(281,000) 59,000 (102,000)
180,000 (19,000) (171,000)
(533,000) 454,000 (6,000)
(294,000 714,000 36,000
- (26,000) -
(2,199,000)  (3.329,000)  (2,647,000)
(618,000) (688.,000) (355,000)
- 1,400,000 .
(1,000) (25,000) {40,000)
- (2,404,000 .
- (6,425,000 -
(33,000) (75,000) (105,000
(652,000)  (8,217.000) (500,000)
49,000 896,000 559,000
70,000 141,000 1,102,000
- - 1,818,000
- - 2,282,000
2,833,000 - .
1,894,000 - -
(279,000) - .
(2,061,000  (2,083,000)  (1,579,000)
1,000,000 - -
- (54,000) -
- - 223,000
- 7,289,000 4.689.000
3,506,000 6,189,000 9,094,000
655,000 (5,357,000 5,947,000
1,549,000 6,906,000 959,000
$ 2204000 $ 1,549.000 $ 6,906,000




Years ended June 30,

2006 2005 2004

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: ‘
Interest paid in cash $ - $ 67,000 $ 135000
Noncash investing and Financing Activity:
Value of [PO warrant extension 3 - $ 479,000 $ 38,000
Issuance of Series B warrants by - b - $ 184,000
Nencash beneficial conversion feature - Series B $ - $ - $ 826,000
Issuance of Series C warrants 3 - $ - $ 305,000
Noncash beneficial conversion feature - Series C $ - 5 - $ 700,000
Capital equipment acquired under capital lease $ 223,000 § - 5 -
Conversion of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock

and accrued dividends into common stock $ - b - $ 1,531,000
Conversion of Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock

and accrued dividends into commeon stock 5 - 5 - $ 2,064,000
Conversion of Series C Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock

and accrued dividends into common stock 3 - $ 1,438,000 $ 1,181,000
Conversion of Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock

into common stock $ 909,000 b - $ -
Accretion of 7% Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

dividends, beneficial conversion feature and warrants b - $ - $ 564,000
Accretion of 5% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

dividends, beneficial conversion feature and warrants $ - $ - $ 1,287,000
Accretion of 5% Serics C Cumulative Cenvertible Preferred Stock

dividends, beneficial conversion feature and warrants $ - $ 704,000 $ 638,000
Accretion of Series D Cumulative Redeecmable Convertible Preferred Stock

dividends, derivatives and warrants $ 628,000 $ - $ -
Value of intangible asset acquired in exchange for long-term note

payable $ - $ - $ 1,007,000
Value of software technology acquired in exchange for cash and

shares of common stock 3 - $ 300,000 3 -
Repayment of term note with Series D Cumulative Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock $ 3,000,000 3 - $ -
Modification of embedded derivative related to Series D conversion feature $§ 817,000 b - 3 -




]

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

On October 15, 2004, the Company acquired Core Systems Incorporated -
Fair value of assets:

Accounts receivable $ 518,000
Inventory 174,000
Property, plant and equipment 3,422,000
Intangible assets . 335,000
Goodwill 4,647,000
Other assets 74,000
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,063,000)
Debt and capital leases {621,000)
Purchase price:
Cash paid for purchase of Core Systems, net of cash acquired (2,604,000}
Fair value of warrants issued (1,122,000)
Fair value of common stock issued $ 3,760,000

On March 9, 2005, the Company acquired Accurel Systems International Corporation -
Fair value of assets:

Accounts receivable § 1,073,000
Property, plant and equipment ' 3,957,000
Assets held for sale 1,400,000
Intangible assets 1,670,000
Goodwill 7,566,000
Other assets 183,000
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (557,000)
Long-term lease liability {829,000)
Debt and capital leases (2,440,000)
Purchase price:
Debt issued to seiling sharcholders (1,650,000)
Cash paid for purchase of Accurel, net of cash acquired (6,853,000)
Fair value of common stock issued $ 3,520,000

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.

47




1. Description of Business

Implant Sciences Corporation (the “Company™) develops products for the medical device and security
products industry. Its core technology involves ion implantation and thin film coatings of radioactive and non-
radioactive materials. The Company has received Food and Drug Administration 510(k) clearance to market
both its I-Plantc) Iodine-125 radioactive seed for the treatment of prostate cancer and its Ytterbium-169 source
for breast cancer therapy. The Company also modifies the surface characteristics of orthopedic joint implants to
reduce polyethylene wear and thercby increasing the life of the implant. The Company provides ion
implantation and analytical services to the semiconductor industry and also semiconductor equipment. The
Company markets and sells its existing trace explosives detector products while continuing to make significant
investments in developing the next generation of these progucts.

Risks and Uncertainties

While the Company strives to bring new products to market, it is subject to a number of risks similar to
other technology-based companies, including risks related to: (a) its dependence on key individuals and
collaborative rescarch partners; (b) competition from substitute products and larger companies; (c) its ability to
develop and market commercially usable products and obtain regulatory approval for its products under
development; and (d) its ability to obtain the substantial additional financing necessary to adequately fund the
development, commercialization and marketing of its products. For the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company
reported a net loss of $7,084,000 and used $2,199,000 in cash from operations. As of June 30, 2006, the
Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $36,290,000 and working capital of $2,259,000. The
Company has drawn $1,000,000 on a $1,500,000 revolving credit facility with a bank, which subsequent to June
30, 2006 was modified to extend its expiration date to December 31, 2007. Management continually evaluates
plans to reduce its operating expenscs and increase its cash flow from operations. Failure of the Company to
achieve its projections may require the Company to seek additional financing.

Management has prepared operating plans which would indicate the Company has sufficient financial
resources to sustain operations for at least the next twelve months. These plans depend on the successful
increase in the semiconductor service revenue. Management has also developed plans which provide for cost
cutting measures should projected revenues not be met. Management believes that these cost cuiting measures
will be sufficient to allow the Company to continue as a going concern should revenue projections not be met.

The Company's consolidated financial statcments have been presented on the basis that it is a going
concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business. The Company has suffered recurring losses from operations. The Company raised net proceeds
aggregating approximately $3,506,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 from the sale of common stock in
connection with a private placement and the exercise of options and warrants. Since the end of our fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, the Company has taken several steps to mitigate the risk of its ability to continue as a
going concern, The Series D preferred stock contains mandatory redemptions on a monthly basis beginning in
October 2006, These mandatory redemptions are redecmable in cash or shares of the Company’s common stock,
at the Company’s option so long as the price of the Company’s stock does not fall below 110% of the fixed
conversion price. There can be no assurances that forecasted results will be achieved or that the Company’s
stock price will remain at a Jevel to allow the Company to redeem the outstanding shares of Series D preferred
and accrued dividends with shares of its common stock.

During the course of fiscal 2006 the Company experienced significant growth in both its
semiconductor and security product businesses. The semiconductor business growth came as a result of a full
year of revenue from two companies acquired in fiscal 2005. In the fiscal 2006, the Security Division was
successful in transitioning its prototype products to manufacturable products. While initially, the Company
manufactured the product internally, over the course of the year, as a way to reduce the cost, the manufacturing
process was outsourced to a contract manufacturer.

The Company has a history of being active in submitting proposals for government sponsored grants
and contracts and successful in being awarded grants and contracts from government agencies. Management
will continue to pursue government grants and contracts to support its research and development efforts in the
areas of semiconductor, medical device and explosives and toxic substances detection.
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Based on the current sales, expense and cash flow projections, the Company believes that the current
level of cash and cash-equivalents on hand, and the net proceeds from the government awards mentioned above
would be sufficient to fund operations until the Company achieves profitability. However, because there can be
no assurances that sales will materialize as forecasted, management will centinue to closely menitor and atternpt
to control costs at the Company and will continue to actively seek the needed capital through government grants
and awards, strategic alliances, private financing sources, and through its lending institutions.

These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concem.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset
amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable
1o continue as a going concern.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principies of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
whelly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Some of
the more significant estimates include allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance for sales returns, inventory
valuation, warranty reserves, accounting for embedded derivatives, and impairment of goodwill and intangibles.
Management's estimates are based on the facts and circumstances available at the time estimates are made, past
historical experience, risk of loss, general economic conditions and trends and management's assessments of the
probable future outcome of these matters. Consequently, actual results could differ from such estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The Company considers any securities with original maturities of 90 days or less at the time of
investment to be cash equivalents,

The Company accounts for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Under SFAS
No. 115, securities purchased in order to be held for indefinite petiods of time and not intended at the time of
purchase to be held until maturity are classified as available-for-sale sccurities, At June 30, 2006, these
securities consisted of common stock in CardioTech Internationai, Inc. (“CardioTech™), a related party. This
common stock is recorded at fair market value with any unrealized gains and losses reported as a scparate
component of equity in other accumulated comprehensive income (loss).

Comprehensive Loss

The Company has accumulated other comprehensive losses resulting from the unrealized losses on an
investment in marketable securitics of CardioTech and the recognition of the unrcalized loss of the Company’s
share of CardioTech stock owned by CorNova, Inc. (“CorNova™), which is recorded as a scparate component of
equity in other accumulated comprehensive loss.

Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments, which at June 30, 2006 and 2005
include cash equivalents, investments in available for sale securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
long-term debt approximates their carrying values due to their short-term nature or market variable rates of
interest,
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Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods. Work-in-process and finished
goods includes labor and overhead, and are stated at the lower of cost (first in, first out) or market.

Property and Equipment

Equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost. Equipment is depreciated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from three to seven years. Equipment
purchased under capital leases and leasehold improvements are amortized based upon the lesser of the term of
the lease or the useful life of the asset and such expense is included in depreciation expense. Expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Description Estimated Lives
Machinery and equipment 5 -7 years
Computers and software 3 -5 years
Leasehold improvements and equipment Lesser of the remaining life of the lease
under capital leases or the useful life
Furniture and fixtures 5 -7 years
Motor vehicles 7 years
Warranty Costs

The Company accrues warranty costs in the period the related revenue is recognized. The following
table details the changes in the Company’s warranty reserve:

Year ended June 30,
2006 2005 2004
Beginning balance $ 66,000 $2,000 §2,000
Accrued warranty expense 133,000 64,000 -
Charges against the reserve  (133,000) - -
Ending balance $ 66,000 $ 66,000 $ 2,000

Income Taxes

The liability method is used to account for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities as
well as net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws
that will be in effect when the differences reverse. Deferred tax assets may be reduced by a valuation allowance
to reflect the uncertainty associated with their ultimate realization.

Patent Costs

As of June 30, 2006, there were 17 active patents issued. The Company expenses patent costs as
incurred.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” the Company reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets for possible impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable

At June 30, 2006, the Company had goodwill and intangible assets of $13,286,000. SFAS No. 142,

“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives no
longer be amortized but instead be measured for impairment at least annually or whenever events indicate that
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there may be an impairment. In order to determine if impairment exists, management continually compares the
reporting unit's carrying value to the reporting unit's fair value. The Company has four reporting units, medical,
explosives detection, semiconducior wafer processing and semiconductor analytical services. All of the
Company’s goodwill is allocated to the semiconductor wafer processing and the semiconductor analytical
services reporting units. Determining the reporting unit's fair value requires management to make estimates
based on market conditions and operational performance. Absent an event that indicates a specific impairment
may exist, management has selected August 31st as the date of performing the annuwal goodwill impairment test
and has concluded the goodwill is impaired in its semiconductor wafer processing reporting unit. The
assessment required a write down of our goodwill by $457,000 which has been expensed in the year ended June
30, 2006. Future events could cause management to conclude that additional impairment indicators exist and
that goodwill associated with the Company’s acquired businesses is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss
could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Intangible assets with finite lives consist of acquired customer base, technology and trademarks and are
valued according to the future cash flows they are estimated to produce. These assigned values are amortized on
a basis which matches the periods in which those cash flows are estimated to be produced. The Company
continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate that the estimated remaining
useful life of its intangible assets may warrant revision or that the carrying value of these assets may be
impaired. To compute whether intangible assets with finite lives have been impaired, the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows for the estimated remaining useful life of the assets are compared to the carrying
value. To the extent that the future cash flows are less than the carrying value, the assets are written down to the
estimated fair value of the asset. The intangible assets were not considered to be impaired at June 30, 2006 and
2005.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of
trade receivables.

The Company grants credit to its customers, primarily large corporations in the medical device and
‘semiconductor industries and the U.S. government. The Company performs periodic evaluations of customer’s
payment history and generally does not require collateral. Receivables are generally due within thirty days.
Credit losses have historically been minimal, which is consistent with management’s expectations. Reserves are
provided for estimated amounts of accounts receivable which may not be collected. The Company has no
significant off-balance sheet risk such as foreign-exchange contracts, option contracts or other foreign hedging
arrangements. The Company places its cash with financial institutions which it believes are of high credit

quality.

The Company had two major customers with revenues in excess of 10% of the Company’s total
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 and three in 2004, that accounted for the following annual
Tevenue:

2006 2005 2004
% of Total % of Total % of Total
Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues Revenues
Company A $3,478,000 13% $2,020,000 16% $2.969,000 35%
Company B 1,457,000 6% 1,586,000 13% 1,585,000 19%
Company C - - - - 883,000 10%
Company D 2,650,000 10% - - - -
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At June 30, 2006 and 2003, this customer accounted for the following amounts of accounts receivable:

2006 2005
Accounts % of Accounts % of
Receivable (1) Total A/R Receivable (1) Total A/R
Company A $ 362,000 10% % 843,000 26%

(1) Contains billed and unbilled revenue

The following table details the changes in the Company’s reserve for uncollectible accounts:

Year ended June 30,
2006 2005 2004
Beginning balance $ 147,000 $8%,000 $ 50,000
Additional accruals to the reserve 3,000 78,000 39,000
Charges against the reserve (29,000)  (20,000) -
Ending balance $121,000 § 147,000 $ 89,000

Employee Stock-Based Compensation

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004) “Share-Based Payments,” (“SFAS 123R™), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS 123R supersedes Accounting Principal Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25,
*“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” Generally,
the approach in SFAS 123R is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123, however, SFAS 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options and stock issued from certain
employee stock purchase plans, to be recognized in eamings based on their modified-grant date fair values, Pro
forma disclosure is no longer an alternative.

Prior to July 1, 2005, as was permitted under SFAS No. 123, the Company accounted for stock-based
awards using the intrinsic value method under APB No. 25. In general, pursuant to APB No. 25, when the
exercise price of options granted to employees and non-employee directors under these plans equals the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, no compensation expense was recorded.

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123R. The Company selected the modified
prospective method of adoption in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date for
all share-based payments to employees after June 30, 2005 and any unvested share-based payments to
cmployees as of the effective date. In accordance with the modified prospective method of adoption, the
Company’s results of operations for prior periods have not been restated.

The Company has refined certain estimates used previously based upon the guidance provided under
SFAS 123R, specificaltly the expected life of the option and estimated forfeitures. The calculation of the fair
value of the awards for quarters ended September 30, 2005 and thereafter has been adjusted to reflect these
refined assumptions.
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The following tabte illustrates the effect on net loss applicable to common shareholders and net loss per
share applicable to common shareholders as if the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and
unvested awards in the prior period:

Years Ended June 340,
2005 2004
Net loss applicable to common shareholders, as reported $ (8,588,000) $(6,539,000)
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported
net loss applicable to common shareholders, net of tax 279,000 295,000
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under the fair value based method of all awards, net of tax (1,501,000} (856,000)
Pro forma net loss applicable to common shareholders $(10,210,000) % (7,100,000)
Net loss per share applicable to common shareholders, basic and diluted;
As reported 5091} $(0.89)
Proforma $(1.08) $(0.97)

Under the provisions of SFAS 123R the Company recorded 32,348,000 of stock based compensation,
which includes $58,000 of compensation expense attributable to its Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Included in
the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2006 is $145,000 of compensation expense
attributable to other non-employee options and warrants.

The total non-cash stock-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended June 30, 2006 is included in the following expense categories:

Years Ended
2006 2005 2004
Cost of revenues $ 620,000 $ 2,000 $ 89,000
Research and development 122,000 241,000 300,000
Selling, general and administrative 1,751,000 135,000 1,279,000
Total $2,493,000 $378,000 $1,668,0000

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model using the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatility is based on historical
volatility of the Company’s common stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option forfeitures
within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is calculated using the “Simplified Method” as
outlined SFAS 123R and reflects the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The
risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of grant.

Stock
Stock Option Plans Purchase Plan

2006 2005 2004 2006
Risk free interest rate 3.72 %-4.89% 4.10%-4.73% 2.87%-6.69% 4.33% - 4.79%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
Expected lives (years) 2.5-6years” 5-10years 5-10years 6 months
Expected volatility 68%-81%  62%-68%  47%-68% 49% - 61%
Expected forfeiture rate 4% 0% 0% 0%
Contractual term 5-10years 5-10years 5-10years 6 months

(n The -estimate of an option’s expected life has been updated and revised for all grants

outstanding prior to adoption based upon guidance provided under SFAS 123R and the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) Topic 107. The estimate of expected life
was revised to use the “simplified method” to determine the expected life of an option versus the
contractual life as previously used.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement with the
customer which states a fixed or determinable price and terms, delivery of the product has occurred or the
service performed in accordance with the terms of the sale, and collectibility of the sale is reasonably assured.
The Company provides for estimated returns at the time of shipment based on historical data. Shipping costs
charged to the customer are include in revenues and are not significant.

Contract revenue under cost-sharing research and development agreements is recognized as eligible
research and development expenses are incurred. The Company’s obligation with respect to these agreements is
to perform the research on a best-efforts basis.

Treatment systems planning revenues consists of sales of software licenses and maintenance
agreements, product related training, installation, and consulting, and the associated hardware. Revenue from
sales of software licenses and maintenance agreements is recognized ratably over the maintenance contract
period, which is generally one year, pursuant to the guidance provided by Statement of Position (*SOP™) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition” (SOP 97-2), issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA). Revenue from training, installation, consulting services and the associated hardware are recognized as
the services are performed or product is delivered, provided there is vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE)
of fair value which is the price charged when the services are sold separately. Revenues from treatment planning
systems is included in medical revenues and amounted to $121,000 in 2006, Revenue from treatment planning
systems was immaterial in 2005 and $0 in 2004.

Deferred revenues are recorded when the Company receives payments for product or services for
which it has not yet completed its obligation to deliver product or has not completed services required by
agreements.

Accounts Receivable

Contract revenue under cost sharing research and development agreements is recognized as eligible
expenses are incurred. Invoicing of research and development contracts occurs in accordance with the terms of
the contract. Revenue recognized but unbilled is recorded as unbilled accounts receivable. At June 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004 unbilled accounts receivable represented approximately 1%, 9% and 67% of total accounts
receivable. Generally, there are no prerequisites necessary to invoice.

Research and Development Costs

All costs of research and development activities are expensed as incurred. The Company performs
research and development for itself and under contracts with others, primarily the U.S. government. In addition,
periodically, the Company may continue its research on such projects at its own expense. These costs are
considered Company funded research and development. Customer funded research and development are
considered cost of revenues.

The Company funded and customer reimbursed research and development costs were as follows:

Years ended June 30,

2006 2005 2004
Company funded $1,313,000 § 1,942,000 $ 1,631,000
Customer funded 2,775,000 1,691,000 2,210,000
Total research and development $ 4,088,000 $ 3,633,000 $ 3,841,000
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Software Development Cosis

The Company accounts software development costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed.” Accordingly, the costs for the
devetopment of new software and substantial enhancements to existing software are expensed as incurred until
technological feasibility has been established, at which time, any additional costs are capitalized. The Company
believes technological feasibility has been established at the time at which a working model of the software has
been completed and costs eligible for capitalization are immaterial.

FEarnings (Loss) per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed based only on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period, plus the dilutive effects of shares issuable through the
exercise of stock options {common stock equivalents) uniess their inclusion would be antidilutive. In calculating
diluted earnings per share, the dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is computed using the average
market price for the period. Basic and diluted net loss per share available for common shareholders is the same
for all periods presented as outstanding common stock options and warrants have been excluded because they
are antidilutive,

The Company had the following potential dilutive securities outstanding on June 30, 2006: options and
warrants to purchase 1,836,551 and 1,756,228 shares, respectively, of the Company’s common stock at
weighted average exercise prices of $5.41 and $7.679 per share, respectively and (ii) Series D Preferred Stock
convertible into an aggregate of 985,761 shares of the Company’s common stock. Such potential dilutive
securities were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share in 2006 because the inclusion thereof
would be antidilutive.

The Company had the following potential dilutive securities outstanding on June 30, 2005: options and
warrants to purchase 1,908,331 and 2,324,389 shares, respectively, of the Company’s common stock at
weighted average exercise prices of $5.66 and $9.53 per share, respectively, Such potential dilutive securities
were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share in 2005 because the inclusion thereof would be
antidilutive.

The Company had the following potential dilutive securities outstanding on June 30, 2004: (i) options
and warrants to purchase 1,162,065 and [,876,803 shares, respectively, of the Company’s common stock at
weighted average exercise prices of $5.55 and $9.72 per share, respectively, and (ii) Series C Preferred Stock
convertible into an aggrepate of 195,370 shares of the Company’s common stock. Such potential dilutive
securities were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share in 2004 because the inclusion thereof
would be antidilutive.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred within selling, general and administrative expense.
Advertising costs were immaterial for the years ended June 30 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Shipping and Handling
The Company accounts for its shipping and handling cost within its cost of revenues.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FAS 154, Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. This Statement shall be
effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. Early adoption is permitted for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years
beginning after the date this Statement is issued. This Statement does not change the transition provisions of any
existing accounting pronouncements, including those that are in a transition phase as of the effective date of this




Statement. The adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FAS 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid
Financial Instruments—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140. This Statement shall be effective
for all financial instruments acquired, issued, or subject to a remeasurement (new basis) event occurring after
the beginning of an cntity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The fair value election
provided for in paragraph 4(c) of this Statement may also be applied upon adoption of this Statement for hybrid
financial instruments that had been bifurcated under paragraph 12 of Statement 133 prior to the adoption of this
Statement, Earlier adoption 6 is permitted as of the beginning of an entity’s fiscal year, provided the entity has
not yet issued financial statements, including financial statements for any interim period, for that fiscal year. The
adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006, Earlicr application is encouraged if the cnterprise has not yet issued financial statements,
including interim financial statements, in the period the Interpretation is adopted. This interpretation of FAS 109
is not expected to have a matcrial impact on the Company’s financial position or resuits of operations.

In September 2005, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus on Issue No.
05-07, Accounting for Madificaiions to Conversion Options Embedded in Debt Instruments and Related Issues
{“EITF 05-07"). EITF 05-07 requires that a change in the fair value of a conversion option brought about
by modifying the debt agreement be included in analyzing in accordance with EITF consensus on Issue No.
96-19, Debtor's Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments (“EITF 96-19"}, whether a
debt instrument is considered extinguished. Under EITF 96—19°s requirements, an issuer who modifies a debt
instrument must compare the present value of the original debt instrument’s cash flows to the present value of
the cash flows of the modificd debt. If the present value of those cash flows varies by more than 10 percent, the
modification is considered significant and extinguishments accounting is applied to the original debt. If the
change in the present valuc of the cash flows is less than 10 percent, the debt is considered to be modified and is
subject to EITF 96—19°s modification accounting. EITF 05-07 requires that in applying the 10 percent test the
change in the fair value of the conversion option be treated in the same manner as a current period cash flow.
EITF 05—07 also requires that, if a modification docs not result in an extinguishment, the change in fair value of
the conversion option be accounted for as an adjustment to interest expense over the remaining term of the debt.
The issuer should not recognize a beneficial conversion feature or reassess an existing beneficial conversion
feature upon modification of the conversion option of a dcbt instrument that does not result in
an extinguishment. EITF 0507 is effective for modifications of debt instruments beginning in the first interim
or annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of EITF 05-07 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In Scptember 2005, the EITF reached a conscnsus on lssue No. 05-08, frcome Tax Consequences of
Issuing Convertible Debt with a Beneficial Conversion Feature (“EITF 05-08"). Under EITF 05-08, the
issuance of convertible debt with a beneficial conversion feature results in a temporary difference for purposes
of applying FAS No. 109, dccounting for Income Taxes. The deferred taxes rccognized for the temporary
difference should be recorded as an adjustment to paid—in capital. EITF 9805, Accounting for Convertible
Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Rarios, and EITF 0027,
Application of Issie No. 98—05 to Certain Convertible Instruments, require that the nondetachable conversion
feature of a convertible debt security be accounted for scparately if it is a beneficial conversion feature. A
beneficial conversion feature is recognized and measured by allocating to additional paid—in capital a portien of
the proceeds equal to the conversion feature’s intrinsic value. A discount on the convertible debt is recognized
for the amount that is allocated to additional paid—in capital. The debt discount is accreted from the date of
issuance to the stated redemption date of the convertible instrument or through the carliest conversion date if the
instrument does not have a stated redemption date. The U.S. Federal Income Tax Code includes the entire
amount of proceeds received at issuance as the 1ax basis of the convertible debt security, EITF 05-08 should be
applied retrospectively to all instruments with a beneficial conversion feature accounted for under EITF 98-03
and EITF 0027 for periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of
EITF 05—08 to have material impact on the Company's conselidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.
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In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115~1 and FAS 124-1, The Meaning of
Other—Than—Temporary Impairment and Its Application 10 Certain Investments (“FSP FAS 115-] and FAS
124-17). This FSP nullifies certain requirements of EITF Issue No. 03—01 and supersedes EITF Abstracts,
Topic No. D44, Recognition of Other—Than—Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of a Security
Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value. Based on the clarification provided in FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124—1, the
amount of any other—than—temporary impairment that needs to be recognized will continue to be dependent
on market conditions, the occurrence of certain events or changes in circumstances relative to an investee and an
entity’s intent and ability to hold the impaired investment at the time of the valuation. FSP FAS 115—1 and FAS
124~1 are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the
impact of adopting the guidance in FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 to have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement (“FAS 1577). FAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. FAS 157 is effective for financial statements issucd for fiscal years beginning after November
15, 2007 and interim periods within thosc fiscal years. The Company is evaluating the impact of adopting FAS
157 on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

3. Acquisitions
Core Systems Incorporated

On October 135, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of Core Systems Incerporated (“Core™),
a privately held semiconductor wafer processing company. The transaction was structured as a reorganization of
Core with and into a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The operating results of Core
Systcms have been included in the Company’s statement of operations beginning October 15, 2004,

The aggregate purchase price of Core was $7,486,000, which consisted of $2,000,000 in cash; 311,437
shares of the Company's common stock with an aggregate fair value of $3,250,000; direct acquisition costs of
approximately $1,726,000 and the payment of approximately $510,000 of debt and other obligations coincident
with the closing which were paid by issuing 48,875 shares of the Company’s common stock. The number of
shares issued was initially determined by the average price of the Company’s stock over a twenty day period
ending October 8, 2004. The share price was subject to adjustment limiting the gain or loss in the value of the
Company stock, over a twenty day period at the end of a six month lock-up, ending April 15, 2003, to 25% from
the initial value. The twenty day average price of the stock for the period ending April 15, 2005 was $5.75
which resulted in the need to issuc an additional 112,475 shares. These shares were issued in August 2005. The
fair value of the Company's common stock was determined based on the average market price of the Company's
common stock over a period of time before October 15, 2004, the date fair value is to be determined, pursuant to
Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 99-12, “Determination of the Measurement Date for the Market
Price of Acquirer Securities Issued in a Purchase Business Combination.” In addition the purchase was subject
to an earn out, payablc in Company stock, which if carned would be accounted for as additional purchase price.
The earn out period measurement date was October 14, 2005. No earn out payments became due,

Core Purchase Price

Cash $ 2,000,000
Common stock 3,250,000
Common stock used to retire debt 510,000
Warrant 1,122,000
Direct costs 604,000

$ 7,486,000
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The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

October 15, 2004

Accounts receivable $ 518,000
Inventory 174,000
Property and equipment 3,422,000
Other intangible assets 335,000
Goodwill 4,647,000
Other assets 74,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,063,000)
Debt and capital leases {621,000)

$ 7,486,000

The allocation of purchase price is the responsibility of management, The Company has considered a
number of factors, including professional appraisals, for the valuation of equipment acquired, in making its
purchase price allocation determination. The acquisition of Core resulted in goodwill of $4,647,000. The
Company also identified $335,000 of intangible assets with finite lives. The intangible assets are being
amortized over a period of sixty months, the estimated useful lives of the assets, from the date of acquisition,
October 15, 2004. Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 related to these intangible
assets was $66,000 and $47,000, respectively. In fiscal 2006, after performing its annual assessment of goodwill
and other intangible assets, management recorded an impairment charge of $457,000 against the goodwill
attributable to Core. This charge is reflected in the statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2006.

The acquisition of Core is accounted for as a purchase under SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”
Accordingly, the operating results of Core are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
since the acquisition date as part of the Company's semiconductor reporting segment.

Accurel Systems International Corporation

On March 9, 2005, the Company acquired all of the stock of Accurel Systems International
Corporation (“Accurel™), a California § Corporation, from existing sharecholders. The aggregate purchase price
of Accurel of $12,176,000 consists of the issnance of 418,194 shares of the Company’s common stock with a
fair value of $3,520,000 based upon a value per share of $8.42, $6,036,000 in cash, $1,650,000 note payable to
the former Accurel shareholders and estimated direct acquisition costs of $970,000. The sharcholder notes
became due in 120 days from the closing and earned interest at 5%. The notes were collateralized by all of the
equipment of Accurel, The notes were paid in fuil on July 8, 2005. The shares issued were determined based on
the average market price of the securities over a twenty day period ending March 8, 2005. The share price for
valuation purposes was determined by the average share price for the period just prior to the date of the merger
agreement announcement, pursuant to the guidance in EITF Issue No. 99-12. The purchase is subject to a 12-
month holdback of $500,000 subject to the settlement of any and all pre-acquisition contingencies not
specifically identified in the closing balance sheet. The shares issued were also subject to adjustrnent if the
Company’s average stock price during the twenty trading days prior to the end of a three month lock-up is 25%
higher or lower than the price on the closing date. The effect of this adjustment is to limit the selling
shareholders’ gain or loss on the Company’s commeon stock to 25% during the lock-up period ended June 9,
2005. The average stock price for the twenty day period ended June 9, 2005 was $2.97. In August 2005, an
additional 504,144 shares of Company cormimon stock was issued as a result of this adjustment. Accurel’s results
from operations are included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations beginning March 9, 2005,
the date of acquisition.

Accurel Purchase Price

Cash $ 6,036,000
Common stock 3,520,000
Notes payable to former shareholders 1,650,000
Direct costs 970,000

$ 12,176,000
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The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition;

March §, 2005

Cash $ 153,000
Accounts receivable 1,073,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets 183,000
Property, plant and equipment 3,957,000
Intangible assets with finite lives 1,670,000
Goodwill 7,566,000
Assets held for sale 1,400,000
Other liabilities (1,386,000)
Debt and capital leases (2,440,000)

$12,176,000

The above allocation of the purchase price includes the value of the intangible asscts, determined to be
$1,670,000 and goodwill of $7,566,000. The intangible assets are being amortized over periods of eighteen
months to seven years based on their estimated useful lives. Amortization expense for these assets for the years
ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $320,000 and $108,000, respectively. The allocation of the purchase price of
Accurel is based on management estimates and assumptions and the results of independent appraisals. The
allocation of purchase price is the responsibility of management. The Company considered a number of factors,
including professional appraisals, in making its final determination. Included in the above allocation is an
unfavorable lease obligation of $829,000, which was recorded as a long-term lease liability in accordance with
SFAS 141. This liability reflects the estimated amount that Accurel’s future obligations under its facility lease
are above the fair value of the leased facility, based on current market conditions on the acquisition date, The
lease expires in 2010. During the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company amortized approximately
$102,000 and $26,000, respectively, related to this long-term leasc liability.

The acquisition of Accurel is accounted for as a purchasc under SFAS No. 141. Accordingly, the
operating results of Accurel are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements since the
acquisition date as part of the Company's semiconductor reporting segment.

The following table presents selected unaudited financial information of the Company including Core
Systems Incorporated and Accurel Systems International Corporation as if the acquisitions had occurred on July
1, 2003. The unaudited pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred
had the acquisition of Core Systems and Accurel been consuminated on July 1, 2003, or of future results.

Year Ended
June 30,
2005

2004

Revenues

Loss from operations

Net Loss

Preferred distribution, dividends and accretion

Net loss applicable to common shareholders

Net loss per share applicable to comumon shareholders, basic and diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted

$19.126,000

(7.356.000)

$21,100,000

(3,601,000)

(7,735,000)

(1,183,000

(3,924,000)

(2,527,000)

($8,918,000)

(56,448,000)

($0.88)

(50.74)

10,168,743

8,663,924




4. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

June 30,
2006 2005
Raw materials £ 965,000 $ 548,000
Work-in-progress 291,000 416,000
Finished goods 276,000 240,000

$1,532,060 $ 1,204,000

The reserve for excess and cbsolete inventory was $356,000, $204,000 and $81,000 as of June 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Year ended June 30,
2006 2005 2004
Beginning balance $ 204,000 $ 81,000 $ 61,000
Additional expense accrued to the reserve 212,000 204,000 81,000
Charges against the reserve (60,000) (81,000} (61,000)
Ending balance $ 356,000 $ 204,000 $ 81,000
5. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
June 30,
2006 2005
Machinery and equipment $ 13,901,000 $13,812,000
Construction in progress 679,000 474,000
Computers and software 769,000 648,000
Leasehold improvements 445,000 356,000
Furniture and fixtures 337,000 212,000
Equipment under capital lease 282,000 122,000
Total property and equipment 16,413,000 15,624,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (7,504,000} (3,190,000)

$ 8,909,000 $ 10,434,000

The Company recorded depreciation expense of approximately $2,423,000, $1,580,000 and $866,000
for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Capitalized leases and leaschold improvements
are amortized based upon the lesser of the term of the lease or the useful life of the asset and such expense is
included in depreciation expense.

6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 30,
2006 2005
Accrued costs related to acquisitions $ 304,000 3 794,000
Accrued compensation and benefits 883,000 730,000
Other accrued liabilities 798,000 921,000
$ 1,985,000 $ 2,445,000
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7. Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

In March 2004, the Company entered into an Exchange & Venture Agreement with CardioTech
International, Inc. (“CardioTech™), a public company and related party of the Company, and CorNova, Inc.
(“CorNova”) (Note 9). CorNova is a start-up company incorperated as a Delaware corporation on October 12,
2003. CorNova’s focus is the development and marketing of innovative interventional cardioiogy products. The
Company has determined that its technology may have applications in CorNova’s products. In connection with
the agreement, in March 2004, the Company and CardieTech issued 10,344 and 12,931 sharcs, respectively, of
their respective common steck (the “Contributory Shares™) bearing an aggregate fair market value of $113,000
and 376,000, respectively, as of the date of the issuance. In exchange, the Company and CardioTech each
received 1,500,000 shares of CorNova’s common stock, which represented a 30% ownership position for each
party. In February 2005, upon CorNova’s securing of an additional $3,000,000 in financing (“Series A™),
CardioTech and the Company cach issued an additional shares of their common stock (the “Investment
Shares”), which was equal in value to twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross proceeds of the Series A
Financing, or $750,000. The Company and CardioTech issued additional 76,687 and 308,642 shares of their
common stock, respectively. As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s sharcs represent an 18% and 18.9%
respectively, ownership pesition in CorNova, and had a pesition on the Board of Directors.

Both the Contributory Shares and the Investment Shares (collectively, the “Securitics™) are restricted
securttics within the meaning of Rule 144 of the Sccurities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securitics Act”) and none of the Securities may be sold except pursuant to an
effective registration statement under the Securities Act or under the securitics laws of any state, or in a
transaction exempt from registration under the Securities Act.

The Company is accounting for this investment under the equity method pursuant to APB Opinion No.
18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Commeon Stock.™ As of June 30, 2006, 87,031 shares
have been issued to CorNova by the Company, 16,449 of which have been categorized as treasury stock in the
accompanying balance sheet. These shares represent an approximate 18% of the shares issued. The Company's
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO™) is one of the directors of CorNova. For the vears ended June 30, 2006, 2005
and 2004, the Company recognized approximatety $359,000, $75,000 and $50,000, respectively, of equity
losses in unconsolidated subsidiaries, representing the Company’s portion of CorNova’s net loss. The Company
also recorded approximately $2,000 as an unrealized gain in 2006 and $78,000 and $6,000 as unrcalized losses
for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gains and losses are recorded as other comprehensive
income in the equity section of the Company’s financial statements. CorNova’s unaudited results for the twelve
month period ended June 30, 2006 were:

Year Ended June 30,

2006 2005 2004
Revenue $ 92,000 $ 34,000 -
Expenscs 2,201,000 646,000 § 45,000
Income tax benefit 180,000 240,000 -
Net Loss ($1,929,000) ($372,000) ($45,000)

CorNova is developing a series of coronary stents used in angioplasty procedures. The ultimate goal is
to market and sell a new drug eluting stent based on proprictary technology provided by the Company and
CardioTech. All stents are primarily to be distributed in the non-US markets. The first part of the plan is to
market a new Cobalt-Chrome stent which has been developed and is scheduled to be released carly in calendar
2007. The drug cluting version which is based upon the Cobalt-Chrome base is still undergoing development
testing.

8. Research and Development Arrangements

The Company is the recipient of scveral grants under the U.S. Government’s Small Business
Innovative Rescarch (SBIR) Program. These grants from the National Institute of Health are firm-fixed priced
contracts and generally range in length from six 1o twenty-four months. Contracts received from the Department
of Defense are both firm-fixed price and cost-plus type programs and also range from six to twenty-four months.
Revenues under such arrangements were approximately $3.478,000, $2,022,000 and $2,969,000 for the vears
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ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Revenues earned under these contracts are recognized in the
apptopriate business segment.

Year ended June 30,
Segment 2006 2005 2004
Medical $ 365,000 $ 444,000 $ 506,000
Semiconductor - - -
Security products 3,113,000 1,294,000 2,463,000
Total $ 3,478,000 $ 1,738,000 $ 2,969,000

Unbilled accounts receivable relating to such arrangements was approximately $21,000, $298,000 and
$1,434,000 at June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

9. Related Party Transactions

SFAS No. 57, “Related Party Disclosures,” specifies the nature of information that should be disclosed
in financial statements regarding related party transactions. CardioTech, a publicly traded company whose
common stock trades under the symbol CTE on the American Stock Exchange, s a related party with the
Company by virtue of its significant business relationships.

Certain directors of the Company hold positions as directors of CardioTech. The CEO and Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company is also a director of CardioTech. The CEO and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of CardioTech is also a director of the Company.

In March 2000, the Company entered into a joint research agreement with CardioTech to develop a
proprietary porous polymer biccompatible coating technology as a platform for the Company’s proprietary
radioactive brachytherapy technology. In consideration for this agreement, the Company agreed to pay $150,000
in cash and purchase 100,000 shares of CardioTech stock at a price of $1.00 per share. As of June 30, 2006, the
Company has purchased these shares, the fair market value of which is $196,000 and is recorded as investments
in available for sale securities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The unrealized helding gains
and losses are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity.

In March 2004 the Company entered into an Exchange & Venture Agreement with CardioTech and
CorNova (Note 7). The Company’s CECQ and the Company’s Chairman of the Nominating Committee are also
on the Board of Directors of CorNova.

10. Commitments and Coentingencies
(a) Capital and Operating Leases

The Company has an operating lease for its manufacturing, research and office space in Wakefield,
MA which expires on December 31, 2008. The Company has an option to extend the lease for five additional
years. Under the terms of the lease, the Company is responsible for its proportionate share of real estate taxes
and operating expenses relating to this facility. The Company also has leases for both of its facilities in
Sunnyvale, CA. The leases expire in December 2009 and September 2010 and the Company has an option to
extend each lease for five additional years. The Company also has a small satellite facility in Austin, TX with a
lease that expired in September 2006, The Company is currently negotiating a new lease for this location. Under
the terms of the leases, the Company is responsible for its proportionate share of real estate taxes and operating
expenses relating to these facilities. Total rental expense, including maintenance and real estate tax expenses, for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2,042,000, $1,352,000 and $644,000, respectively,

In conjunction with the acquisition of Accurel, the Company recorded a leasc liability of $829,000,
This liability reflects managements estimate of the excess of payments required under the Accurel facility lease,
at the date of acquisition, versus the fair market value of lease payments that would have been required, if the
lease had been negotiated under current market conditions. The balance of the lease liability on June 30, 2006 is
$701,000, of which $126,000 is current.
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Future minimum rental payments required under capital leases and operating leases with non-
cancelable terms in excess of one year at June 30, 2006, together with the present value of net minimum lease
payments are as follows:

Capital Lease Operating
Payments Lease
Payments

Year ending June 30:
2007 $ 105,000 $ 1,678,000
2008 93,000 1,709,000
2009 77,000 1,454,000
2010 66,000 838,000
2011 44 000 150,000
Total future minimum lease payments $385,000 $ 5,829,000
Less: amounts representing interest (90,000}
Present value of future minimum lease payments 295,000
Less: current portion (70,000)
Capital lease obligation, net of current portion $225,000

(b) Employment Agreements

On June 30, 2004, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Anthony f. Armini,
the Company’s President and CEQ, with an initial term of three years and an automatic renewal for a successive
period of three years, unless the Company or Dr. Armini give the other party not less than three months written
notice of non-renewal, Under this employment agreement, Dr. Armini serves as the Company’s president and
chief executive officer at a base salary of up to $210,000 and is subject to increase as authorized by the
Compensation Committee, In addition, Dr. Armini may participate in the Company’s employee fringe benefit
plans or programs gencrally available to employees of comparable status and position. The Company is entitled
to terminate his employment for any material breach of his employment agreement at any time upon at least 30
days® written notice. In the event the Company terminates Dr. Armini’s employment without cause, the
Company will pay him 12 months salary. Under his employment agreement, he is subject to restrictive
covenants, including confidentiality provisions. Also, during his employment and for a period of two years afler
the term of the employment agreement, Dr. Armini is subject to a non-competition provision.

On June 30, 2004, the Company entered into an employment agreernent with Dr. Stephen Bunker, the
Company’s Vice President and Chief Scientist, with an initial term of three years and an automatic renewal for a
successive period of three years, unless the Company or Dr. Bunker give the other party not less than three
months writien notice of non-renewal. Under this employment agreement, Dr. Bunker serves as the Company’s
vice president and chief executive scientist at a base salary of up to $150,000, subject to increase as authorized
by the Compensation Committee. In addition, Dr. Bunker may participate in the Company’s employee fringe
benefit plans or programs generally available to employees of comparable status and position. The Company is
entitled to terminate his employment for any material breach of his employment agreement at any time upon at
least 30 days’ written notice. In the event the Company terminates Dr. Bunker’s employment without cause, the
Company will pay him 12 months salary. Under his employment agreement, he is subject to restrictive
covenants, including confidentiality provisions. Also, during his employment and for a period of two years after
the term of the employment agreement, Dr. Bunker is subject to a non-competition provision.

On October 15, 2004, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Walter J. Wriggins,
the Company’s Vice President and General Manager of Core Systems, with an initial term of one year and an
automatic rencwal for a successive period of one year, unless the Company or Mr. Wriggins give the other party
not less than thirty days written notice of non-renewal. Under this employment agreement, Mr. Wriggins serves
as the Company'’s vice president of business development/operations and general manager of Core Systems at a
base salary of $140,000. In addition, Mr. Wriggins may participate in the Company’s employee fringe benefit
plans or programs generally available to employees of comparable status and position. The Company is entitled
to terminate his employment for any material breach of his employment agreement at any time upon at least 30
days’ written notice. In the event the Company terminates Mr, Wriggins' employment without cause, the
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Company will pay him the balance of the salary due for the term of the agreement. Under his employment
agreement, he is subject to restrictive covenants, including confidentiality provisions. Also, during his
employment and for a period of two years after the term of the employment agreement, Mr. Wriggins is subject
to a non-competition provision

(c) Litigation

From time to time, we are subject to various claims, legal proceedings and investigations covering a
wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary course of our business activities. Each of these matters is subject
to various uncertainties.

On or about March 8, 2006, the Company commenced an arbitration under the Rules of the American
Arbitration Association against Respondents Majid Ghafghaichi {“Majid”) and Vahe Sarkissisian (“Vahe™),
seeking a total of $3,994,000 for indemnification of various “Losses,” as defined in, and expressly allowed
pursuant to, a Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2005 (the “Agreement”), between the Company, as the
purchaser, Accurel Systems International Corporatien (“Accurel), and Majid and Vahe, as the sellers of 100%
of the issued and outstanding shares of Accurel stock.

More specifically, there are four claims asserted by the Company against Respondents: (1) Damages of
$3.4 million resulting from misrepresentations concerning the loss of business from a key Accurel customer; (2)
unauthorized withdrawals in the amount of approximately $276,000 from Accurel by the Respondents prior to
the closing; (3) approximately $49,000 of disallowed transaction expenses that the Respondents improperly
received; and (4) undisclosed net liabilities totaling approximately $269,000.

Respendents have asserted counterclaims seeking “an aggregate amount in excess of $1,750,000,”
based on the allegedly “late payment” to Respondents of Company stock and a Secured Promissory Note as part
of the consideration for their sale of Accurel stock. The Company has filed a detailed denial of all
counterclaims. ’

The arbitration is now in the discovery phase, and the hearings are scheduled for February, 2007.

At this early stage of the proceedings, particularly before the commencement of depositions, it is
difficult to assess the final outcome of this arbitration. However, the Company believes that the counterclaims
have no merit, and will vigorously defend such counterclaims
On March 23, 2005, we entered into a Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement (the
“Agreement”} with Rapiscan Systems, Inc. (“Rapiscan™). Under the terms of this agreement, we gave Rapiscan
the exclusive worldwide rights to market our Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace detection devices
under their private label. We also agreed to give Rapiscan the exclusive worldwide rights to distribute certain
other new security products which we may develop in the future with their funding, as well as rights, in some
circumstances, to manufacture certain components of the Quantum Sniffer™ portable and benchtop trace
detection devices.

On March 24, 2006, the Company brought suit in the United States District Court in the District of
Massachusetts against Rapiscan and its parent, OSI Systems, Inc. (“OSI"). The Company is requesting
rescission of the Agreement, for lack of performance and other grounds. In the alternative, the Company is
seeking termination of the Agreement due to material breaches of contract and implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing and for damages due to Rapiscan’s breach of contract and the implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing.

On March 27, 2006, the Company received notice that Rapiscan filed a complaint against the Company
and its contract manufacturer, Columbia Tech Manufacturing Services, in the United States District Court for
the Central District of California, regarding the Agreement. Rapiscan’s complaint against the Company is based
upon claims of breach of contract and breach of warranty and is requesting a decree for specific performance,
declaratory relief and injunctive relief, Rapiscan’s complaint against Columbia Tech is based upon injunctive
relicf, declaratory relief and tortuous interference with contractual relations. On April 12, 2006, Rapiscan
dismissed all claims against Columbia Tech.
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As of August 18, 2006, as a result of motions made by both parties, the two lawsuits have been
consolidated in the United States District Court for the Central District of California with the Company as
plaintiff. Presently, discovery is in process. Rapiscan and OSI have filed a motion to dismiss certain of the
Company’s claims. The Company has not yet responded to the motion. It is expected that the Court will hear
and rule on the motion in Octeber 2006.

Should the Company be unsuccessful in prosecuting this matter, it may have a material adverse affect
on its business and results of operations.

We may, from time to time, be involved in other actual or potential proceedings that we consider to be
in the normal course of our business. We do not believe that any of these proceedings will have a material
adverse affect on our business.

11. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the Company’s effective tax rate for the years ended
June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Income tax provision (benefit) at federal statutory rate (34.0%) (34.0%) (34.0%)
Increase (decrease) in tax resulting from

State tax provision, net of federal benefit (3.95%) (8.5%) (8.0%)
Non-deductible expenses 14.32% 1.9%  (3.6%)
Credits and other, net (-%) (-%) (.3%)
Change in valuation allowance 23.63%  40.6%  45.9%
Effective income tax rate - % - % -%

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax asset are as follows:

Deferred Tax Components
2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards  $ 10,517,000 $ 9,774,000

Accrued expenses 721,000 589,000
Stock-based compensation - 4,000
Total deferred tax assets 11,238,000 16,367,000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Excess depreciation 2,394,000 2,787,000
Excess amortization 462,000 466,000
Investment in affiliates 87,000 224,000
Total deferred tax liabilities 2,943,000 3,477.000
Net deferred tax assets 8,295,000 6,890,000
Valuation allowance (8,295,000}  (6,890,000)
Net deferred tax asset 5 - 3 -

A valuation allowance has been established for the Company’s tax assets as their use is dependent on
the generation of sufficient future taxable income, which cannot be predicted at this time. Included in the
valuation allowance is approximately $1,439,000 related to certain operating loss carryforwards resulting from
the exercise of employee stock options, the tax benefit of which, when recognized, will be accounted for as a
credit to additional paid in capital rather than a reduction in income tax.
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At June 30, 2006, the Company has the following unused net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards available to offset federal and state taxable income, both of which expire at various times through

2025.
Investment, AMT
Net Operating Loss _and R & D Credits Expiration Dates
Federal $ 25,109,000 $ 264,000 2019 to 2025
State $ 23,771,000 $ 341,000 2006 to 2010

The Company’s federal net operating loss carryforwards are subject to review and possible adjustment
by the Internal Revenue Service and are subject to certain limitations in the event of cumulative changes in the
ownership interest of significant stockholders over a three-year period in excess of 50%.

12. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

On July 6, 2005, the Company executed a $3.0 million secured term note payable to Laurus Master
Fund, Ltd. (“Laurus”). The Company received $3,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management fee of
$135,000 and related transaction costs of approximately $32,000. The term note was collateralized by
substantially all of the Company’s assets, had a 4-month term and bore interest at a rate equal to the prime rate
plus one percent (1%). In connection with the financing, on September 30, 2005, the Company issued Laurus a
warrant to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price equal to $3.75 per share.
The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of 67%,
expected life of 5 years and a risk free interest rate of 3.77%. Net proceeds from the financing were used for
increasing the capacity of the Quantum Sniffer™ production line, increasing unit inventories and the repayment
of certain indebtedness due and owed by the Company to the former shareholders of Accurel in connection with
the acquisition of this wholly-owned subsidiary.

On September 30, 2005, the Company issued 500,000 shares of Series D Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock (“Series D7) having a stated value of $10 per share, pursuant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement with Laurus. The Company received $5,000,000 in gross proceeds, less a management and
placement agent fee of approximately $90,000, and related transaction costs of approximately $27,000. The
Company utilized the proceeds to repay the $3 million term note with Laurus signed on July 6, 2005. The Series
D has a dividend equal to the prime rate plus one percent (1%) (9.25% at June 30, 2006) and provides for
redemption over a thirty-six month period pursuant to an amortization schedule. In conjunction with the Series
D, the Company aiso issued to Laurus a warrant to purchase up to 50,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock at a price equal to $10.20 per share. The warrants were valued using the Black Scholes model and the
following assumptions: volatility of 80%, an expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.12%. Net
cash proceeds from this financing were $1,883,000 (which included repayments of $3,000,000 of principal
related to the July 6, 2005 term note and $117,000 of issuance costs).

The following table reflects the required redemption of the Series D before the effect of the accrued

dividends:
Preferred Stock
Year ending June 30: Monthly Redemption
Schedule
2007 $ 1,364,000
2008 1,818,000
2009 909,000
Total $ 4,091,000

The monthly redemption of approximately $152,000 plus accrued dividends commences on October 1,
2006. At its option the Company deferred the October redemption to the end of the term. Subject to certain
conditions, it is at the Company’s option to pay this amount in cash or in common stock at a fixed conversion
price of $4.15 per common share, This fixed conversion price is subject to reset should the Company declare a
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stock dividend or split, combine the outstanding cornmon stock into a smaller number of shares, or issue, by
reclassification of its common stock, any shares or other securities of the Company. The fixed conversion price
shall be adjusted proportionately so that the holder of the Series D shall be entitled to receive the kind and
number of shares or other securities of the Company which such Laurus would have owned or have been
entitled to receive after the happening of any of the events described above, had such shares of Series D
Preferred Stock been converted immediately prior to the happening of such event,

The following conditions must be met in order for the Company to be permitted to pay in common
stock: (1) the shares must be issued pursuant to an effective registration statement, (2) the average closing
market price of the common stock for the five trading days immediately preceding a payment date must exceed
the fixed conversion price by 110% and no one day’s closing price may be less than the fixed conversion price,
and (3) the conversion dollar value may not exceed the aggregate of the prior 22 trading days’ dollar volume.
The dividend rate is subject to a 2% decrease for every 25% the average trading price for the five trading days
prior to a repayment date exceeds the fixed conversion price, to a minimum of 0%. In addition, upon notifying
the holder, the Company has the option of redeeming any outstanding shares of Series D with cash by paying
130% of the stated value plus accrued interest.

As a condition of closing, the Company and each of its Subsidiaries granted a security interest in their
respective assets as well as providing Laurus a right of first refusal on future financing arrangements during the
term of the Agreement. In the event Laurus declines to exercise its right of first refusal, it agreed to enter into
such documentation as shall be reasonably requested by the Company in order to subordinate its ri ghts under the
Serics D to the subsequent financier. The registration rights associated with the Agreement state that the
Company will use its best efforts to have the registration statement effective within 120 days from closing. In
addition, the Company is required to maintain an effective registration statement, and ensure that shares arc not
suspended from trading. Upon notice from Laurus, should the Company be declared in default of these items
and have not cured the default within the prescribed period, the Company may be assessed liquidated damages
equal to 1/30* of 0.1% of the outstanding preferred balance, payable in cash, for each day the event has occurred
and remains outstanding. However, pursuant to the Agreement, “liquidated damages do not apply should the
Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC™) have an issue with respect to the Holder or with respect to the
structure of the transaction.”

In accordance with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-19, “Accounting
for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock,” the
Company concluded that the Series D contained a conversion feature which should be valued at fair value and
be recorded as a liability on the balance sheet. This conversion feature is not considered to be a “conventional
preferred” instrument because the Agreement includes certain conditions under which the conversion price may
be reset. This condition would suggest that the number of shares to be issued upon conversion is net fixed,
which is a requirement of a “conventional preferred” instrument. This conversion feature was also determined to
be a liability since it may be required to be repaid in cash, cannot be paid in unregistered shares and has certain
penalties. These conditions define the conversion feature as an embedded derivative which must be separated
from the host and reported at fair value pursuant to SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133",

The Series D also contains certain other embedded derivatives which, pursuant to SFAS No. 133, must
be bifurcated from the host contract and reported at its fair market value. The first feature includes a dividend
rate that is subject to adjustment based on the market price of the Company’s common stock. The second
feature, related to potential default provisions, could potentiaily increase the dividend and redemption price,
similar to a default or penalty clause in a debt-like instrument. Although the Company has valued all embedded
derivatives of the host contract as one derivative instrument, the Company believes the value of the adjustable
dividend rate and the potential default provisions features are immaterial. Management considered a number of
factors, including independent appraisals when making this determination. The Company will continue to
measure all derivatives at each reporting period as future changes in value may become material.

The conversion feature aggregated to $1,397,000 on September 30, 2005 based on the Black- Scholes
valuation model and the following assumptions: volatility 80%, expected life 1.5 years, and a risk free interest
rate of 3.96%. The conversion feature is marked o market at each reporting period with changes flowing
through the statement of operations. As of June 30, 2006, the fair value of this conversion feature appreximated
31,094,000. The value of the cmbedded derivates related to the adjustable dividend rate and the potential
default provisions were determined to be immaterial at June 30, 2006,
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The Company valued the Series D at issuance at its residual value of $2,700,000 based on the fair
values of the financial instruments issued in connection with this preferred stock financing, including the
warrants, the embedded derivative instruments and offering costs. The amounts recorded in the financial
staternents represent the amounts attributed to the sale of the Series D preferred stock, the amount allocated to
warrants of $672,000, the value attributed to the embedded derivatives of $1,397,000 and $271,000 of issuance
costs (including $154,000 of unamortized costs of the July 6, 2005 term note). Approximately $40,000 of the
warrant value was accounted for as interest expense in the period ended December 31, 2005. The Company is
accreting these discounts on the carrying value of the preferred stock to its redemption value at September 1,
2008, or the actual conversion date, whichever is carlier. The accretion of these amounts is being recorded as a
preferred dividend in the period of accretion. As of June 30, 2006, $777,000 was amortized. The outstanding
balance on the Series D was $4,091,000 at June 30, 2006.

On May 31, 2006, the Company amended the Series D and the Certificate of Vote of Directors
Establishing a Class or Series of Stock. The terms of the amendment permit the Company to defer
approximately $455.000 of cash payments, representing the January 2006, February 2006 and March 2006
amortization payments, and to defer the October 2006 amortization payment, should such payment be required
in cash, to the mandatory redemption date of September 30, 2008. In consideration, the Company has agreed to
the conversion of the April 2006, May 2006, June 2006, July 2006, August 2006 and September 2006
amortization payments into 261,233 shares of common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $3.48 per
share, representing a reduction in principal of approximately $909,000, and to reduce the Fixed Conversion
Price of the remaining Series D stock from $6.80 per share to $4.15 per share. In addition, Laurus was granted a
warrant to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.26 per share. The
warrants were valued at $375,000 using the Black Scholes model and the following assumptions: volatility of
79%, an expected life 5 years, and a risk free interest rate of 4.89%.

Extinglishment of Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006:

Redemption payments due $909,000

Unamortized discount of warrants, derivative value of preferred stock 266,000
conversion and issue costs

Derivatives related to the preferred stock features 578,000

Subtotal $1,753,000

Record New Series D debt instrument at May 31, 2006:

Fair value of redemption payments made $1,011,000

Issuance of 150,000 warrants 375,000

Unamortized discount of warrants, derivative value of preferred stock 266,000
conversion and issue costs

Derivatives related to the preferred stock features 1,395,000

Subtotal $3,047,000

Loss on extinguishment of Series I¥ debt instrument $1,294,000

The $1,294,000 aggregate loss from these transactions is accounted for as an extinguishment of debt
and is included in Other expenses for the year ended June 30, 2006.

13. Stockholders’ Equity
(a) PO Units

In June 1999, the Company issued 1,138,000 Units, consisting of one share of commen stock and one
redeemable common stock purchase warrant (the “IPO Warrants™), in connection with its initial public offering.
Each Unit carries the right to purchase one share of common stock at $9.00, and is redcemable by the Company
at $0.20 per warrant if the closing bid price of the common stock averages in excess of $10.50 for a period of 20
consecutive trading days. On April 15, 2003, the Company extended the expiration date of the IPO Warrants
from June 30, 2003 to June 30, 2005, The Company did not receive any consideration from the holders of the
warrants; accordingly, the Company recognized the value of this transaction as a preferred distribution based
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upon the estimated fair value of the extension of approximately $195,000. On March 14, 2005, the Company
again cxtended the expiration date of the IPO Warrants from June 30, 2005 to March 31, 2006. The Company
did not receive any consideration from the holders of the warrants; accordingly, the Company recognized the
value of this transaction as a preferred distribution based upon the estimated fair value of the extension of
approximatcly $479,000. On March 31, 2006, the IPO warrants expired. There are no IPO Warrants outstanding.

(b) Option Activity

In September 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the “1998 Plan”}. The 1998
Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to employees and affiliates.
The exercise price of the options equals 100% or 110% of the fair market value on the date of the grant. The
exercise price of the options equal 100% of the fair market value on the date of the grant or 110% of the fair
market value for greater than 10% beneficial owners of the Company stock. Options expire between five and ten
years from the date of the option grant and have various vesting periods. Options may be exercised by the
Holder delivering to the Company cash in an amount equal to such aggregate exercise price, or with the consent
of the Committee, shares of Company Common Stock having a fair market value equal o such aggregate
exercise price, a personal recourse note issued to the Company in a principal amount equal to such aggregate
exercise price or other acceptable consideration including a cashless exercise/resale procedurc or any
combination of the foregoing. The Commmittee may in its discretion provide upon the grant of any option that the
Company shall have an option to repurchase, upon terms and conditions determined by the Committee, all or
any number of shares purchased upon exercise of such option. A total of 280,000 options were reserved for
issuance under the 1998 Pian. Upon adoption of the 1998 Plan, the 1992 Stock Option Plan was terminated.

In December 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Incentive and Non Qualified Stock Option Plan (the
“2000 Plan”). The 2000 Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to
employees and affiliates. The exercise price of the options equal 100% of the fair market value on the date of the
grant or [10% of the fair market value for greater than 5% beneficial owners of the Company stock. Options
expire between five and ten years from the date of the option grant and have various vesting periods. Options
may be exercised by the Holder delivering to the Company cash in an amount equal to such aggregate exercise
price, or with the consent of the Committee, shares of Company Common Stock having a fair market value
equal to such aggregate exercise price, a personal recourse note issued to the Company in a principal amount
equal to such aggregate exercisc price or other acceptable consideration including a cashless exercise/resale
procedure or any combination of the foregoing. The Committee may in its discretion provide upon the grant of
any option that the Company shall have an option to repurchase, upon terms and conditions determined by the
Committee, all or any number of shares purchased upon exercise of such option. A total of 600,000 options were
originally reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan. In December 2003, the stockholders of the Company
approved an increase in the 2000 Incentive and Non-Qualificd Stock Option Plan from 600,000 shares to
1,000,000 shares. In December 2004, the stockholders of the Company approved an increase in the 2000
Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan from 1,000,000 shares to 1,500,000 shares.

In December 2004, the Company adopted the 2004 Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Plan provides for the
grant of incentive stock options and nonqualificd stock options to employees and affiliates. A total of 500,000
options were originally reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan. The exercise price of the options equal 100%
of the fair market value on the date of the grant or 110% of the fair market value for greater than 10% beneficial
owners of the Company stock. Options expire between five and ten years from the date of the option grant and
have various vesting periods. At the December 2005 annual meeting the shareholders voted to increase the
shares available for issuance under the 2004 Plan by 500,000 to 1,000,000 shares. Options may be exercised by
the Holder delivering to the Company cash in an amount equal to such aggregate exercise price, or with the
consent of the Committee, shares of Company Common Stock having a fair market value equal to such
aggregatc exercise price, a personal recourse note issued to the Company in a principal amount equal to such
aggregate exercisc price or other acceptable consideration including a cashless exercise/resale procedure or any
combination of the foregoing. In December 2005, the stockholders of the Company approved an increase in the
2004 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan from by 500,000 shares to 1,000,000 shares.

As of June 30, 2006, a total of 109,003, 141,490, and 398,664 sharcs are available for issuance under
the 1998 Plan, 2000 Plan and 2004 Plan, respectively.

In September 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan”), The
Plan provides a method whereby employecs of the Company will have an opportunity to acquire an ownership
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interest in the Company through the purchase of shares of common stock of the Company through payroll
deductions. After 12 months of employment, an employee is eligible to participate and can defer up to 10% of
their wages into this Plan, with a maximum of $25,000 in any calendar year. The purchase price of the common
stock is calculated at the lower of 85% of the closing price of the stock on the first day of the plan period or the
last day of the plan period. The periods are January 1 to June 30 and July I to December 31. Fractional shares
are not issued. Participants may withdraw at any time by giving written notice to the Company and will be
credited the amounts of deferrals in their account. The maximum number of shares eligible to be issued under
the Plan is 141,000. As of June 30, 2006, a total of 78,163 shares are available for issuance under the Plan.

The following table presents the activity of the 1992, 1998, 2000 and 2004 Stock Option Plans for the
years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of period 1,908,331 $5.66 1,162,065 $5.55 953,500 $555
Granted 557,750 443 973,726 591 352,200 6.75
Exercised - (41,700) 346 (153,160} 5.69 (138,635) 3.77
Canceled (587,830) 6.62 (74,300) 8.74 (5,000) 7.74
Qutstanding at end of period 1,836,551 $5.41 1,908,331 $5.66 1,162,065 §$5.55
Options exercisable at end of period 1,113,947 $4.98 1,016,362 $4.51 665,560 $4.90
Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the year $2.72 $£437 $5.15

he following table presents weighted average price and life information about significant options
groups outstanding at June 30, 2006:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of  Contractual Life Exercise Intrinsic ~ Number of Exetcise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Prices Shares (in years) Price Value Shares Price Value
$0.00 - $2.31 128,101 2.04 $1.10 $2.20 128,101 $1.10 $2.20
$3.07 - $4.65 914,550 6.97 4.01 (0.71) 615,150 4.14 (0.81})
$5.25-$6.96 418,900 8.02 6.28 {2.98) 185,596 6.28 (2.98)
$7.50 - $9.97 288,000 7.18 9.00 (7.70) 131,100 8.80 (5.50)
$10.00 - $14.00 87,000 7.87 10.35 (7.05) 54,000 10.36 {7.06)
1,836,551 6.94 5541 (32.11) 1,113,947 $498 ($1.68)

As of June 30, 2006 there was $1,871,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to
unvested share based compensation arrangements under the various share-based compensation plans. This
expense is expected to be recognized as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2007 $1,206,000
2008 569,000
2009 96,000
Total $1,871,000

(c} Warranis

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the Company issued a warrant to an investor relations company
to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $14.00, in exchange for services. This
warrant was fully vested and expired on June 30, 2004, The fair value of this warrant was approximately
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$230,000 and was recorded as compensation expense in the accompanying statement of operations for the year
ended June 30, 2004. In Junc 2004, the Company issued this investor relations company another warrant to
purchase 150,000 shares of the common stock at an exercise price of $14.00, in exchange for continued services.
These warrants were fully vested upon issuance and expire 3 years from the date of grant, The fair value of these
warrants was approximately $638,000 and was recorded as compensation expense in the accompanying
statement of operations during the ycar ended June 30, 2004.

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the Company issued other warrants to various advisors and
individuals in exchange for services to purchase a total of 10,000 shares of common stock at exercise prices
ranging from $9.95 to $10.25. The fair valuc of these warrants was approximately $58,000 and was recorded as
compensation expense in the accompanying statement of operations during the year ended June 30, 2004.

In October 2004, the Company issued 200,000 common stock warrants, at an exercise price of $9.75, to
a consultant in connection with the Core acquisition. The warrants were fully vested upon issuance and expire §
years from the date of grant. The Company recorded the fair value of these warrants, of approximately
$1,122,000, as additional costs associated with the Core acquisition and included this value in the total purchase
price of the acquisition.

In March 2005, in conncction with a private placement, the Company issued warrants to the investors
to purchase 270,195 shares of common stock, and warrants to placement agents to purchase 43,231 shares of
common stock, at an exercise price of $9.35, which are exercisable anytime between September 4, 2005 and
September 4, 2010,

[n July 2005, in connection with the a short term note with Laurus Master Fund, the Company issued
warrants to the investor to purchase up to 250,000 shares of commeon stock at an exercise price of $3.75, which
arc exercisable anytime between September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2010.

In September 2003, in conjunction with the Series D financing, the Company issued warrants to the
investors to purchase 50,000 shares of commoen stock at an exercise price of $10.20, which are exercisable
anytime between September 30, 2005 and September 20, 2010.

In April 2006, in connection with an agreement with two investors, the Company issued warrants to
purchase a total of 35,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $3.75 per share, which are exercisable
between April 17, 2006 and July 6, 2010, The Company recorded the fair value of these wamants, of
approximately 367,000, as an operating expense in the accompanying statement of operations during the year
ended June 30, 2006.

In May 2006, in conjunction with a modification to the Series D financing, the Company issued
warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.26 per sharc. The warrants are
exercisable between May 31, 2006 and May 31, 2011. The Company recorded the fair value of these warrants of
approximately $375,000 as a conversion cxpense in the accompanying statement of operations during the year
ended June 30, 2006.

During the year ended Junc 30, 2606, the Company issued fully vested warrants to various advisors in
exchange for services, to purchase a total of 27,500 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from
$3.40 to $4.14. The Company recorded the fair value of these warrants of approximately $52,000 as stock based
compensation expense. In addition, approximately $26,000 of additional compensation expense was recorded
relating to certain warrants issued in prior years being expensed over their vesting period.

The Company estimated the fair value of the warrants issued during 2006, 2005 and 2004 using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Company estimated the fair value of the warrants using the following
input assumptions:

2006 2005 2004
Volatility 78.5% - 80.4% 62.0% - 65.0% 63.0% - 67.5%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest ratc 3.86% - 4.89% 347% -4.17% 94% - 4.50%

Expected lives 2.5- 5 years | year- 35 years 3 months - § years




The following table presents the weighted average exercise price of warrants outstanding at June 30, 2006:

Warrants Qutstanding and Exercisable
Number of Weighted Average  Weighted Average

Range of Exercise Prices Warrant Shares Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
$3.16-$5.24 659,902 $3.95 ($0.65
$6.23 - $10.25 828,426 8.86 ( 5.56)
$11.33 -514.00 267,675 13.13 { 9.83)
Total 1,756,003 $7.67 (5437

The following table presents the warrant activity for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2003 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at
beginning of period 2,324,389 9.53 1,876,803 $9.72 1,651,775 $8.80
Granted 512,500 4.53 559,426 9.01 723,088 12.65
Exercised (15,961) 432 (42,810) 3.28 (186,120) 6.06
Canceled (1,064,700) 9.00 {69,030) 1440 (311,940) 13.84
Warrants Outstanding at
end of period 1,756,003 $7.67 2,324,389 $9.53 1,876,803 $9.72

Warrants excrcisable at

end of period 1,740,669 $7.64 2,293,389 $9.01 1,876,803 §12.65
Weighted-average fair

value of warrants

granted during the year $4.53 59.01 $12.65

14, 401k Plan

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan which contains a 401(k) plan. Currently,
Wakefield and one of the California subsidiaries employce groups are in the same plan. The second subsidiary
maintained a separate plan through June 30, 2006. Effective July 1, 2006, all employce groups will be under the
same 401(k) Plan. Although all of the plans are 401(k) plans, cligibility requircments vary from location to
location. All employees who meet the age requirement, either 18 or 21, and who have completed the minimum
scrvice requirement are cligible for participation in the plan. The Company may make discretionary
contributiens to the 401(k) plan. During the years ended Junc 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company made no
contributions to the plan.

15. Long-term Debt

MED-TEC Payment Obligation

On July 31, 2003, the Company entered into an agreecment with its former exclusive distributor of
prostate seeds, to relcase cach other from further obligations under the original Distributor Agreement. The new
agrcement conveys to the Company direct marketing and sales capabilities to sell its [-Plant Seed brachytherapy
seeds for use in the trcatment of prostate cancer. In connection with this, the Company’s former exclusive
distributor agreed to work cooperatively to transition customers and marketing materials directly to the
Company. The distributor also agreed not to compete with the Company for a period of three years. The
present value of this payment obligation was recorded as approximately $1,007,000, using a rate of 10.24%.




This amount was recorded as an intangible asset and is being amortized over its estimated useful life of 29
months. During the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, approximately $208,000, $417,000 and
$383,000, respectively, of amortization expense was recognized, which is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. As of June 30, 2006, the
outstanding principal balance is approximately $233,000. For the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
the Company recorded approximately $30,000, $46,000 and $68,000, respectively, of interest expense relating
to this transaction.

Installment Note

Accurel Systems has a $1,400,000 fixed rate installment note with a bank. The note calls for monthly
payments of 529,000 plus interest at a rate of 6.84%, through September 1, 2008 (the “Loan Agreement”). As of
June 30, 2006 the note balance is $817,000 of which approximately $350,000 becomes due during the year
ending June 20, 2007. The note is collateralized by substantially all assets of Accurel. The bank has consented to
continue the note under the same terms after the acquisition. During the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005,
the Company recorded interest expense of approximately $71,000 and $25,000, respectively, in connection with
this note.

The Loan Agreement requires Accurel to report monthly financial results to the bank and for Accurel
to comply with certain financial covenants. As of June 30, 2006 Accurel was in compliance with the covenants,

Future principal payments on this note arc as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2007 $350,000
2008 350,000
2009 117,000
Total 5817.000
16. Financial Information by Segment

Under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in
deciding how te allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company's chief operating decision
making group is composed of the chief executive officer and members of senior management. The Company's
reportable segments are: Medical, Semiconductor and Security Products.

Gross margin is the measure thal management uses when evaluating the Company’s segments,
therefore, operating expenses are excluded from the financial information below.

The revenues, expenses and assets related to these segments for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005
and 2004 are:

Medical Semiconductor Security Total

Year Ended June 30, 2006

Revenue $ 4,464,000 $ 15,056,000 $ 6,871,000 $ 26,391,000
Cost of revenues 3,869,000 11,953,000 6,222 000 22,044,000
Gross margin $ 595,600 $ 3,103,000 $ 649,000 $ 4,347,000
Total assets $ 3,822,000 524,312,000 $ 2,665,000 $ 30,779,000
Year Ended June 30, 2005

Revenue $ 4,146,000 $ 6,630,000 $ 1,510,000 $ 12,286,000
Cost of revenues __ (3,821,000 (6,316,000) (1,919,000) {12,056,000)
Gross margin $ 325,000 $ 314,000 $ (409,000} $ 230,000
Total assets $ 5,227,000 $ 25,492,000 £ 1,505,000 $ 32,228,000
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Medical Semiconductor Security Total

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenue $ 4,957,000 $ 1,022,000 $2,587,000 §$ 8,566,000
Cost of revenues (3,822,000) (1,280,000) (1,084,000) (6,186,000)
Gross Margin $ 1,135,000 $ (258,000) $1,503,000  $2,380,000
Total assets $ 9,173,000 $ 3,084,000 $2,967,000  $ 15,224,000

17. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company had goodwill and intangible assets of $13,286,000 and
$14,270,000, respectively. SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, requires that goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives no longer be amortized but instead be measured for impairment at least
annually or whenever events indicate that there may be an impairment. In order to determine if impairment
exists, management continually estimates the reporting unit’s fair value based on market conditions and
operational performance. The Company may employ the work of independent appraisers in making its
determination. The Company will make its annual assessment as of August 31st of each year to determine if its
goodwill is impaired. As of June 30, 2006 the Company has determined that its goodwill at its semiconductor
implantation reporting unit was impaired. As a result of this impairment the Company took an impairment
charge of $457,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives at the
Company’s semiconductor testing unit are not impaired. Future events could cause management to conclude that
impairment indicators exist and that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives associated with the
Company’s acquired businesses are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Intangible assets with finite lives are valued according to the future cash flows they are estimated to
produce. These assigned values are amortized over the period of time those cash flows are estimated to be
produced. Management continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate that
the estimated remaining useful life or the carrying value of these assets has been impaired. As of June 30, 2006
management believes no impairment exists.

Changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, by reportable
segment, are as follows:

Semiconductor Semiconductor
Services Testing
Balance as of June 30, 2004 $ - $ -
Goodwill acquired during the period 4,647,000 7,566,000
Balance as of June 30, 2005 4,647,000 7,566,000
Adjustments to purchase price (99,000) 8,000
Impairment (457,000) -
Balance as of June 30, 2006 $ 4,091,000 $ 7,574,000
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The following table summarizes the Company’s intangible assets as of June 30, 2006 and 2005

Net Carrying
Gross carrying amount Accumulated Ameortization Amount
June 30, June 30, June 39, June 30,
2005 Additions 2006 2005  Additions 2006 June 30, 2006
Non-Compete $1,057,000 % -$1,057,000  $809,000 $241,000 $1,050,000 $7,000
Name
Recognition 200,000 - 200,000 9,000 29,000 38,000 162,000
Customer Base 1,630,000 - 1,630,000 119,000 326,000 445,000 1,185,000
Technology 125,000 - 125,000 18,000 25,000 43,000 82,000
Treatment
Planning System 300,000 - 300,000 16,000 100,000 116,000 184,000
Total $3.312,000 § - 83,312,000  $971,000 $721.000 $1,692,000 51,620,000
Net Carrying
Gross carrying amount Accumulated Amortization Amount
June 39, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2004 Additions 2005 2004  Additions 2005 June 30, 2005
Non-Compete $1,007,000 $50,000 $1.057,000  $382,000 $427,000 $809,000 $248,000
Name
Recognition - 200,000 200,000 - 9,000 9,000 191,000
Customer Base - 1,630,000 1,630,000 - 119,000 119,000 1,511,000
Technology - 125,000 125,000 - 18,000 18,000 107,000
Treatment
Planning System - 300,000 300,000 - 16,000 16,000 284,000
Total $1,007,000 $2,305,000 $3,312,000  $382,000 $589,000 $971,000 32,057,000

Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets with finite lives on our balance sheet as of June
30, 2006, for the fiscal years ending June 30, is as follows:

2007 $ 486,000
2008 462,000
2009 380,000
2010 246,000
2011 46,000
$ 1,620,000

_—————————=mc
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18, Treasury Stock

In June 2004, the Board authorized the Company to repurchase up to 300,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock, from time to time in the open market, privately negotiated transactions, block transactions or at
time and prices deemed appropriate by management. During July 2004, the Company repurchased 6,000 shares
of common stock at prices ranging from $8.91 to $9.02 per share with an average cost per share of $8.97 and a
total cost of approximately $54,000, which is recorded as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet. As of June 30, 2006, the maximum number of shares authorized to be repurchased are 294,000,

In March 2004, the Company entered into an Exchange & Venture Agreement with CardioTech
International and CorNova and issued 10,344 shares of common stock bearing an aggregate fair market value of
$113,000. In February 2005, the Company issued an additional 76,687 shares of common stock bearing an
aggregate fair market value of $750,000. As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, 16,449 shares, representing an 18% and
18.9%, ownership, respectively, of Company common stock held by CorNova, have been categorized as
treasury stock.

In January 2006, as the result of a cashless exercise of an Incentive Stock Option, the Company acquired
4,545 shares of common stock having a fair value of approximately $19,000.

19. Credit Arrangements

On June 8, 2005, the Company executed a revolving credit facility for $1,500,000 with Silicon Valley
based Bridge Bank, N.A. The revolving credit facility provides for advances of up to eighty percent (80%) of
the Company’s eligible accounts rcceivable, bears interest at the prime rate plus one-half percent (1/2%) which
is subject to a one-half percent (1/2%) increase should minimum cash balances not be maintained. The revolving
credit facility is collateralized by certain assets of the Company and is subject to certain covenants. As of June
30, 2006, the Company has drawn down $1,000,000 on the credit facility. On September 7, 2006, the expiration
date of the facility was extended to December 31, 2007.

20. Rosses Medical

On May 6, 2005, the Company purchased certain software technology assets from Rosscs Medical
Systems for an aggregate purchase price of $300,000, consisting of $100,000 in cash and 43,197 shares of the
Company’s common stock with a fair value of $200,000. In conjunction with this asset acquisition, the
Company entered into consulting agreements with the former owners and a former employee of Rosses Medical
and granted 181,426 non-qualified stock options. These options are fully vested, have no exercise price and are
exercisable upon achieving certain sales milestones, commencing November 6, 2005. The value of these options
will be recorded as additional purchase price in the period carned. Should all sales milestones be achieved, the
Company has estimated the fair value of these options using the Black Scholes option pricing model to be
$796,000. As of June 30, 2006, 129,590 of the options have been forfeited as the sales goal targets have not
been achieved. This asset is included in intangible assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and is
being amortized over three ycars on a straight line basis.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On October 27, 2005, BDO Seidman LLP resigned as the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm. The audit reports issued by BDO on the Company's consolidated financial statements as of and
for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, nor
were they qualified or modified as to audit scope or accounting principles. The audit report as of and for the year
cnded June 30, 2005 was modified as to an uncertainty relative to the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. During the two most recent fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 and the subsequent interim
period from July 1, 2005 through the date of this report, there were no disagreements with BDO on any matter
of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of BDO, would have caused it to make reference to the subject
matter of the disagreement in connection with its report on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

On January 9, 2006, Brown & Brown was appointed as the Company’s independent registered
accounting firm.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
EVALUATION OF OUR DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures ("Disclosure Controls") and our internal controls and
procedures for financial reporting (“Internal Controls”). This evaluation (the "Controls Evaluation") was done
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"). Rules adopted by the SEC require that in this section of the
Annual Report, we present the conclusions of our CEQ and the CFO about the effectiveness of our Disclosure
Controls and Internal Controls based on and as of the date of the Controls Evaluation.

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

Appearing as exhibits to this Annual Report are "Certifications” of the CEO and the CFO. The
Certifications are required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Section 302
Certifications”). This section of the Annual Report contains information concerning the Controls Evaluation
referred to in the Section 302 Certifications and this information should be read in conjunction with the Section
302 Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Disclosure Controls arc procedures that arc designed with the objective of ensuring that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Sceurities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act"}, such
as this Annual Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure Controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions rcgarding required disclosure. Internal Controls are procedures which are designed
with the objective of providing reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are properly authorized, recorded
and reported; and (2) our assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use, to permit the preparation
of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

LIMITATIONS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, has concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and have concluded that
the controls and procedures are effective at that reasonable assurance level.
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SCOPE OF THE CONTROLS EVALUATION

The CEO/CFO evaluation of our Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls included a review of the
controls' objectives and design, the controls’ implementation by us and the effect of the controls on the
information generated for use in this Annual Report. In the course of the Controls Evaluation, management
sought to identify data errors, controls problems or acts of fraud and to confirm that appropriate corrective
action, including process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of evaluation will be done on a
quarterly basis so that the conclusions concerning controls effectiveness can be reported in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and Annual Repert on Form 10-K. The overall goals of these various review and
evaluation activities are to monitor our Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls and to make modifications as
necessary; our intent in this regard is that the Disclosure Controls and the Internal Controls will be maintained
as dynamic systems that change (including with improvements and corrections) as conditions warrant.

Among other matters, management sought in its evaluation to determine whether there were any
“significant deficiencies" or "material weaknesses” in our Internal Controls, or whether we had identified any
acts of fraud involving personnel who have a significant role in our Internal Controls. In the professional
auditing literature, "significant deficiencies" are referred to as “reportable conditions;” these are control issues
that could have a significant adverse effect on the ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
in the financial statements. A "material weakness” is defined in the auditing literature as a particularly serious
reportable condition where the internal control does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements and not be detected within a timely period by employces in the normal cousse of performing their
assigned functions.

CONCLUSIONS

Based upon the Controls Evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that, as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report, our Disclosure Controls are effective to provide reasonable assurance that
our financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our independent auditors have reported to our Audit Committee certain matters involving internal
controls that our independent auditors considered to be a significant deficiency. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the company’s ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report external financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the company’s
annual or interim financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.

The reportable condition related primarily to the closing and financial reporting process. Management
is confident that our financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2006 fairly present, in all material respects,
our financial condition and results of operations.

The reportable condition has been discussed in detail among management, our Audit Committee and
our independent auditors, and we are committed to addressing and resolving these matters fully and promptly,
by putting in place the personnel, processes, technology and other resources appropriate to support our financial
close processes. As part of this commitment, beginning in the second quarter of our fiscal year ended June 30,
2007, we intend to use the services of an outside consultant to evaluate our closing and financial reporting
process and make recommendations to management t© improve these processes.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
SECTION 16 COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our officers, directors and
persons who beneficially own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities ("ten percent
stockholders™) to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Officers, directors and 1en percent stockholders are charged by the SEC regulations to furnish us
with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely upon a review of Forms 3, 4, and 5 and amendments thereto furnished to us during the
past fiscal year, and, if applicable, written representations that Form S was not required, we believe that al}
Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and ten percent stockholders were fulfilled.
The following are our executive officers and directors:

Name Age Position Position Since
President, Chief Executive Officer

o
Anthony J. Armini 68 and Chairman of the Board 1984
Stephen N. Bunker 63 Vice President and Chief Scientist, Director 1987
. Vice President Finance
[+1)
Diane J. Ryan 46 and Chief Financial Officer 2003
Walter Wriggins @ 62 Vice President and General Manager 2004

Core Systems

John Traub 59 Vice President and President 2005
Accurel Systems

R. Erik Bates ¢ 50  Vice President, EDS Manufacturing 2005
Michael Szycher @ 67  Director 1999
David B. Eisenhaure ## 60  Director 2002
Michael Turmelie #®® 47  Director 2005

" Executive Officer

@ Member of the Audit Committee for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006

®  Chairman of the Audit Committee

“ Member of the Compensation Committee for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

Dr. Anthony J. Armini has been the Company’s President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of
the Board of Directors since the Company’s incorporation. From 1972 to 1984, prior to the Company’s
founding, Dr. Armini was Executive Vice President at Spire Corporation. From 1967 to 1972, Dr. Armini was a
Senior Scientist at McDonnell Douglas Corporation. Dr. Armini received his Ph.D. in nuclear physics from the
University of California, Los Angeles in 1967. Dr. Armini is the author of twenty two patents and fourteen
publications in this field. Dr. Armini has over thirty years of experience working with cyclotrons and linear
accelerators, the production and characterization of radioisotopes, and over twenty years experience with ion
implantation in the medical and semicenductor fields. Since October 2000, Dr. Armini has been on the Board of
Directors of CardioTech International, Inc., a publicly traded company of which Dr. Szycher was President and
Chief Executive Officer and is now a consultant.

Or. Stephen N. Bunker has served as the Company’s Vice President and Chief Scientist since 1987 and
a Director since 1988. Prior to joining the Company, from 1972 1o 1987, Dr. Bunker was a Chief Scientist at
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Spire Corporation. From 1971 to 1972, Dr. Bunker was an Engineer at McDonnell Douglas Corporation. Dr.
Bunker reccived his Ph.D. in nuclear physics from the University of California, Los Angeles in 1969. Dr.
Bunker is the author of sixteen patents with four more pending in the field of ion beam technology.

Diane J. Ryan has served as the Company’s Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
since May 2003, Ms. Ryan has been employed with Implant Sciences Corporation since March 1989. From
March 2003 to May 2003, she was the Corporate Controller of the Company. Ms. Ryan graduated from Salem
State College with a B.S, in Business Administration and a minor in management.

Walter J. Wriggins has served as the Company’s Vice President and General Manager of Core
Systems, since October 2004. Prior to his career at Core Systems, Mr. Wriggins had over 22 years experience in
semiconductor industry. His career began as a materials scientist in the GE aircraft engine group, from which he
transitioned to a sales and marketing career at various semiconductor companies throughout the country. These
companies, at which he held senior management positions, include: Axcelis (formally Eaton Corporation),
Applied Materials, Varian Thin Films, and lon Implant Services. Mr. Wriggins received a B.A. in Applied
Science, and a B.S. in Material Science and Engineering from Lehigh University and an MBA from Boston
University.

John Traub has served as the Company’s Vice President and President of Accurel Systems
International, since March 2005 and prior to that as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Accurel Systems, Inc.. Mr. Traub has held senior posts with several semiconductor equipment and services
companies including Microfab Systems, Align-Rite Limited, Systems Chemistry Inc. and at Ultratech Stepper.
John also serves on the Santa Clara University Board of Fellows Executive Committee and as Chairmen of the
Board of Governors of American Theatre of San Jose.

R. Erik Bates has served as the Company’s Vice President of Operations, Security Products Division,
cince March 2005. Mr. Bates has over twenty five years of experience encompassing engineering,
manufacturing, operations, and business development. The majority of his experience has been in the medical
device industry. Mr. Bates has a B.S. in plastics engineering from the University of Lowell and an MBA from
Rivier College. He is actively involved in public education, and is on the Advisory Board for the College of
Engineering at UMass Lowell.

Dr. Michael Szycher joined the Company’s Board of Directors in December 1999. He has been
President and Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of CardioTech International, Inc., a publicly traded
manufacturer of medical devices and biocompatible polymers from 1996 until August 2006 and continues as a
consultant to CardioTech. From 1988 to 1996, Dr. Szycher was Chairman and Chief Technology Officer of
Polymedica Industries. Dr. Szycher is a recognized authority on polyurethanes and blood compatible polymers.
He is the editor of six books on various subjects in blood compatible materials and devices and the author of
eighty original research articles.

David B. Eisenhaure has scrved on the Company’s board of directors since November 2002, He has
been the President, Chicf Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of SatCon Technology Corporation
since 1985. From 1974 until 1985, Mr. Eisenhaure was associated with the Charles Stark Draper Laboratory,
Incorporated and with its predecessor, the Massachusetts Institute of Technology's Instrumentation Laberatory,
from 1967 to 1974. Dr. Eisenhaure also holds an academic position at M.LT., as a lecturer in the Department of
Mechanical Engineering. Mr. Eisenhaure serves on the board of directors of Mechanical Technology
Incorporated and Beacon Power. He holds a S.B.. S.M. and an Engineer's Degree in Mechanical Engineering
from M.LT.

Michael Turmelle has served on the Company’s board of directors since December 2005, He has been
the President of SatCon Power Systems since February 2005 and prior to that as SatCon Technology
Corporation’s Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Turmelle has over 20 years of manufacturing, financial and
operations experience and holds a B.A. degree in Ecenomics from Amherst College.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Company has adopted a code of cthics that applies to its directors, officers and employees and has
been posted on the Company’s website: www implantsciences.com.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has designated from among its members an Audit Committee, which consisted of Mr.
Michael Turmeile (Chairman), Dr. Michael Szycher and Mr. David Eisenhaure, all of whom are independent
members. Mr. Turmelle meets the requirements to qualify as a financial expert. The Audit Committee has the
responsibility to ascertain that the Company’s financial statements reflect fairly the financial condition and
operating results of the Company and to appraise the soundness, adequacy and application of accounting and
operating controls. The Audit Committec recommends the independent auditors to the Board, reviews the scope
of the audit functions of the independent auditors and reviews the audit reports. The Audit Committee held a
meeting each quarter during fiscal 2006, The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are outlined in a written
charter available for review on the Company’s website: www.implantsciences.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth the aggregate cash compensation paid by us with respect to the three
fiscal years ended June 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006 10 our executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Other Annual Shares Underlying
Name and Principal Position _Year  Salary($) Bonus (S) Compensation($)" Options Granted (#)

Anthony J. Armini 2006 $214,712 - $12.353 100,000
President, Chief Executive 2005 $213,101 - 515417 -
Officer and 2004 $197.684 $59,700 512,260 50,000
Chairman of the Board
Stephen N. Bunker 2006 $55,814 - $1,100 50,000
Vice President, 2005 $103,377 - 51,077 30,000
Chief Scientist and Director 2004 $114228  $23,150 $1,049 50,000
Diane J. Ryan 2006 $137,308 - 51,217 80,000
Vice President Finance and 2005 $120,393  $25,000 $1,147 30,000
Chief Financial Officer 2004 $93,102 $25,050 3812 50,000
Walter J, Wriggins @ 2006 $139,462 - $1,231 30,000
2005 $101,124 - - 70,000
2004 - - - -
John Traub 2006 $170,000  $20,000 $1,427 30,000
2005 $53,615 - - 50,000
2004 - - - -
R. Frik Bates 2006  $134,366 - $1,206 30,000
2005 $33,231 - - 30,000
2004 - - - -

M Other annual compensation consists of life and disability insurance premiums and 401(k) plan benefits paid
by us on behalf of these executive officers.

2 Joined the Company in October 2004.

% Joined the Company in March 2005

Employment Agreements
Anthony J. Armini. On June 30, 2004, we entcred into an employment agreement, with an initial term

of three years and an automatic renewal for a successive period of three years, unless the we or Dr. Armini give
the other party not less than three months written notice of non-renewal. Under this employment agreement, Dr.
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Armini serves as our president and chief executive officer at a base salary of up to $210,000 and is subject to
increase as authorized by the Compensation Committee. In addition, Dr. Armini may participate in our
employee fringe benefit plans or programs generally available to employees of comparable status and position.
We are cntitled to terminate his employment for any material breach of his employment agreement at any time
upon at lcast 3¢ days written notice. In the event we terminate Dr. Armini’s employment without cause, we will
pay him 12 months salary. Under his employment agreement, he is subject to restrictive covenants, including
confidentiality provisions. Also, during his employment and for a period of two years after the term of the
employment agreement, Dr. Armini is subjectto a non-competition provision,

Stephen N. Bunker. On June 30, 2004, we entered into an employment agreement, with an initial term
of three years and an automatic renewal for a successive period of three years, unless the we or Dr. Bunker give
the other party not less than three months written notice of non-renewal. Under this employment agreement, Dr.
Bunker serves as our vice president and chief exccutive scientist at a base salary of up to $150,000 and is subject
to increase as authorized by the Compensation Committee. In addition, Dr. Bunker may participate in our
employee fringe benefit plans or programs generally available to employees of comparable status and position.
We are entitled to terminate his employment for any material breach of his employment agreement at any time
upon at least 30 days’ writlen notice. In the event we terminate Dr. Bunker's employment without cause, we will
pay him 12 months salary. Under his cmployment agreement, he is subject to restrictive covenants, including
confidentiality provisions. Also, during his employment and for a period of two years after the term of the
employment agreement, Dr. Bunker is subject to a non-competition provision.

Walter J. Wriggins. On October 15, 2004, we entered into an employment agreement, with an initial
term of one years and an automatic rencwal for a successive period of one year, unless we or Mr. Wriggins give
the other party not less than thirty days written notice of non-renewal. Under this employment agreement, Mr.
Wriggins serves as our Vice President of Business Development/Operations and general manager of Core
Systems at a base salary of $140,000. In addition, Mr. Wriggins may participate in our employee fringe benefit
plans or programs generally available to employees of comparable status and position. We arc entitled to
terminate his employment for any material breach of his cmployment agrcement at any time upon at least 30
days’ written notice, in the event we terminate Mr. Wriggins’ employment without cause, we will pay him the
balance of the salary due for the term of the agreement. Under his employment agreement, he is subject to
restrictive covenants, including confidentiality provisions. Also, during his employment and for a period of two
years after the term of the employment agreement, Mr. Wriggins is subject to a non-competition provision.

Director Compensation

Our directors who arc our employces do not receive any compensation for service on the board of
directors. Dircctors, who are not our employces, are paid a ycarly stipend of $2,500 and are reimbursed for
reasonable travel expenses incurred in connection with attendance at board and committec meetings.

Under the 2004 incentive and nonqualified stock option plan, cach director who 15 not our employee,
automatically reccives an annual grant of options to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise
price equal to the closing price of the common stock on that date for each year of service. Each such option will
have a term of ten ycars and will vest in full on the date of the grant.

Stock Option and Purchase Plans

In September 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the *1998 Plan”). The 1998
Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to employees and affiliates.
The exercise price of the options equals 100% or 110% of the fair market value on the date of the grant. Options
expire ten years from the date of the option grant and vest ratably over a three-year period commencing with the
second year. A total of 280,000 options were reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan. Upon adoption of the
1998 Plan, the 1992 Stock Option Plan was terminated.

In December 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Incentive and Non Qualified Stock Option Plan (the
“2000 Plan™). The 2000 Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to
employces and affiliates. The exercise price of the options equal 100% of the fair market value on the date of the
grant or 110% of the fair market value for greater than 10% beneficial owners of the Company stock, Options
expire between five and ten years from the datc of the option grant and have variable vesting periods. A total of
600,000 options were originally rescrved for issuance under the 2000 Pian. In December 2003, the stockholders
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of the Company approved an increase in the 2000 Incentive and Non-Quatlified Stock Option Plan from 600,000
shares to 1,000,000 shares. In December 2004, the stockholders of the Company approved an increase in the
2000 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan from 1,000,000 shares to 1,500,000 shares.

In December 2004, the Company adopted the 2004 Stock Option Plan. The 2004 Plan provides for the
grant of incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to employees and affiliates. A total of 500,000
options were originally reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan. The exercise price of the options equal 100%
of the fair market value on the date of the grant or 110% of the fair market value for greater than 10% beneficial
owners of the Company stock. Options expire between five and ten years from the date of the option grant and
have variable vesting periods. In December 2005, the stockholders of the Company approved an increase in the
2004 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan from by 500,000 shares to 1,000,000 shares. As of June
30, 2006, a total of 109,003, 141,490, and 398,664 shares are available for issuance under the 1998, 2000 and
2004 stock option plans, respectively.

The Board of Directors administers the Stock Plan. Subject to the provisions of the Stock Plan, the
Board of Directors has the authority to select the optionees or restricted stock recipients and determine the terms
of the options or restricted stock granted, including: (i) the number of shares, (ii) option exercise terms, (iii) the
exercise or purchase price (which in the case of an incentive stock option cannot be less than the market price of
the Commeon Stock as of the date of grant), (iv) type and duration of transfer or other restrictions and (v) the
time and form of payment for restricted stock and upon exercise of options. Generally, an option is not
transferable by the option hoider except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. Also, as defined by
the specific plans’ provisions, options must be exercised within 60 or 90 days following termination of
employment, 90 days in cases of retirement, and between 6 and 12 months in the case of disability. However, in
the event that termination is due to death, the exercise period varies by plan and ranges between 180 days and
the expiration date of the grant.

In September 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan™). The
Plan provides a method whereby employees of the Company will have an opportunity to acquire an ownership
interest in the Company through the purchase of shares of common stock of the Company through payroll
deductions. After 12 months of employment, an employee is cligible to participate and can defer up to 10% of
their wages into this Plan, with a maximum of $25,000 in any calendar year. The purchase price of the common
stock is calculated at the lower of 85% of the closing price of the stock on the first day of the plan period or the
last day of the plan period. The periods are January 1 to June 30 and July 1 to December 31. Fractional shares
are not issued. Participants may withdraw at any time by giving written notice to the Company and will be
credited the amounts of deferrals in their account. The maximum number of shares eligible to be issued under
the Plan is 141,000. As of June 30, 2006, a total of 78,163 shares are available for issuance under the Plan.
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OPTION GRANTS IN FISCAL 2006

The following table sets forth certain information regarding stock options held as of June 30, 2006 by
the executive officers.

Number of
Securities % of Total
Underlying Granted to Exercise
Options Employees in Price Expiration
Name and Principal Position Granted Fiscal Year ($/sh) Date
Anthony J. Armini 100,000 18% $4.50 12/13/2010
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board
Stephen N. Bunker 50,000 9% $4.09 12/13/2015
Vice President and Chief Scientist
Diane J. Ryan 30,000 5% $3.80 11/01/15
Vice President Finance and 50,000 9% $4.09 12/13/15
Chief Financial Officer
Walter J. Wriggins 30,000 % $3.89 10/31A15
Vice President Business
Development/Operations
and General Manager of Core
Systems, Inc.
John Traub 30,000 5% $4.20 03/02/16
President Accurel Systems
International Corp.
R. Erik Bates 30,000 5% $3.35 04/11/16

Vice President Operations
Security Products Division

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee, which met one time during fiscal 2006, had two members, Mr. David
Eisenhaure (Chairman) and Mr. Michacl Turmelle both of whom are independent board members. The
Compensation Committee reviews and determines on both an annual and an as-needed basis the compensation
of the Company’s chief executive officer {the “CEQ™). The Compensation Committee determines all elements
of the CEQ's compensation, including satary, bonus, options, benefits and all other aspects of the total
compensation package based on the compensation earned by a CEO in a similar corporation and industry.
Additional responsibilities of the Compensation Committee are outlined in a written charter available for review
on the Company’s website: www.implantsciences.com.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

No person serving on the Compensation Committee at any time during fiscal 2006 was a present or
former officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. During fiscal 2006, other than Dr. Armini,
10 executive officer of the Company served as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee
(or other board committee performing equivalent functions) of another entity. During fiscal 2006, Dr. Armini
served on the board of directors of Cardio-tech International, one of whose executive officers served on the
Company’s Board or Compensation Committee as well as on the board of directors of CorNova.

84




COMPARATIVE STOCK PERFORMANCE

The comparative stock performance graph below compares the cumulative stockholder return on the
Common Stock of Implant Sciences Corporation {*IMX") for the period from July 1, 2001, and through the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 with the cumulative total return on: (i) the
American Stock Exchange Composite Index (the “AMEX”) and (i1} a peer group (the “Peer Group™) determined
by the Company. The graph assumes the investment of $100 in Implant Sciences’ common stock, the AMEX
Composite Index, and the Peer Group on June 30, 2001, and reinvestment of all dividends. Measurement points
are on June 30, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

The Peer Group consists of Isonics Corporation, North American Scientific Incorporated, RAE
Systems, Spire Corporation and Ibis Technology Corporation. Management selected the Peer issuers in good
faith and on an industry or line-of-business basis.

Cumulative Stockholder Return

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 20058

as of June 30,

L

Value of $100 investment on June 30, 2001 at each of the following measurement points.

IMX — — AMEX - - - - Peer group

June 30,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
IMX 100 139 58 119 32 36
AMEX 100 97 106 136 168 210
Peer group 100 59 67 il6 106 83
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AGGREGATE OPTIONS EXERCISABLE IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

AND FISCAL YEAR END OPTION VALUES

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised
Options at June 30, 2006

Value of Unexercised In-
the-Money Options at June
30, 2006 (1)(2)

Name and Principal Position

Exercisable Unexercisable

Exercisable Unexercisable

Anthony J. Armini

191,700 16,500

President, Chief Executive Office

and Chairman of the Board

Stephen N. Bunker

133,500 16,500

Vice President and Chief Scientist

Diane J. Ryan
Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Walter J. Wriggins

174,500 36,300

Vice President Business Development/Operations
and General Manager of Core Systems, Inc.

John Traub

President Accurel Systems International Corp.

R. Erik Bates
Vice President Operations
Security Products Division

47,600 92,400
17,000 63,000
10,200 49,800

(1) As of June 30, 2006, the market value of a share of common stock was $3.30

(2) Represents a 10 year option
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth information as of August 31, 2006, with respect to the beneficial
ewnership of our common steck of each director and nominee for director, each named executive officer in the
execulive compensation table above, all of our directors and current officers as a group, and each person known
by us to be a beneficial owner of five percent or more of our commen stock. This information is based upon
information received from or on behalf of the individuals named therein.

Number of Shares Percent of

Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned (1) Class (2)
Anthony J. Armini 1,382,138 11%
Stephen N. Bunker'! 768,548 6%
Diane J. Ryan ¥ 228,740 2%
Walter J. Wriggins ¢ 76,814 1%
John Traub 17,000 *

R. Erik Bates ® 10,200 *
Michael Szycher © 71,000 1%
David Eisenhaure ' 66,000 1%
Michael Turmelle!" 10,000 *

*  Lessthan 1%
> Unless otherwise noted, cach person identified possesses sole voting and
investment powcr over the shares

The calculation of percentage of class is based on 11,800,466 shares of common
stock issued and outstanding as of August 31, 2006 plus any shares issuable

upon exercise of options, to such persons and included as being beneficially
owned by him.

Includes 208,200 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof.

Includes 150,000 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof,

Includes 200,900 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof,

Includes 76,814 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof,

Includes 10,200 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof,

Includes 10,200 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof.

Includes 71,000 shares cxercisable within 60 days of the date hereof,

% Includes 66,000 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hercof.

" Includes 10,200 shares exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof.

2

(3)
4}
(5
(6)
M
(8)
&2}

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHEIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Our CEQ and Chairman of the Board of Directors is also a director of CardioTech. The CEOQ and
Chairman of the Board of Directors of CardioTech, until August 2006, is also our director.

In March 2000, the Company entered into a joint research agreement with CardioTech to develop a
proprietary porous polymer biocompatible coating technology as a platform for the Company’s proprietary
radioactive brachytherapy technelogy. In consideration for this agreement, the Company agreed to pay $150,000
in cash and purchase 100,000 shares of CardioTech stock at a price of $1.00 per share. As of June 30, 2003, the
Company has purchased these shares, the fair market value of which is $196,000 and is recorded as investments
in available for sale securities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet,

In March 2004 the Company entered into an Exchange & Venture Agreement with CardioTech
International, Inc. (“CardioTech™), a public company and related party of the Company, and CorNova, Inc.
(“CorNova™). CorNova is a start-up company incorporated as a Delaware corporation on October 12, 2003.
CorNova’s focus is the development and marketing of innovative interventional cardiology products. In




connection with the agreement, in March 2004, the Company and CardioTech issucd 10,344 and 12,931 shares,
respectively, of their respective common stock (the “Contributory Shares™) bearing an aggregate fair market
value of $113,000 and $76,000. respectively, as of the date of the issuance. In exchange, the Company and
CardioTech each received 1,500,000 shares of CorNova's common stock, which represented a 30% ownership
position for each party. In February 2005, upon CorNova's sccuring of an additional $3.000,000 in financing
(“Series A™), CardioTech and the Company each issued additional shares of their common stock, which was
equal in value to twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross proceeds of the Series A Financing, or $750,000. As of
June 30, 2006, the Company’s shares, represent a 18% ownership position. Antheny Armini, our CEO and
Michael Szycher, the Chairman of our Nominating Committee, are also on the Board of Directors of CorNova.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
June 30,
2006 2005 2004
Audit fees $ 191,000 $ 297,500 $ 138,000
Audit related fees 56,000 17.650 8.000
Total $ 247,000 $ 315,150 $ 146.000

The firm of UHY LLP ("UHY") acts as our principal independent registered public accounting firm.
Through June 30, 2006, UHY had a continuing relationship with UHY Advisors, Inc. {**Advisors”™) from which
it leased auditing staff who were full time, permanent employees of Advisors and through which UHY’s
partners provide non-audit services. UHY has no full time cmployees and therefore, none of the audit services
performed were provided by permanent full-time employees of UHY. UHY manages and supervises the audit
services and audit staff, and is exclusively responsible for the opinion rendered in connection with its
examination.

The Company’s Audit Committee must pre-approve all audit services to be provided to the Company.
whether provided by the principal auditor or other firms, and all other services (review, attest and non-audit) to
be provided to the Company by the independent auditor, provided, however, that de minimis non-audit services
may instead be approved in accordance with applicable SEC rules. The Company’s principal financial and
accounting officer communicates to both the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the auditing services firm
any services requested to be provided. After receiving a fee quote for services from the service provider, a letter
from the Chairman of the Audit Committee is prepared and submitted to the service provider as cvidence of
approval of the requested services.
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBIT INDEX

The following are filed as part of this Form10-K

Exhibit No. Ref. No. Deseription

32 1 By-Laws of the Company.

33 1 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Organization of the Company, dated June 9, 1999.

34 1 Restated Articles of Organization of the Company, dated June 9. 1999,

35 5 Certificate of Vote of Directors establishing Series A 7% Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock, dated October 7, 2002.

36 6 Certificatc of Vote of Directors establishing Series B 5% Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock, dated August 26, 2003.

3.7 7 Certificate of Vote of Directors establishing Series C 5% Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock, dated November 25, 2003.

38 19 Cenificate of Vote of Directors establishing Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, dated
September 30, 2003.

3.9 20 Form of Amendment to Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and Securities
Purchase Agreement dated May 31, 2006.

4.1 2 Specimen certificate for the Common Stock of the Company,

10.61 1 1992 Stock Option Plan.

10.02 1 Form of Stock Optien Agreement under the 1992 Stock Option Plan.

10.03 ! 1998 Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Plan.

10.04 2 Form of Incentive Stock Option under the 1998 Incentive and Nongualified Stock Option Plan.

10.05 2 Form of Nonquatified Stock Option under the 1998 Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option
Plan.

10.06 2 Form of Nongualified Stock Option for Non-Employee Directors under the 1998 Incentive and
Nonqualified Stock Option Plan.

10.07 5 Common Stock Purchase Warrant for 55,000 shares issued to Laurus Master Fund, Lid. Dated
October 7, 2002.

10,08 6 Common Stock Purchase Warrant for 70,000 shares issued to Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. Dated
August 28, 2003.

10.09 7 Securities Purchase Agreement between Implant Sciences Corporation and Laurus Master Fund,
Ltd, Dated November 25, 2003,

10.10 7 Security Agreement between implant Sciences Corporation and Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. Dated
November 25, 2003,

10.11 7 Common Stock Purchase Warrant for 100,000 shares issued to Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. Dated
November 25, 2003. )

10.12 8 Exchange and Venture agreement between Implant Sciences Corporation, CardioTech
International, and CorNova, Inc. dated March 5, 2004,

10.13 9 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement between Implant Sciences and certain investors.

10.14 9 Fonm of Warrant dated June, 17, 2004,

10.15 9 Form of Additional Investors Rights Agreement dated June 17, 2004 between Implant Sciences
and certain investors.

10.16 9 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated June 17, 2004 between Implant Sciences and
certain investors.

10.17 10 Employment Agreement with Anthony J. Armini, dated June 30, 2004.

10.18 11 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated October 13, 2004, by and among the
Company, C Acquisition Corp., Core Systems Incorporated and Donald W. Lindsey.

10.19 12 Securitics Purchase Agreements, dated March 4, 2005, by and between the Company and the
Purchasers thereunder, with attached schedules,

10.20 12 Form of Common Stock Purchasc Warrant, dated March 4, 2008, by the Company in favor of
Pacific Wave Partners Limited.

10.21 12 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, dated March 4, 2005, by the Company in favor of
the Purchasers,

10.22 12 Form of Additional Investment Right, dated March 4, 2005, by and between the Company in
favor of the purchasers.

10.23 12 Registration Rights Agrcement, dated March 4, 2005, by and between the Company and the

parties thereto.
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10.24
10.25
10.26
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13

14*
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17
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19
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19

20
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Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2005 by and among the Company, Accurel and the
Stockholders.

Form of the Securted Promissory Note dated March 9, 2005 made out by the Company in favor
of the Stockholders.

Note and Security Agreement dated March 9, 2005, by and among the Company, the
Stockholders and the Escrow Agent thereunder.

Holdback and Escrow Agreement dated March 9, 2005, by and among the Company, the
Stockholders and the Escrow Agent thercunder.

Development, Distribution and Manufacturing Agreement dated March 23, 2005 by and
between the Company and Rapiscan Systems, Inc.

Form of Business Financing Agreement dated June 1, 2005 between the Company and Bridge
Bank, N.A.

Form of Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated June 1, 2005 between Implant Sciences
Corporation and Bridge Bank, N.A.

Form of Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated June i, 2005 between C Acquisition
Corp. and Bridge Bank, N.A.

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2005, by and between the Company
and Laurus Master Fund, Ltd.

Form of Secured Term Note, dated as of July 6, 2005, by the Company in favor of Laurus
Master Fund, Ltd.

Form of Subsidiary Guaranty, dated as of July 6, 2005, by the Company in favor of Laurus
Master Fund, Lid.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, by the Company in favor of Laurus Master Fund,
Ltd.

Form of Funds Escrow Agrecment.

Form of Master Security Agreement.

Sccurities Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and Laurus Master Fund, dated
September 30, 2005,

Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Laurus Master Fund, dated
September 30, 2005,

Subsidiary Guaranty dated September 30, 2005.

Form of Common Stock Purchasc Warrant dated September 30, 2005.

Form of Funds Escrow Agreement by and among the Company, Laurus Master Fund and Loeb
& Loeb LLP.

Form of Master Security Agreement by and among the Company, C-Acquisition Corporation,
Accurel Systems and Laurus Master Fund, dated September 30, 2005.

Form of Stock Pledge Agreement by and between the Company and Laurus Master Fund dated
September 30, 2005.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, by the Company in favor of Laurus Master Fund,
Ltd. , dated May 31, 2006.

Form of Amendment to Securitics Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and
Laurus Master Fund dated May 31, 2006.

2000 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of UHY LLP.

Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Scction 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350, as adopted Pursuant to
Seetion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Previously filed in the Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (Registration No. 333-64499) filed
on September 29, 1998, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed in Amendment No. 1 1o the Registration Statement, fited on December 21,
1998, and is incorporated hercin by reference.

Previously filed in Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Statement, filed on February 11, 1999,
and is incerporated herein by reference.
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Previously filed in the Annual Report on Form 10 KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002
filed on October 15, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed in the Annual Report on Form 10 KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003
filed on September 29, 2003 and is incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed on Form 8-K on December 12, 2003, and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form 8-K on March 18, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form S-3 on July 14, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed in the Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004,
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed on Form 8-K on October 19, 2004, and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form 8-K or Amendment Form 8-K on March 9, 2005 and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Previously filed on Form 8-K on March 11, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on an Amendment 1o Form 8-K on April 7, 2005 and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Previously filed with this Registration Statement.

Previously filed on Form 8-K on June 13, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form 8-K on July 14, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form S-3 on August 4, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form 8-K on Qctober 5, 2005 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form 8-K on June 6, 2006 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed on Form S-8 on December 12, 2003 and is incorporated herein by reference.
Filed pursuant to a request for confidential treatment,
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. -

Implant Sciences Corporation

Date: October 12, 2006 /s/ Anthony J. Armini
Anthony J. Armini
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Exccutive Officer)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated, and cach of the undersigned officers and
directors of Implant Sciences Corporation hereby scverally constitutes and appoints Anthony J. Armini his true
and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power to him, to sign for him, in his name in the capacity
indicated below, al!l amendments to such report on Form 10-K, hereby ratifying and confirming his signature as
it may be signed by his attorney to such report and any and all amendments thereto.

Date; October 12, 2006 /s! Anthony J. Armini
Anthony J. Armini
President, Chief Executive Officer,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: October 12, 2006 /s! Diane J. Ryan
Diane J. Ryan
VP Finance and CFO
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: October 12, 2006 /s/ Stephen N. Bunker
Stephen N. Bunker
Vice President and Chief Scientist,
Director

Date: October 12, 2006 /s! Michael Szycher
Michael Szycher, Dircctor

Date: October 12, 2006 /s/ David Eisenhaure
David Eisenhaure, Director

Date: October 12, 2006 /s/ Michael Turmelle
Michael Turmelle, Director

92




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Implant Sciences Corporation
Wakefield, MA

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No.’s 333-
109677, 333-111434, 333-117366, 333-124058, 333-127167) and Form S-8 (No's 33342816, 333-111117)
of our report dated September 20, 2006, relating to the consolidated financial statements which appears in the
Annual Report to Sharcholders, which is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Implant Sciences
Corporation for the year ended June 30, 2006,

/sf'UHY LLP
Boston, MA

October 12, 2006
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EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Implant Sciences Corporation

Wakefield, MA

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form $-3 (No.'s 333-
109677, 333-111434, 333-117366, 333-124058, 333-127167 ) and Form S-8 (No. 333-111117) of Implant
Sciences Corporation of our report dated October 10, 2005, relating to the consolidated financial statements,
which is incorporated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO Scidman, LLP
Boston, MA

October 11, 2006
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Anthony J. Armini, President and Chief Executive Officer of Implant Sciences Corporation, certify that:

L.

2,

5.

I'have reviewed this 10-K of Implant Sciences Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the small business
issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensur¢ that material information relating to
the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: October 12, 2006

/s/ Anthony J. Armini
Anthony J. Armini

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Diane J. Ryan, Chief Financial Officer of Implant Sciences Corporation, certify that:

5.

1 have reviewed this 10-K of Implant Sciences Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statcment of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact nccessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and intemal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the small business
issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that materia) information relating to
the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such intermal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supcrvision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectivencss of the registrant’s disclosurc controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures,
as of the end of the period covered by this report bascd on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent cvaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the cquivatent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencics and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are rcasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other cmployces who have a
significant role in the registrant’s intcrnal control over financial reporting.

Date: Qctober 12, 2006

/s/ Dian¢ J. Ryan
Dianc J. Ryan
Chicf Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

IMPLANT SCIENCES CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Implant Sciences Corporation. (the "Company™) on Form 10-
K for the period ending June 30, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the Report), I, Antheny Armini, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.8.C. ss.
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and result of operations of the Company.

s/ Anthony Armini
Anthony Arminj

Chief Executive Officer
October 12, 2006
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Exhibit 32.2

IMPLANT SCIENCES CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Implant Sciences Corporation (the "Company™) on Form 10-K
for the period ending June 30, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the Report), 1, Diane J. Ryan, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

|. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ Diane J. Ryan
Diane J. Ryan

Chief Financial Officer
QOctober 12, 2006
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